
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday 20 July 2016 at 2.00 pm 
 
To be held at the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Leigh Bramall (Deputy Leader/Cabinet Member for Business 

and Economy) 
Councillor Ben Curran (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
Councillor Jackie Drayton (Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & 

Families) 
Councillor Jayne Dunn (Cabinet Member for Housing) 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and 

Transport) 
Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Environment) 
Councillor Mary Lea (Cabinet Member for Culture, Parks and Leisure) 
Councillor Cate McDonald (Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care) 
Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Community Services and 

Libraries) 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the 
City Council.  These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and 
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one 
Council service.  Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie 
Dore.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm.  You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please see the 
website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding public 
questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place, 
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the 
monthly cycle of meetings.   
 
If you require any further information please contact Simon Hughes on 0114 273 
4014 or email simon.hughes@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CABINET AGENDA 
20 JULY 2016 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
2. Apologies for Absence  
3. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 Note: (i) Appendices B and C to agenda item 12 ‘Sheffield 

Retail Quarter – Delivery of First Phase, are not available to 
the public and press because they contain exempt 
information described in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person. 
 
(ii) Appendices Two and Four for item 11 ‘Corporate 
Statutory Servicing and Repairs (CSSR) Service – Delivery 
Options Post-March 2017’ are not available to the public 
and press because they contain exempt information 
described in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person. 
 
 
 

 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 
 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting of the 

Cabinet held on 22 June 2016. 
 

 

6. Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

7. Items Called-In For Scrutiny  
 The Director of Legal and Governance will inform the 

Cabinet of any items called in for scrutiny since the last 
meeting of the Cabinet 
 

 

8. Retirement of Staff (Pages 15 - 18) 
 Report of the Acting Executive Director, Resources 

 
 

9. School Places Consultation: Ecclesall (Pages 19 - 36) 
 Report of the Executive Director, Children, Young People 

and Families 
 



 

 

 
10. Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring 

2016/17 Month 2 as at 20 July 2016 
(Pages 37 - 84) 

 Report of the Acting Executive Director, Resources 
 

 

11. Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs (CSSR) 
Service - Delivery Options Post-March 2017 

(Pages 85 - 138) 

 Report of the Acting Executive Director, Resources 
 

 

12. Sheffield Retail Quarter - Delivery of First Phase (Pages 139 - 
176) 

 Report of the Executive Director, Place 
 

 

 NOTE: The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on 
Wednesday 21 September 2016 at 2.00 pm 
 

 

 
 



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Cabinet 
 

Meeting held 22 June 2016 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Ben Curran (Chair), Jackie Drayton, Jayne Dunn, 

Mazher Iqbal, Bryan Lodge, Mary Lea, Cate McDonald and Jack Scott 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 
 

1.1 RESOLVED: In the absence of the Chair and the Deputy Chair, Councillors Julie 
Dore and Leigh Bramall, Councillor Ben Curran be appointed Chair of Cabinet for 
the duration of the meeting. 

 
2.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.1 Apologies for absence were received from the Chair, Councillor Julie Dore and the 
Deputy Chair, Councillor Leigh Bramall. 

 
3.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

3.1 No items were identified where it was proposed to exclude the public and press. 
 
4.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

4.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
5.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 

5.1 The minutes of the meetings of Cabinet held on 9 March and 18 May 2016 were 
approved as correct records. 

 
6.  
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

6.1  Public Question in respect of Learning Disability Carers 
  
6.1.1 Adam Butcher asked what could be done to ensure that Learning Disability Carers 

are involved with the Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers, on the 
agenda for today’s meeting. 

  
6.1.2 Councillor Cate McDonald, Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care, 

responded that an extensive consultation had been undertaken with carers over 
an 18 month period. The report on the agenda for today’s meeting was the final 
piece of the jigsaw in respect of how to utilise the funding. 

  
6.1.3 All interested parties had been involved in the consultation and the Council had 

listened to what they had to say. The process would continue following approval of 
the report. The Carers Strategy would be re-examined following the publication of 
the National Carers Strategy. If Mr Butcher or others felt that there was something 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 2 of 9 
 

missing from the Plan or that the Council could do better they should get in touch. 
  
6.2 Public Question in respect of Agency Staffing Provision 
  
6.2.1 Nigel Slack commented that he was interested to read the report, being 

considered at the meeting today, on the proposed Temporary Staff contract tender 
and was glad to see the Foundation Living Wage from day one of employment as 
part of this tender, in line with the Council’s previous commitments. 

  
6.2.2 Mr Slack added that the Living Wage was, however, only one part of an 

employment package and he would like to ask the Council if they would also 
commit to making reasonable minimum requirements for areas such as sick pay, 
holiday pay and entitlement, minimum hours etc. as part of this temporary staffing 
contract?  Mr Slack also asked whether, in line with commitments made last year, 
the contract would be available for public scrutiny, as far as commercial 
confidentiality allows, and ask that any redactions will be rigorously challenged 
before being accepted? 

  
6.2.3 In response, Councillor Ben Curran, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources, 

stated that under the Agency Working Regulations Law, temporary staff were 
required to receive the same conditions as permanent members of staff from 12 
weeks. Under the proposals outlined in the report on today’s agenda, temporary 
staff would receive the same conditions as employees of the Council as 
permanent staff from their first day of employment on a pro rata basis. The 
contract would be available for public scrutiny subject to the usual regulations on 
commercial confidentiality. 

  
6.3 Public Question in respect of the Future of Public Buildings 
  
6.3.1 Nigel Slack commented that there was a persistent rumour that the Council was in 

preliminary discussion with a major hotel group regarding the future of the Graves 
building and therefore the Central Library and the Graves Art Gallery. Could the 
Council confirm if they are now or ever have been in discussion with any hotel 
group or other potential developer with respect to this building? Will the Council 
also confirm whether there is any covenant or other legal constraint on the Council 
to prevent such a move in the future? 

  
6.3.2 Councillor Mary Lea, Cabinet Member for Culture, Parks and Leisure, commented 

that the Graves building and others referred to were very important buildings. A 
number of possible options for their futures had been looked at over the years but 
she was not aware of any discussions with the hotel group. A written response 
would be provided to Mr Slack in respect of the question of the covenant. 

 
7.  
 

ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY 
 

7.1 There were no items called-in for Scrutiny since the last meeting of the Cabinet. 
 
8.  
 

RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 

8.1 The Chief Executive submitted a report on Council staff retirements.  

Page 6



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 3 of 9 
 

  
8.1.1 RESOLVED: That this Cabinet :-  
  
 (a) places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the City 

Council by the following staff in the Portfolios below:- 
  
 Name Post Years’ Service 
    
 Children, Young People and Families  
    
 Ranjit Chakravorty Study Support and Volunteers 

Co-Ordinator 
30 

    
 Josephine Cobley Teacher, Talbot Specialist 

School 
33 

    
 Glyne Cooke  Development Manager 36 
    
 Anne Everson Social Worker 26 
    
 Margaret Firth Deputy Headteacher, 

Oughtibridge Primary School 
39 

    
 Margaret Gardener Senior Teaching Assistant 

Level 3, Birley Spa Community 
Primary School 

26 

    
 Susan Huscroft Headteacher, Birley Spa 

Community Primary School 
38 

    
 Stephanie Lawson Senior Teaching Assistant, 

Stradbroke Primary School 
30 

    
 Maria Lysandro Residential Support Worker 24 
    
 Debbie Marshall Teacher, Ecclesall Infant 

School 
25 

    
 Patricia Munt Headteacher, Oughtibridge 

Primary School 
39 

    
 Pauline Newton Teacher, Birley Spa 

Community Primary School 
36 

    
 Lesley Nicol Team Manager 29 
    
 Trevor Owen Head of Safeguarding and 

Review 
42 

    
 Diane Pratt Teacher, Carfield Primary 36 

Page 7



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 4 of 9 
 

School 
    
 Lynn Stevenson School Business Manager, 

Whiteways Primary School 
30 

    
 Helen Towers Teacher, Waterthorpe Nursery 

Infant School 
36 

    
 Susan Withey Consultant (EMA/EML) 21 
    
 Communities  
    
 Neil Ashton Senior Housing Officer 34 
    
 Leslie Benn Area Manager 43 
    
 Stephen Bradshaw Housing Co-ordinator 33 
    
 Sharon Cadd Senior Housing Officer 29 
    
 Patricia Clarkson Housing Officer 29 
    
 Susan Cook Warden 31 
    
 Lynn Cutts Assistant Area Manager 31 
    
 Julie Ford Housing Co-ordinator 26 
    
 Lorraine Foulstone Senior Housing Officer 26 
    
 Louisa Lazenby Housing Co-ordinator 29 
    
 Helen Mitchell Housing Co-ordinator 26 
    
 June Richards Warden, Housing and 

Neighbourhood Services 29 
    
 Anthony Round Warden, Housing and 

Neighbourhood Services 
29 

    
 Dennis Slack Housing Co-ordinator 40 
    
 Janet Siddall Warden, Housing and 

Neighbourhood Services 
25 

    
 Audrey Simpson Senior Housing Officer 32 
    
 Deborah Slack Social Worker 32 
    
 Linda Sunley Senior Housing Officer 32 

Page 8



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 5 of 9 
 

    
 Carol Taylor Warden, Housing and 

Neighbourhood Services 
32 

    
 Sandra Wheldon Housing Co-ordinator 29 
    
 Alison White Senior Housing Officer 30 
    
 Place   
    
 Robert Almond Policy and Project 

Development Manager 
28 

    
 June Burke Community Events Officer 30 
    
 Pauline Davison Information Officer 29 
    
 Tina Moores Community Activity Leader, 

Activity Sheffield 
34 

    
 Nicholas Silvani Principal Transport Planner 41 
    
 Robert Thurlby Environmental Health 

Technician 
34 

    
 Resources   
    
 Stephen Clark HR Service Manager – 

Transitions 
31 

    
 Jane Cobbledick Learning and Development 

Consultant 
38 

    
 Richard Oates Motor Vehicle Fitter 37 
    
 Wendy Parker Learning and Development 

Officer 
28 

    
 Phillip Smith Transport Manager 46 
    
 Fraser Walters Learning and Development 

Officer 
39 

  
 (b) extends to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy retirement; 

and 
  
 (c) directs that an appropriate extract of this resolution under the Common Seal of 

the Council be forwarded to them. 
 
9.  COMMISSIONING PLAN FOR ADULT AND PARENT CARERS 

Page 9



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 6 of 9 
 

  
9.1 The Executive Director, Communities submitted a report outlining the 

Commissioning Plan for Adult and Parent Carers which detailed the 
commissioning intentions for Sheffield City Council (2016-20) including the 
services we wish to purchase and other interventions and programmes. 

  
9.2 RESOLVED: That:- 
  
 (a) the report is noted and approval is given to the Commissioning Plan for 

Parent and Adult Carers; 
   
 (b) in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, Cabinet 

approves the use of the Council’s existing framework of Collaborative 
Partnerships that provide preventative health and wellbeing following the 
People Keeping Well principles for community based outreach carers 
services; 

   
 (c) in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, Cabinet 

approves the procurement via an open tender process for core city wide 
support services for carers, including the delivery of Carers Assessments 
(as set out in section 10 of the Care Act), the management of a small grant 
pot, developing support plans for carers, helping identify services and 
managing the overall budget available to support carers; 

   
 (d) in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, Cabinet 

approves the move from a contract for sitting services for all carers to an 
approach where the assessment of the need for a sitting service is included 
in social care assessments and where an eligible need is identified this 
need will be met through a direct payment or through a separately procured 
contract for which separate approval will be sought; 

   
 (e) in accordance with the Commissioning Plan and this report, authority is 

delegated to the Director of Commissioning, in consultation with theCabinet 
Member for Health and Social Care and the Interim Director of Finance and 
Commercial Services, to: 
 

(i) award contracts for core city wide support services for carers 
following the open tender process; 
(ii) approve the extension of core city wide support contracts after the 
expiry of the initial 3 year term; 
(iii) develop options, procure and award contracts for short breaks; and 
(iv) approve one off procurement and contracts for raising awareness of 
carer issues; and 

   
 (f) the Director of Commissioning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 

Health and Social Care, the Director of Legal and Governance and the 
Interim Director of Finance and Commercial Services, be authorised to take 
such other steps as he deems appropriate to achieve the outcomes in this 
report and the Commissioning Plan. 

   

Page 10



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 7 of 9 
 

9.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
9.3.1 The Commissioning Plan is based within the Framework of Improving Carers Lives 

and directly aligns with the principles as set out in the recently approved Young 
Carers, Parent and Adult Carers Strategy. 

  
9.3.2 The commissioning intentions have been guided by the co-production activity the 

Authority has undertaken with carers. 
  
9.3.3 The Strategy will enable the Authority to comply with a new statutory duty as set 

out in section 10 of the Care Act 2014. 
  
9.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
9.4.1 The alternative option would be not to have a strategy for carers.  This is not a 

viable alternative as it would result in a breach of a statutory duty, and has been 
outlined in the strategy and this report; it is legally, morally, socially and 
economically important for Sheffield to continue to support its carers. 

  
9.4.2 Carers are identified in the Council’s Corporate Plan 2015-2018: provide direct 

support to more carers than ever before. 
  
 
10.  
 

AGENCY STAFFING PROVISION 
 

10.1 The Acting Executive Director, Resources submitted a report requesting Cabinet 
approval for the procurement of a new temporary agency supplier. 

  
10.2 An amended report outlining financial, legal and equalities implications of the 

proposed decision was circulated to Members prior to the meeting. 
  
10.3 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) approves the strategy for procurement of a temporary agency supplier via a 

competitive dialogue process; and 
   
 (b) 

delegates the power to award the contract for the agency services to the 
Interim Director of Finance and Commercial Services, in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources, on the basis that: 

• The most suitable provider/partner is chosen via a competitive dialogue 
process.   

• That the chosen provider/partner will work with Sheffield City Council to 
develop Social and Economic values that will benefit the people of Sheffield 
and the wider region. 

• That, in the event that the competitive dialogue process results in the 
Council forming a new business with the chosen provider, the chosen 
provider/partner works closely with the Council to grow the newly formed 

Page 11



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 8 of 9 
 

business within Sheffield and the wider region. 

• That the new contract is actively managed through the existing Human 
Resources Client Management arrangement with support from Commercial 
Services. 

   
10.4 Reasons for Decision 
  
10.4.1 To ensure access to an agency with market place presence and expertise in 

providing temporary staffing for a wide range of job roles. 
  
10.4.2 To use agency provider expertise in developing our strategy to deliver improved 

social values for the people of Sheffield and the Sheffield City Region. 
  
10.4.3 To minimise the risks that were identified during the consideration of alternative 

options. 
  
10.5 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
10.5.1 

A number of delivery models have been considered as part of this exercise and 
include ; 

• Establish an in-house Agency or Traded Company  

• Establish the Council’s own framework of providers 

• Procurement of Managed Services or Neutral Vendor, either through a 
consortia, collaboration or directly to the market 

• Establish a non-traded company 

• Set up a Public Sector/Private Sector collaboration (e.g. SCC / Reed) 

• Set up a Public Sector collaboration (e.g. SCC / University of Sheffield / 
NHS Sheffield) 

  
 
11.  
 

REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 2015/16 
MONTH 12 (AS AT 31/3/16) 
 

11.1 The Acting Executive Director, Resources submitted a report providing the 
Outturn monitoring statement on the City Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget 
for 2015/16. 

  
11.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) notes the updated information and management actions provided by this 

report on the 2015/16 Revenue Budget Outturn; 
   

Page 12



Meeting of the Cabinet 22.06.2016 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 (b) approves the carry forward request detailed in paragraph 9 of the report; 
   
 (c) approves a further £50k from the New Homes Bonus fund to support the 

development of the regeneration of Attercliffe through the development of 
the Olympic Legacy Park as detailed in paragraph 13 of the report; 

   
 (d) approves the use of Public Health reserves to fund a number of projects as 

detailed in paragraph 8 of Appendix 2 of the report; 
   
 (e) approves the spend request as shown in paragraph 19 of Appendix 1 of the 

report; and 
   
 (f) in relation to the Capital Programme:- 
   
  (i) approves the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in 

Appendix 7.1, including the procurement strategies and delegate to the 
Interim Director of Finance and Commercial Services, or her 
nominated officer, the authority to award the relevant contracts 
following stage approval by the Capital Programme Group; 

   
  (ii) approves the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in Appendix 

7.1; and  
    
  (iii) notes the latest position on the Capital Programme. 
    
11.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
11.3.1 To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme 

and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to 
reset the Capital Programme in line with latest information. 

  
11.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
10.4.1 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members. The 
recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the 
best options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the 
constraints on funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue 
Budget and the Capital Programme. 

  
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Form 2 – Executive Report                                                        July 2016 

 

 
 

 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Simon 
Hughes/Principal Committee Secretary 
 
Tel:  27 34014 

 
Report of: 
 

Acting Executive Director, Resources 

Report to: 
 

Cabinet 

Date of Decision: 
 

20 July 2016 

Subject: Staff Retirements 
 
 

 

Is this a Key Decision? If Yes, reason Key Decision:- Yes  No x  
 

- Expenditure and/or savings over £500,000    
  

- Affects 2 or more Wards    
 

 

Which Cabinet Member Portfolio does this relate to?   N/A 
 
Which Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee does this relate to?  N/A 
 

 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No x  
 

If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No x  
 

If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 
To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service and to 
convey the Council’s thanks for their work. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



Page 2 of 4 

 

Recommendations: 
 
To recommend that Cabinet:- 
 
(a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the City 
Council by the above-mentioned members of staff in the Portfolios stated; 
 
(b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 
retirement; and 
 
(c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 
Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with over 20 years’ 
service. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Background Papers: None 
(Insert details of any background papers used in the compilation of the report.) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 16



Page 3 of 4 

 
  
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service 

and to convey the Council’s thanks for their work:- 
  
 Name Post Years’ Service 

   
Children, Young People and Families 
   
Maureen Bradder Senior Business 

Support Officer 
36 

   
Jacqueline Cottom Headteacher, Dobcroft 

Junior School 
36 

   
Ruth Crookes Assistant Curriculum 

Leader of Maths, Birley 
Community College 

30 

   
Ann Hall Curriculum Specialist,  

Lound Infant School 
45 

   
Carol Holmes Curriculum Leader of 

Art, Birley Community 
College 

22 

   
Jayne Iles Senior Teaching 

Assistant Level 3, Owler 
Brook Primary School 

25 

    
 Joan Leckey Senior Teaching 

Assistant (Special) Level 
3, Talbot Specialist 
School 

20 

    
 Yvonne Palmer Senior Teaching 

Assistant Level 3, Owler 
Brook Primary School 

28 

    
 Communities 
    
 Brenda Allen Business Support 

Officer 
24 

    
 Patricia Parkin Housing Co-ordinator 31 
    
 Place 
    
 Vivien Fella Personal Assistant 37 

Page 17



Page 4 of 4 

    
 Maura Gallagher Secretary to Head of 

Service 
30 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

Form 2 – Executive Report                                                        July 2016 

 

 
 

 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Joel Hardwick 
 
Tel:  ext 35476 

 
Report of: 
 

Jayne Ludlam 

Report to: 
 

Cabinet 

Date of Decision: 
 

20th July 2016 

Subject: Primary School Places in Ecclesall 
 
 

 

Is this a Key Decision? If Yes, reason Key Decision:- Yes X No   
 

- Expenditure and/or savings over £500,000  X  
  

- Affects 2 or more Wards    
 

 

Which Cabinet Member Portfolio does this relate to?   Children, Young People & Families 
 
Which Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee does this relate to?  Children & Young 
People 
 

 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes X No   
 

If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   n/a 

 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No X  
 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 
Consultation has taken place on proposals to increase the number of primary 
school places in the Ecclesall area. This report provides feedback on the 
consultation and seeks a decision on whether to proceed with the proposals in light 
of the issues raised during consultation. 
 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 19



Page 2 of 10 

 

Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to: 
 

i. Approve the proposal to increase the capacity and upper age range at 
Ecclesall Infant School as described in the statutory proposals. The lower 
age range would remain and would not change. This approval is conditional 
on the granting of planning permission before 1st July 2017.  

ii. Agree the commitments and actions outlined at 4.2 in the report 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Finance:  Paul Schofield 
 

Legal:  Nadine Wynter 
 

Equalities:  Bashir Khan 
 

 
Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 EMT member who approved 
submission: 

Jayne Ludlam 

3 Cabinet Member consulted: 
 

Cllr Jackie Drayton 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Decision Maker by the EMT member indicated at 2.  In addition, any 
additional forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1. 
 

 
Lead Officer Name: 
Joel Hardwick 

Job Title:  
School Organisation Manager 

 

 
Date:  20

th
 July 2016 

 

Page 20



Page 3 of 10 

 
1. PROPOSAL  
  
1.1 Consultation has taken place on proposals to increase the number of 

primary school places in the Ecclesall area. This report provides 
feedback on the consultation and seeks a decision on whether to 
proceed with the proposals in light of the issues raised during 
consultation. 

  
1.2 Demand for primary school places in the southwest of Sheffield has risen 

in recent years. This has followed the local and national trend of rising 
births but is also the result of a significant movement of young families 
into the area. This trend is a particular feature of the demographics in this 
part of the city. 

  
1.3 Broader consultations around primary and secondary school places in 

this part of the city were held during Summer and Autumn 2015. 
Following this, in February 2016, Cabinet agreed to consult on proposals 
to increase places in the Ecclesall area. The proposal was to grow 
Ecclesall Infant to become a 90-place per year ‘through’ primary school, 
with Clifford Infants and Ecclesall Junior remaining as local linked Church 
of England schools. 

  
1.4 The schools involved have different legal statuses. Ecclesall Infants is a 

Community School; the Local Authority is the admissions authority, owns 
the buildings, and appoints a minority of governors. Both Clifford and 
Ecclesall Junior are Church of England (CE) schools, but with some 
differences. Clifford is a Voluntary Aided school, meaning that the 
governors are the admissions authority, the CE Diocese owns the 
buildings, and a majority of governors are appointed by the Diocese. 
Ecclesall Junior is a Voluntary Controlled School; the CE Diocese owns 
the buildings, the Local Authority is the admissions authority, and a 
minority of governors are appointed by the Diocese. At present governors 
across Ecclesall Infant and Ecclesall Junior have opted to work together 
in a partnership called a ‘soft federation’. This means both schools have 
their own governing body, but those governors work together on some 
aspects. This governance arrangement helps support the Executive 
Headteacher arrangement that is currently in place. 

  
1.5 The key responsibility of the Local Authority that underpins these 

proposals is to ensure that there are sufficient places. The leadership, 
governance, and day-to-day management arrangements of each school 
are the responsibility of their individual governing body and school 
leadership, and the Church of England Diocese where appropriate. The 
consultation process and responses are outlined at section 3 below. The 
conclusions and recommended next steps are described at section 4. 

  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
  
2.1 The proposals contained within this report are an essential part of 

ensuring that there are enough school places for every school age child 

Page 21



Page 4 of 10 

in Sheffield. This is a fundamental statutory responsibility of local 
government and it is essential to Sheffield City Council’s focus on 
enabling children to have a great start in life, achieve their full potential, 
and contribute to the success of the city. At the heart of the vision for 
increasing school places in Sheffield is the Council’s role in enabling 
excellent education outcomes and equitable access for all to high quality 
education. 

  
2.2 The outcome would be to ensure that there are enough primary school 

places in an area that has seen sustained increases in the pupil 
population over a long period. The proposals would leave sustainable 
schools for the long term serving this part of the city. 

  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 The statutory requirement is for a 4-week consultation. In this case 

consultation ran for five weeks to allow for the half-term holiday that fell 
during the period. Consultation started on 19th May 2016. As required, 
statutory notices were placed at the school, on the Council website, and 
in the local paper and the proposals were sent to the governing bodies 
and the diocese. Information was also distributed through the schools to 
all families and posted to over 700 local households. Five meetings were 
held across the three local schools and were well-attended. In total, 220 
responses were received to the consultation in addition to the comments 
collected at meetings and a petition was received opposing the proposals 
that had 235 signatures. 

  
3.2 Cabinet Members had access to all consultation responses in full through 

the Council Leader’s office prior to the Cabinet meeting. Consultation 
responses mainly focussed around four areas: (i) the implications for 
Clifford Infants and Ecclesall Junior (ii) the phased transition (iii) the 
impact on local residents, particularly around traffic, and (iv) the 
consultation process. A numerical analysis of responses is contained at 
Appendix 2 to support the summary below. 

  
3.3 Implications for Clifford Infants & Ecclesall Junior  
  
3.3.1 The long-term vision outlined was for Clifford CE Infant and Ecclesall CE 

Junior to work together in the next period to look at joint leadership and 
governance arrangements. The main issues raised were: 
 

• Certainty & detail: a number of people felt strongly that more certainty 
and detail are required in describing the future for Clifford Infant and 
Ecclesall Junior 

• Leadership & governance: some wanted the Clifford leadership and 
governors to manage the junior site at the first opportunity, whilst 
others sought reassurance that the current leadership across the 
Ecclesall schools would be staying on during this period. 

• Size of the junior school: some Clifford families expressed concern 
about the future of a smaller junior school, either because they see 

Page 22



Page 5 of 10 

benefits in the current arrangement of a larger school or more general 
concerns over the sustainability and success of a smaller school. This 
led some to express a preference for retaining a larger junior school. 

• Capital investment at the Ecclesall Junior site: There was general 
consensus throughout the consultation that the junior site is relatively 
constrained and responses were keen for a commitment of capital 
funding as part of maximising the opportunity of accommodating a 
smaller number of pupils.  

  
3.3.2 Ultimately many of the concerns expressed in this area were seeking 

reassurances or more detail about how the proposal is implemented. 
  
3.4 Phased transition 
  
3.4.1 The proposal put forward during consultation, worked up with Governing 

Bodies and the Diocese, outlined a transition period from the current 
arrangement. It would mean the current infant school growing over a 
four-year period to become a ‘through’ primary school and the junior 
school reducing its size over the same period. The main alternative 
discussed was to move all children across from the junior school in one 
go once the buildings at the infant site were ready, leaving the junior 
school to build from a single year intake to capacity over a four year 
period. The main issues raised were: 
 

• Support for moving all the junior children to new buildings at Ecclesall 
Infant: a variety of reasons were given, including having siblings in the 
same school, taking advantage of the new buildings and playspace, 
and some from Clifford felt this gave an earlier opportunity for Clifford 
to develop the junior school under the Clifford leadership. 

• Support for the phased approach: there was also support from some 
around the benefits of phasing in terms of the short-term sustainability 
of the junior school and guarding against any negative impact on 
children of leaving the junior school to grow from a single year intake. 
Some parents noted their preference for remaining in a church junior 
school, having opted for the school for that reason. 

• Lack of elder peers: there was concern about either model from 
parents around children being the first to move into a junior phase who 
would be the eldest year group throughout that 4-year period. 

  
3.4.2 Although moving all children at once did have some very clear support, 

ultimately there was a variety of concerns raised that would need to be 
addressed individually. 

  
3.5 Impact on local residents  
  
3.5.1 The most frequently cited concern across the consultation was from local 

residents around traffic and parking. It is important to acknowledge the 
strength of feeling around this subject. The proposal would involve an 
increase from the current infant capacity of 180 pupils, to 630 pupils as a 
‘through’ primary. Residents noted the existing issues relating to the 

Page 23



Page 6 of 10 

infants, juniors and High Storrs Secondary. The concerns covered the 
volume of traffic, parking on local residential roads, and access for 
emergency vehicles. Some residents also raised concerns around the 
loss of green space and access for construction traffic.  

  
3.6 Consultation Process 
  
3.6.1 Those opposing the proposals often criticised the consultation process 

and suggested that the consultation ought to be lengthened or restarted. 
Some felt that there had not been sufficient time or opportunity to 
respond to the consultation. Further comments suggested that the detail 
was insufficient to understand fully and comment on the proposal. 

  
3.7 Other 
  
3.7.1 The majority of responses related to the issues noted above. Some 

people offered a view on adding early years provision at the infant 
school, with no clear overall support for this element and some concerns 
raised about the further addition of numbers on the site as well as the 
impact on existing local provision. The reduction of places at the junior 
school was also noted by some as an overall reduction in church school 
places, although this concern did not feature often and did not appear to 
be an issue for local families. 

  
3.8 Summary of responses to the consultation 
  
3.8.1 Support for the existing school leadership and governance at all three 

schools came across strongly from families throughout the consultation. 
Overall, there was broad support for providing additional places in this 
area. Some people simply supported the proposals as stated, the most 
common overall response was to express concerns or raise issues. 
Others felt that an alternative option would be preferable, and others, 
particularly local residents, opposed the proposal as stated. The most 
common alternative option suggested was to create junior places at 
Clifford through purchasing the house next door on Psalter Lane. The 
main reason given during this process for supporting that alternative was 
in order to allow a smaller expansion at Ecclesall Infants. 

  
3.8.2 The concerns raised around transition and around the implications for 

Clifford and Ecclesall Junior were varied and did not form a clear single 
response. Ecclesall Infant parents commonly wanted to see all children 
on the Ecclesall Infant site at the first opportunity, whilst other parents 
were concerned at having smaller numbers at the juniors or having 
chosen church provision and being asked to move to a community 
school. Some responses were looking for the Clifford leadership to 
become the leadership across Ecclesall Junior at the first opportunity, 
whilst others were keen to ensure that the current leadership remains at 
least during transition. 

  
4. CONCLUSION & NEXT STEPS 
  

Page 24



Page 7 of 10 

4.1 In terms of the consultation process, the Council remains satisfied that 
not only were the basic legal duties of consultation fulfilled, but that they 
were in many ways exceeded. The number of public meetings and letters 
surpasses the requirements of the Secretary of State’s guidance and 
matches or surpasses previous school reorganisation projects. The 
documentation described the proposals and their implications as far as 
possible at this stage, ahead of detailed design, a planning application 
process, and ahead of governing bodies making decisions about future 
leadership. The meetings were well attended, everyone who wished to 
attend was offered a place at one of the workshops, and the discussions 
were detailed and engaging. The number of, and detail contained within, 
responses also gives confidence that people were able to consider and 
respond to the proposals. 

  
4.2 There were some very strong feelings aired during the consultation. The 

most common overall response was to raise issues and many of these 
were around how the proposals would be implemented. Many called for 
further opportunities to understand, comment on, and shape the 
proposals if they are to proceed. In order to address the specific issues 
raised during consultation and to allow for that further consultation, we 
would propose the following: 
 

• Transition: that Cabinet makes a commitment that the Local Authority 
will support work led by the three governing bodies and the Diocese to 
come together during the Autumn Term, in partnership with families, to 
put together clear transition plans to address the issues raised during 
this consultation, including consideration of a 2019 start for transition 
and the extent to which Ecclesall CE Junior classes could be taught in 
the new buildings, whilst taking into account the implications for the 
Junior school and the future children from Clifford who would transfer. 

• Traffic & parking around Ecclesall Infant: in acknowledging the 
strength of feeling around existing issues relating to traffic and parking 
it is proposed that agreement to proceed is subject to the scheme 
being acceptable in planning terms, following further engagement and 
consultation, including work around traffic impact. 

• Design: further work would be required working towards detailed 
design, with further opportunities for residents and parents to engage, 
contribute and see what is planned before designs are finalised as 
well as engagement around ensuring that construction is undertaken 
considerately 

• Ecclesall Junior site: that Cabinet makes a commitment that the Local 
Authority will support Governors and the Diocese to ensure that work 
takes place on the Ecclesall Junior site to create a good environment 
for a smaller number of pupils, within the constraints of the current 
financial position facing the Local Authority, school, and the Diocese. 

• Clifford I & Ecclesall J: that Cabinet makes a commitment that the 
Local Authority will support work led by the two governing bodies and 
the Diocese to come together during the Autumn Term in partnership 
with families to put together clear plans around future leadership and 
timing. 

Page 25



Page 8 of 10 

• Sustainability: the Council’s commitment to supporting the long-term 
success and sustainability of these three local schools and their 
neighbours 

• Early Years: there was little support for this development during the 
consultation, the need in terms of places is currently unclear, and we 
would not wish to destabilise existing local provision. Should the need 
develop in the future then this could be a possibility and would be 
subject to fresh consultation 

  
4.3 On the basis of the above, the recommendation in this report is to 

proceed with the proposals subject to the mitigation outlined above. A 
number of the elements above are for the governing bodies and the 
Diocese to decide. The Council is not in a position to pre-empt their 
decisions either as part of the consultation just finished or in the 
immediate decision-making that follows. It can however commit to 
supporting the partnership work necessary to address the issues raised 
and secure a positive implementation and transition period. All three 
governing bodies have committed to working together in the next phase. 
This would be key to providing families across all three schools with the 
reassurance that they need. 

  
5. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
5.1 Equality of Opportunity Implications 
  
5.1.1 The proposal would ensure that there are enough local places available 

in this area and would therefore avoid local children being disadvantaged 
by having to travel outside of their local area to attend school. The further 
work identified around the transition process should ensure that a faith-
based place is available for all pupils from Clifford and Ecclesall Junior 
who currently access one and wish to have one in the future. 

  
5.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
5.2.1 If approved, the proposal would require a capital project to provide 

additional accommodation. If proceeding, all capital approvals would be 
sought separately through Cabinet at the appropriate time with detailed 
costs and set in the context of the overall capital strategy. A provisional 
estimated cost of providing the extra places is £4.9m. This would be 
prioritised from the Basic Need grant. This is a high level estimate based 
on the number of additional places and a true budget for providing these 
places would be established through detailed feasibility work. Further 
work would also be undertaken to understand the needs of the Ecclesall 
Junior site and the Council would work with partners to identify resources 
to support this aspect. 

  
5.3 Legal Implications 
  
5.3.1 Local Authorities have a duty under section 14 of the Education Act 1996 

to secure sufficient schools in their area. The proposals described in this 
report are defined as prescribed alterations, meaning they require a legal 

Page 26



Page 9 of 10 

process to bring them about. Proposals to reorganise school provision 
are governed by the procedures set out in the The School Organisation 
(Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 
2013. Local Authorities are also required to have regard to the statutory 
guidance when exercising functions under the Prescribed Alterations 
Regulations.  A copy of the guidance is attached to this report at 
Appendix 1. 

  
5.3.2 In relation to the consultation process, the following statutory 

requirements are set out in Schedule 3 to the 2013 Regulations:  ‘Any 
person may send objections or comments in relation to any proposals to 
the local authority within four weeks from the date of publication.   The 
representation period starts on the date of publication of the proposals 
and ends four weeks later’. 

  
5.3.3 The following requirements are also set out in the statutory guidance.   

‘The decision-maker will need to be satisfied that the appropriate fair and 
open local consultation and/or representation period has been carried out 
and that the proposer has given full consideration to all the responses 
received.  If the proposer has failed to meet the statutory requirements, a 
proposal may be deemed invalid and therefore should be rejected.  The 
decision-maker must consider ALL the views submitted, including all 
support for, objections to and comments on the proposal.’ 

  
5.3.4 Providing that Cabinet is so satisfied then it is acting lawfully and within 

its powers should it decide to approve the proposal set out in this report. 
  
5.3.5 In relation to the alternative option suggested, in response to the 

consultation, to create junior places at Clifford through purchasing the 
house next door on Psalter Lane, there is no suggestion that the property 
is currently available for purchase. Negotiations could take place with the 
owners of the property, but there is no guarantee that they would be 
willing to sell. There is the possibility that compulsory purchase powers 
conferred on the Council by virtue of the provisions of Section 530 of the 
Education Act 1996 could be used to acquire the property. In order to 
justify the exercise of compulsory purchase powers it would be 
necessary to satisfy the public interest test i.e. it must be established that 
the public interest in making the compulsory purchase order outweighs 
the detriment to the persons who are being deprived of their property 
interests. This can be a heavy burden in cases such as this where the 
interest is a private residence, particularly where there are alternative 
proposals that are capable of implementation. Whether the property was 
acquired by agreement or compulsorily the cost of purchasing the 
property would result in a significant increase in the cost of the proposals. 
In either scenario, the Council would have to pay the full market value for 
the property and the owner’s professional fees in relation to the sale. 
Also, if a compulsory purchase order were to be required, the costs of 
making the order and processing it though to confirmation would need to 
be factored in, as would the resulting delay, with an uncontested order 
likely to take in the region of six months and a contested order in the 
region of 12 months. Given that Clifford is a voluntary aided school, the 

Page 27



Page 10 of 10 

Council would be under a statutory obligation to transfer ownership of the 
property to the Diocese as owners of the remainder of the school site. 

  
6. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
6.1 The most common alternative option suggested was to create junior 

places at Clifford through purchasing the house next door on Psalter 
Lane. This proposal would address the need for places. However, the 
expansion would require the purchase of a house that is not currently for 
sale and would leave the Clifford site extremely constrained with little 
prospect of addressing this in the future. It would not address the current 
constraints of the Ecclesall Junior site and therefore would not be the 
best long-term use of the Council’s available capital and assets. 

  
6.2 Overall there was broad support for providing additional primary school 

places in this area and it is anticipated that the places are needed for the 
foreseeable future. 

  
7. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
7.1 Providing sufficient primary school places is a statutory duty of the 

Council.  This will mean that Sheffield children reaching primary school 
age in 2017 and beyond will continue to have a school place in the area 
of the city in which they live. The option outlined is the best use of capital 
and sites in this part of the city and the best way to provide great local 
primary school places for the long term. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



Appendix 1: Statutory Guidance  
 
2: Factors relevant to all types of proposals  
 
Related proposals  
Any proposal that is ‘related’ to another proposal must be considered together. A 
proposal should be regarded as ‘related’ if its implementation (or non-
implementation) would prevent or undermine the effective implementation of another 
proposal. Decisions for ‘related’ proposals should be compatible.  
 
Where a proposal is ‘related’ to another proposal to be decided by the Regional 
Schools Commissioner (RSC) (e.g. for the establishment of a new free school 
established under the presumption route) the decision-maker should defer taking a 
decision until the RSC has taken a decision on the proposal, or where appropriate, 
grant a conditional approval for the proposal.  
 
Conditional approval  
Decision-makers may give conditional approval for a proposal subject to certain 
prescribed events1 . The decision-maker must set a date by which the condition 
should be met but can modify the date if the proposer confirms, before the date 
expires, that the condition will be met later than originally thought. 
  
The proposer should inform the decision-maker (and the Secretary of State via 
schoolorganisation.notifications@education.gsi.gov.uk for school opening or closure 
cases) when a condition is modified or met. If a condition is not met by the date 
specified, the proposal should be referred back to the decision-maker for fresh 
consideration.  
 
Publishing decisions  
All decisions (rejected and approved – with or without modifications) must give 
reasons for such a decision being made. Within one week of making a decision the 
decision-maker should arrange (via the proposer as necessary) for the decision and 
the reasons behind it to be published on the website where the original proposal was 
published. The decision-maker must also arrange for the organisations below to be 
notified of the decision and reasons:  
• the LA (where the Schools Adjudicator or governing body is the decision-maker);  

• the governing body/proposers (as appropriate);  
 
• the trustees of the school (if any);  

• the local Church of England diocese;  

• the local Roman Catholic diocese;  

• for a special school, the parents of every registered pupil at the school;  

• any other organisation that they think is appropriate; and  

• the Secretary of State via schoolorganisation.notifications@education.gsi.gov.uk (in 
school opening and closure cases only).  
 
Consideration of consultation and representation period  

Page 29



The decision-maker will need to be satisfied that the appropriate fair and open local 
consultation and/or representation period has been carried out and that the proposer 
has given full consideration to all the responses received. If the proposer has failed 
to meet the statutory requirements, a proposal may be deemed invalid and therefore 
should be rejected. The decision-maker must consider ALL the views submitted, 
including all support for, objections to and comments on the proposal.  
 
Education standards and diversity of provision  
Decision-makers should consider the quality and diversity of schools in the relevant 
area and whether the proposal will meet or affect the needs of parents; raise local 
standards and narrow attainment gaps.  
 
A school-led system with every school an academy,  
The 2016 White Paper Education Excellence Everywhere, sets out the department’s 
aim that by the end of 2020, all schools will be academies or in the process of 
becoming academies. The decision-maker should, therefore, take into account the 
extent to which the proposal is consistent with this policy.  
 
Demand v need  
Where a LA identifies the need for a new school, to meet basic need, section 6A of 
EIA 2006 places the LA under a duty to seek proposals to establish a free school via 
the ‘free school presumption’. However it is still possible to publish proposals for new 
maintained school outside of the competitive arrangements, at any time, in order to 
meet demand for a specific type of place e.g. places to meet demand from those of a 
particular faith.  
 
In assessing the demand for new school places the decision-maker should consider 
the evidence presented for any projected increase in pupil population (such as 
planned housing developments) and any new provision opening in the area 
(including free schools).  
 
The decision-maker should take into account the quality and popularity of the 
schools in which spare capacity exists and evidence of parents’ aspirations for a new 
school or for places in a school proposed for expansion. The existence of surplus 
capacity in neighbouring less popular schools should not in itself prevent the addition 
of new places.  
Reducing surplus places is not a priority (unless running at very high levels). For 
parental choice to work effectively there may be some surplus capacity in the system 
as a whole. Competition from additional schools and places in the system will lead to 
pressure on existing schools to improve standards.  
 
School size  
Decision-makers should not make blanket assumptions that schools should be of a 
certain size to be good schools, although the viability and cost-effectiveness of a 
proposal is an important factor for consideration. The decision-maker should also 
consider the impact on the LA’s budget of the need to provide additional funding to a 
small school to compensate for its size.  
 
Proposed admission arrangements  
In assessing demand the decision-maker should consider all expected admission 
applications, not only those from the area of the LA in which the school is situated.  

Page 30



Before approving a proposal that is likely to affect admissions to the school the 
decision-maker should confirm that the admission arrangements of the school are 
compliant with the School Admissions Code. Although the decision-maker cannot 
modify proposed admission arrangements, the decision-maker should inform the 
proposer where arrangements seem unsatisfactory and the admission authority 
should be given the opportunity to revise them.  
 
National Curriculum  
All maintained schools must follow the National Curriculum unless they have secured 
an exemption for groups of pupils or the school community.  
 
Equal opportunity issues  
The decision-maker must have regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) of 
LAs/governing bodies, which requires them to have ‘due regard’ to the need to:  
 
• eliminate discrimination;  

• advance equality of opportunity; and  

• foster good relations.  
 
The decision-maker should consider whether there are any sex, race or disability 
discrimination issues that arise from the changes being proposed, for example that 
where there is a proposed change to single sex provision in an area, there is equal 
access to single sex provision for the other sex to meet parental demand. Similarly 
there should be a commitment to provide access to a range of opportunities which 
reflect the ethnic and cultural mix of the area, while ensuring that such opportunities 
are open to all.  
 
Community cohesion  
Schools have a key part to play in providing opportunities for young people from 
different backgrounds to learn with, from and about each other; by encouraging, 
through their teaching, an understanding of, and respect for, other cultures, faiths 
and communities. When considering a proposal, the decision-maker must consider 
its impact on community cohesion. This will need to be considered on a case-by-
case basis, taking account of the community served by the school and the views of 
different sections within the community.  
 
Travel and accessibility  
Decision-makers should satisfy themselves that accessibility planning has been 
properly taken into account and the proposed changes should not adversely impact 
on disadvantaged groups.  
 
The decision-maker should bear in mind that a proposal should not unreasonably 
extend journey times or increase transport costs, or result in too many children being 
prevented from travelling sustainably due to unsuitable walking or cycling routes.  
 
A proposal should also be considered on the basis of how it will support and 
contribute to the LA’s duty to promote the use of sustainable travel and transport to 
school.  
Further information is available in the statutory Home to school travel and transport 
guidance for LAs.  
 

Page 31



Funding  
The decision-maker should be satisfied that any land, premises or necessary funding 
required to implement the proposal will be available and that all relevant local parties 
(e.g. trustees or religious authority) have given their agreement. A proposal cannot 
be approved conditionally upon funding being made available.  
 
Where proposers are relying on the department as the source of capital funding, 
there can be no assumption that the approval of a proposal will trigger the release of 
capital funds from the department, unless the department has previously confirmed 
in writing that such resources will be available; nor can any allocation ‘in principle’ be 
increased. In such circumstances the proposal should be rejected, or consideration 
deferred until it is clear that the capital necessary to implement the proposal will be 
provided.  
 
School premises and playing fields  
Under the School Premises Regulations all schools are required to provide suitable 
outdoor space in order to enable physical education to be provided to pupils in 
accordance with the school curriculum; and for pupils to play outside safely.  
Guidelines setting out suggested areas for pitches and games courts are in place 
although the department has been clear that these are non-statutory. 

 
Factors relevant to prescribed alteration proposals: 
 

Enlargement of premises  
When deciding on a proposal for an expansion on to an additional site (a ‘satellite 
school’), decision-makers will need to consider whether the new provision is 
genuinely a change to an existing school or is in effect a new school (which would 
trigger the free school presumption in circumstances where there is a need for a new 
school in the area.  
 
Decisions will need to be taken on a case-by-case basis, but decision-makers will 
need to consider the following non-exhaustive list of factors which are intended to 
expose the extent to which the new site is integrated with the existing site, and to 
ensure that it will serve the same community as the existing site:  
 
The reasons for the expansion 
What is the rationale for this approach and this particular site?  
 
Admission and curriculum arrangements 

How will the new site be used (e.g. which age groups/pupils will it serve)?  

What will the admission arrangements be?  

Will there be movement of pupils between sites?  
 
Governance and administration 

How will whole school activities be managed?  

Will staff be employed on contracts to work on both sites? How frequently will they 
do so?  

Page 32



What governance, leadership and management arrangements will be put in place to 
oversee the new site (e.g. will the new site be governed by the same governing body 
and the same school leadership team)?  
 
Physical characteristics of the school 

How will facilities across the two sites be used (e.g. sharing of the facilities and 
resources available at the two sites, such as playing fields)?  

Is the new site in an area that is easily accessible to the community that the current 
school serves?  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2: Consultation Analysis 
 
The consultation responses range from detailed letters to single questions. The 
nature of the proposals is not given to simple yes or no responses. This is evidenced 
below by the number of responses that raised issues rather than offering simple 
support or opposition. It is very important that consultees respond in detail to support 
their views and make suggestions in order that the Council can use the consultation 
response to positively shape proposals. It is therefore a matter of some interpretation 
to categorise every individual response. The following analysis is based on the 
emails and e-forms submitted and therefore does not include for example, comments 
made during workshops. This analysis helps ensure that the weight given to different 
themes in the report’s narrative description and the next steps identified are fair 
reflections of the consultation. 
 
Overall Responses 
 

• Express support – 16% 
(including for example ‘support’, ‘agree’, ‘welcome the proposal’) 
 

• Express concern or raise issues – 37% 
(not clearly expressing support or opposition, but mentioning concerns) 
 

• Express opposition – 28% 
(including for example ‘oppose’, ‘do not support’, ‘against the proposal’) 
 

• Support alternative proposal – 16% 
(opposition to the proposal and with a clear statement of support for an 
alternative – mainly the addition of junior places at Clifford and a smaller 
expansion of Ecclesall Infant) 
 

• Asked questions without expressing support or opposition – 3% 
 
Concerns and Issues 
 
Of those that expressed concern or raised issues (the 37% stated above): 
 
1 - Transition of pupils 87% 
 
2 - Traffic, parking and highways 76% 
 
3 - Impact on Clifford Infants and Ecclesall Junior 44% 
 
4 - Consultation process 25% 
 
5 - Impact on green/open space 21% 
 
6 - The need for places in the area 10% 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                        July 2016 

 

 
 

 
Author/Lead Officer of Report:  Dave Phillips, 
Interim Head of Finance 
 
Tel:  0114 273 5872 

 
Report of: 
 

Eugene Walker 

Report to: 
 

Cabinet 

Date of Decision: 
 

20 July 2016 

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2016/17 – 
As at 31st May 2016 
 

 

Is this a Key Decision? If Yes, reason Key Decision:- Yes  No   
 

- Expenditure and/or savings over £500,000    
  

- Affects 2 or more Wards    
 

 

Which Cabinet Member Portfolio does this relate to?   Finance and Resources 
 
Which Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee does this relate to?  Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes  No   
 

If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   (Insert reference number) 

 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes  No   
 

If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 
“The (report/appendix) is not for publication because it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended).” 
 

 

Purpose of Report: 
 
This report provides the month 2 monitoring statement on the City Council’s 
Revenue and Capital Budget for 2016/17. 
  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 37



Page 2 of 4 

Recommendations: 
 
To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and gain Member approval for 
changes in line with Financial Regulations. 
 
Please refer to paragraph 16 of the main report for the recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 
 

 

Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Finance:  Dave Phillips 
 

Legal:  Sarah Bennett 
 

Equalities:  No 

 
Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 EMT member who approved 
submission: 

Eugene Walker 

3 Cabinet Member consulted: 
 

Ben Curran 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Decision Maker by the EMT member indicated at 2.  In addition, any 
additional forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1. 
 

 
Lead Officer Name: 

 
Dave Phillips 

Job Title:  
Interim Head of Finance 

 

 
Date:  11

th
 July 2016 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 38



Page 3 of 4 

 
 
1. PROPOSAL  
 (Explain the proposal, current position and need for change, including 

any evidence considered, and indicate whether this is something the 
Council is legally required to do, or whether it is something it is choosing 
to do) 

1.1 This report provides the month 2 monitoring statement on the City 
Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget for 2016/17. 
 

  
2. HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
 (Explain how this proposal will contribute to the ambitions within the 

Corporate Plan and what it will mean for people who live, work, learn in 
or visit the City. For example, does it increase or reduce inequalities and 
is the decision inclusive?; does it have an impact on climate change?; 
does it improve the customer experience?; is there an economic impact?) 

2.1 To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and gain Member 
approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations. 
 
Please refer to paragraph 16 of the main report for the recommendations. 

  
  
3. HAS THERE BEEN ANY CONSULTATION? 
  
3.1 No 
  
4. RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
  
4.1 Equality of Opportunity Implications 
  
4.1.1 No 
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 Yes. Cleared by Dave Phillips 
  
4.3 Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1 No 
  
4.4 Other Implications 
  
4.4.1 No 
  
  
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the 

process undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to 

Page 39



Page 4 of 4 

Members.  The recommendations made to Members represent what 

Officers believe to be the best options available to the Council, in line 

with Council priorities, given the constraints on funding and the use to 

which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme. 

 
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial 

Regulations and to reset the capital programme in line with latest 

information. 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

REVENUE BUDGET & CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING 
AS AT 31st May 2016 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. This report provides the Month 2 monitoring statement on the City 

Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme for May 2016. The 

first section covers Revenue Budget Monitoring, and the Capital 

Programmes are reported from paragraph 14.  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 
 

Summary 

2. For the purpose of this report, we have presented the Council’s financial 

position in two elements, namely the underlying position on the services 

commissioned/provided by the Council, and the position on services that 

are commissioned and funded jointly with the health service. This is on 

the basis that the approach to achieving a balanced outturn for 2016/17 

will require parallel strategies.  

 

3. The latest monitoring position at month 2 for the services 

commissioned/provided by the Council shows the potential for a forecast 

overspend of £5.4m to the year end. It should be stressed that this is the 

forecast position before any additional mitigating savings are found, and 

that mitigating savings are currently being identified. It is therefore the 

current worst case scenario and does not represent an overspend 

currently incurred. The position is summarised in the table below: 

 

 

 

4. In terms of the month 2 overall forecast position of £5.4m overspend, the 

key reasons are: 

Portfolio FY Variance:

£000s

CYPF                          1,453

COMMUNITIES                   2,833

PLACE 995

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION (19)

RESOURCES                     214

CORPORATE                     (27)

GRAND TOTAL 5,449

Page 41



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

· Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) based on trends to 

date would be forecast to overspend by £1.5m primarily due to a 

£581k in Fieldwork Services resulting from pressures on social 

workers as a result of increased number of caseloads and £600k on 

Short Break and Direct Payments, due to the delay in anticipated 

savings.   

· Communities based on trends to date, shows a forecast overspend of 

£2.8m, due to demand pressures in Care and Support relating to 

Learning Disability Services and Long Term Support. 

· Place are showing a forecast overspend of £995k. This forecast 

overspend is primarily due to in-year budget pressures and a 

potential shortfall on delivering budget savings. 

· Resources are showing a forecast overspend of £214k due to a 

£200k undeliverable savings target and increased contract costs as 

a result of the delay in the implementation of the new finance system 

of £159k.  These overspends are partly offset by £111k reduction in 

spending in Commercial Services primarily due to vacant posts and 

a reduction in spending on supplies and services: 

5. In parallel to the above position, the Council faces a series of significant 

challenges in delivering savings in conjunction with the health care 

system. Since the 2016/17 revenue budget was set, various cost 

pressures and risks to funding levels have emerged. These challenges 

are as follows. 

· Children, Young People and Families (CYPF) are showing a forecast 

overspend of £750k as a result of not yet securing agreement to joint 

contributions with the CCG for children’s services. 

· Communities are showing a forecast overspend of £4.0m, due mainly 

to an emerging overspend against Commissioned Mental Health 

Services of £3.5m and £500k of pressures arising from CCG activity 

in the Learning Disability Service, as the profile of demand has 

shifted to costs funded by SCC and not the NHS.  A more integrated 

approach is being urgently explored.  

· Corporate are showing a forecast overspend of £5.8m, which is due 

to an anticipated shortfall in the Better Care Fund (BCF). We and the 

CCG agreed when the BCF was set up that £9.3m of funds would be 

made available in total by the two partners. The NHS would fund 

£5m, and the Council would fund £4.3m as a one-off in 2015/16, with 

the aim that the BCF would identify savings to eliminate the need for 

this contribution after 2015/16, or the CCG would identify a source of 

Page 42



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

funds for it. However we now have a significant concern that slippage 

on this approach is occurring without the underlying savings yet 

emerging on a joint budget of £280m. SCC is the junior financial 

partner in this arrangement. Consequently the £4.3m is now a 

corporate pressure, and in addition the CCG is currently only able to 

guarantee £3.5m of the £5m of its share of the funding, with a further 

£0.5m provisionally allocated to the BCF. We and the CCG continue 

to discuss the funding and management of the BCF.  

 
6. The combined impact of the forecast potential overspends in Council-run 

services and in services run jointly with the NHS is that the latest 

monitoring position at month 2 is a forecast overspend of £16.0m. The 

combined position is summarised in the table below.  

 

Portfolio   FY FY 

  Outturn Budget Variance 

  £000s £000s £000s 

CYPF                           69,198  66,995  2,203  

COMMUNITIES                    143,697  136,864  6,833  

PLACE 145,235  144,240  995  

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 1,988  2,007  (19) 

RESOURCES                      52,649  52,435  214  

CORPORATE                      (396,768) (402,541) 5,773  

GRAND TOTAL 15,999  -  15,999  

 

7. Although the latest position shows what is currently believed to be the 

worst case scenario, a significant amount of work will be required to 

bring forecast expenditure into line with budget.  This is being 

approached at this stage in two parallel strands, namely revenue budget 

management to contain the position outlined in paragraph 3, and 

bringing to a conclusion the discussions on the joint funding 

arrangements with the NHS. The forecast position would be an 

unsustainable outturn when compared to a General Fund reserve of 

£12.6m. 

  

8. Full details of all reductions in spend and overspends within Portfolios 

are detailed in Appendix 1. 

Public Health  

9. The Public Health ring-fenced grant is currently forecasting a £87k 

overspend against the original grant allocation. Further details of the 

forecast outturn position on Public Health are reported in Appendix 2.  

Page 43



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Housing Revenue Account 

10. The 2016-17 budget is based on an assumed in year surplus of £13m 

which is to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment 

Programme. In accordance with the HRA’s financial strategy any further 

in-year funds generated by the account will be used to provide further 

funding for the future HRA Capital Investment programme. 

 

11. As at month 2, early indications suggest a £1.3m improvement in the full 

year outturn position.  As such, the funding contribution to the capital 

investment programme will be revised from £13m to £14.3m.  Further 

details of the HRA forecast outturn can be found in Appendix 3 of this 

report. 
 

 

 

 

 

New Homes Bonus Fund 

  

  

£m 

Income Reserves as at 1/04/16 -7.1 

 

Anticipated 16/17 NHB Grant -9.3 

 

Total Income -16.4 

   Expenditure 2016/17 Spend to Date 0.4 

 

Forecast to Year End 2.4 

 

Future Years' Approved Commitments 1.3 

 

Total Expenditure 4.1 

   

 

Funds Available  for Investment -12.3 

 
12. Most of the expenditure to date has been on capital schemes improving 

London Road shop fronts and redeveloping the Arbourthorne 

area.  Officers are working on a number of substantial projects which will 

utilise the unspent balance and accelerate housing development and 

regeneration. These will be brought forward for approval by Members 

when ready. 

 

Collection Fund 

 

13. The Collection fund will be reported in month 3 to give time for a full 

appraisal of the first quarter’s position to be carried out.  Appendix 4 has 

been retained for the collection fund as blank for continuity for future 

reporting. 

 

 
Page 44



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Capital Summary 

 

14. At the end of May 2016, Project managers are forecasting to deliver a 

Capital Programme for 2016/17 of £234.4m compared to an approved 

programme of £217m, a difference of £17.4m. Two major adjustments to 

the budget are awaiting approval and will reduce the variance to be 

£8.1m below the budget. 

15. Further details of the Capital Programme monitoring and projects for 

approval are reported in Appendices 5 and 5.1. 

Implications of this Report 

 

Financial implications 

16. The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the City Council’s Budget Monitoring position for 2016/17, 

and as such it does not make any recommendations which have 

additional financial implications for the City Council. 

Equal opportunities implications  

17. There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.   

Legal implications  

18. There are no specific legal implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.   

Property implications 

19. Although this report deals, in part, with the Capital Programme, it does 

not, in itself, contain any property implications, nor are there any arising 

from the recommendations in this report. 
 

Recommendations 
 

20. Members are asked to: 

 

(a) Note the updated information and management actions provided by 

this report on the 2016/17 Revenue Budget position. 

 

(b) In relation to the Capital Programme: 

(i) Approve the proposed additions to the Capital Programme listed in 

Appendix 5.1, including the procurement strategies and delegations 

of authority to the Director of Commercial Services or nominated 

Page 45



2016/17  Budget Monitoring – Month 2 

Officer, as appropriate,  to award the necessary contracts following 

stage approval by Capital Programme Group; 

(ii) Approve the proposed variations, deletions and slippage in 

Appendix 5.1; 

And note 

(iii) The variations on Appendix 5.1 approved within the delegated 

authority of EMT; 

(iv) The variations authorised by directors under the delegated authority 

provisions; and 

(v) The latest position on the Capital Programme. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

21. To record formally changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial 

Regulations and to reset the capital programme in line with latest 

information. 
 

Alternative options considered 

22. A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the 

process undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to 

Members.  The recommendations made to Members represent what 

Officers believe to be the best options available to the Council, in line 

with Council priorities, given the constraints on funding and the use to 

which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 

Programme. 

 

Dave Phillips 
Interim Head of Finance 

 

Page 46



                 Appendix 1 

Portfolio Revenue Budget Monitoring Reports 2016/17  

 As at 31st May 2016 

 

Children Young People and Families (CYPF) 

Summary 

1. As at month 2 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn position of a 

£2.2m overspend.  The key reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

Children and Families - £2m forecast overspend, the key reasons are: 

· Fieldwork Services -  a forecast overspend of £581k, this is mainly 

due to a forecast overspend on fieldwork staffing budgets of £320k, 

due to pressures on social workers and an increase in the number of 

caseloads, the planned tapering down model of social workers has 

been delayed, at this present time, to meet this increase in demand. 

· Health Strategy – a forecast overspend of £600k on Short Break and 

Direct Payments, due to the delay in anticipated savings due in year. 

· Provider Services – a forecast overspend of £242k, due to delays in 

anticipated savings on integrated residential and disability services 

with health, due in year. 

· Early Intervention and Prevention – a forecast overspend of £545k 

due to anticipated savings of £200k on uncommitted contracts, offset 

by £750k as a result of not yet securing agreement to joint 

contributions with the CCG for children’s’ services, leaving a net 

overspend of £545k.  

 

Financial Results 

 

 

DSG 

2. The following is a summary of the position on DSG budgets at month 2: 

 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY             2,480 2,385 95

CHILDREN & FAMILIES           59,905 57,875 2,030

INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES (22) (35) 13

LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN 6,835 6,770 65

GRAND TOTAL 69,198 66,995 2,203

Page 47



                 Appendix 1 

 

. 

Commentary 

3. The following commentary reports of the main forecast variances at 

month 2. 

Business Strategy 

4. A forecast £95k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash 

limit and £145k forecast reduction in spend on DSG. 

5. The main reason for the forecast variance on DSG is due to a reduction 

in spend on pension costs of £158k. 

Children and Families  

6. A forecast £2m overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash 

limit and a £25k reduction in spend on DSG. 

7. The main reasons for the forecast variance on cash limit is due to: 

· Fieldwork Services -  a forecast overspend of £581k, this is mainly 

due to a forecast overspend on fieldwork staffing budgets of £320k, 

due to pressures on social workers and an increase in the number of 

caseloads, the planned tapering down model of social workers has 

been delayed, at this present time, to meet this increase in demand. 

· Health Strategy – a forecast overspend of £600k on Short Break and 

Direct Payments, due to the delay in anticipated savings due in year. 

· Provider Services – a forecast overspend of £242k, due to delays in 

anticipated savings on integrated residential and disability services 

with health, due in year. 

· Early Intervention and Prevention – a forecast overspend of £545k 

due to anticipated savings of £200k on uncommitted contracts, offset 

by a reduced expected contribution of £750k from the CCG, leaving a 

net overspend of £545k 

Inclusion and Learning Service  

8. A forecast £13k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash 

limit and £312k forecast overspend on DSG. 

 Month 2 
£000 

Business Strategy (145) 

Children and Families (25) 

Inclusion and Learning Services 312 

Lifelong Learning, Skills and 
Communities 

16 

 158 

Page 48



                 Appendix 1 

9. The main reason for the forecast variance on DSG is due to a forecast 

overspend of £298k on SEN placements, as a result of the full year 

impact of a number of placements made in 2015/16. 

Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities 

10. A forecast £65k overspend (shown in the table above) relating to cash 

limit and £16k forecast overspend on DSG. There are no significant 

variances to report. 

 

Communities Portfolio 

Summary 

11. As at month 2, the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an over 

spend of £6.8m. The key reasons for the outturn position are: 

Performance, Information and Planning underspend of £456k:  

· The underspend position for Business Strategy is mainly due to the 

Portfolio-wide pay inflation budget of £400k being released (pay 

inflation costs are reflected in expenditure across the Portfolio).  The 

non-achievement of the prior year savings target in Planning and 

Performance is resulting in a forecast over spend £446k which is 

offset by a £231k underspend on Business Support pay along with a 

£142k underspend against the mail and insurance SLA charges.   

 Care & Support overspend of £3.4m:  

· Access, Prevention and Reablement forecasts a net overspend of 

£37k.  There is a forecast over spend of £71k mainly as a result of 

use of agency social work staff, this is partly offset by an under spend 

of £34k due to pay savings in Occupational Therapy Team.  

· Learning Disabilities returned an outturn of £2.8m overspent. This is 

made up of:-  

o Purchasing LD is forecasting an over spend of £2.6m.  £1.3m of 

this overspend is a result of the roll forward cost of clients from 

2015/16 and an estimated additional costs of Joint Package of 

Care (JPOC), an estimated £664k of undeliverable savings from 

the 2016/17 BIP process and estimated new clients for 2016/17 

costing £645k. 

o LD Assessment and Care Management is forecasting an over 

spend of £506k due to full year cost of additional review teams. 

o LD Provider services is forecasting an under spend of £303k due 

to reductions in use of agency staff and bank staff.  
Page 49



                 Appendix 1 

· Long Term Support is showing an over spend of £1.7m.  This 

comprises the net position of an over spend in adults purchasing of 

£1.7m, with an under spend across the remainder of the service of 

£80k; this under spend is predominantly the saving against Forge 

Centre (£64k) due to reduction in contracts along with a small net 

saving in social work costs. 

· Provider Services is showing an under spend against budget of £60k.  

There is a £181k reduction in spend on Carers in the Adult Placement 

Shared Lives Service.  City Wide Care Alarms reports an over spend of 

£384k as a result of lower income than budgeted.  Care4You Business 

and Performance and Head of Service Budgets report a combined 

£305k reduction in spend on staffing.  Community Support Services 

report an under spend of £77k on salary costs. Reablement Services 

report an over spend of £120k which has arisen as a result of the 

service incurring additional staff costs relating to planned efficiencies 

delivered later than expected. 

·   Contributions to Care has an over achievement of income £1.0m 

against budget.  The main overachievements are in Integrated Charge 

income of £233k, Continuing Health Care Income of £803k and 

Residential of £143k. This over performance is offset by a small 

underachievement of Property Income of £82k and a variance to 

budget on Public Health Direct payments of £52k. Additional forecast 

income has been included for un-split JPOC clients through the year. 

Commissioning overspend of £3.6m:  

· A forecast reduction in spend of £90k is reported by Commissioned 

Housing which is mainly due to slight delay in implementation of new 

Housing Related Support Contracts. 

· An over spend against Commissioned Mental Health Services of 

£3.5m. This is made up of a £3.5m overspend in Mental Health 

purchasing and £150k overspend in the S75 Mental Health contract 

offset by forecast underspends on the Older people Mental Health 

contract of £103k and the Partnership and Grant Aid budget of £54k. 

Further negotiations are on-going with the Care Trust to determine the 

cost of the S75 contract but current negotiations are reflected in the 

forecast overspend. There is an on-going conversation with the CCG to 

enable joint planning to be done in order to bring the £3.5m overspend 

down within 2016-17. Future forecasting will be reflective of outcomes 

in this work. 

Page 50



                 Appendix 1 

· An over spend on Public Health Drug and Alcohol (DACT) of £132k. 

The majority of this is due to a forecast overspend on non-contract 

treatment costs of £124k. 

· Social Care Commissioning Service forecasts an over spend of £52k.  

There is a forecast overspend of £115k on the British Red Cross 

contract for Independent Living Solutions (Equipment and Adaptations) 

partly offset by an under spend in quality contracts. 

 Community Services overspend of £309k:  

· There is an over spend of £207k in Locality Management, primarily 

relating to the non-achievement of 2015/16 savings targets £108k, pay 

overspend £56k and loss of income from Sheffield Teaching Hospitals 

£57k. There is a further overspend in Libraries Service of £49k mainly 

due to possible cost of redundancies and loss of World Metal Index 

Income (Service closes in July 2016). There is a £54k forecast 

overspend in PH on Community Wellbeing programme contracts. 

Housing General Fund underspends of £22k: 

· The Housing General Fund is forecasting an overall under spend £22k 

primarily due to lower than expected uptake of grants from the Local 

Assistance Scheme of £26k, a reduction in salary costs of £54k across 

several areas due to a high number of vacancies as a result of an MER 

(due to be completed in August), income from water rates commission 

being higher than budget by £25k and over achievement of income of 

£15k across the remaining area. These under spends are offset by a 

forecasted £98k over spend within Sustainable City which is still 

subject to review.  

Financial Results  

 

 

Commentary 

12. Commentary will be added from Month 3 to explain the movements from 

Month 2   

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

PIP 4,769 5,224 (455)

CARE AND SUPPORT              100,398 96,996 3,402

COMMISSIONING    27,950 24,352 3,598

COMMUNITY SERVICES            6,782 6,472 310

HOUSING GENERAL FUND          3,798 3,820 (22)

GRAND TOTAL 143,697 136,864 6,833

Page 51



                 Appendix 1 

Place Portfolio 

Summary 

13. As at month 2 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an £996k 

overspend. The key reasons for the forecast outturn position are: 

· Planned Budget Savings £457k overspend – reflects a relatively 

small shortfall against the £9.9m planned savings approved at March 

Council. 

· Other Net Pressures £470k overspend – includes shortfalls against 

planned income within the Moor market £366k and City Regeneration 

Division £200k. 

Financial Results 

 

 

Commentary 

14. The following commentary concentrates on the key risks  

Development Services  

15. The current forecast for the service is a £207k overspend. 

16. However, it should be noted that this position assumes the delivery of 

£1.5m of approved budget savings within the Streets Ahead of £1.2m 

and car parking activities of £0.3m, which are forecast to be 

implemented in the second half of the financial year.  Any slippage in 

these timescales for delivery would have a significant impact on the 

current reported position. 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION 32,482 32,144 338

CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS      - - -

CREATIVE SHEFFIELD            2,761 2,378 383

CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT         29,809 29,742 67

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 80,183 79,976 207

PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH           - 0 0

-

GRAND TOTAL 145,235 144,240 995

Page 52



                 Appendix 1 

Resources Portfolio 

Summary 

17. As at month 2 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of an 

overspend of £214k. The key reasons for the forecast outturn position 

are: 

· due to a £200k undeliverable savings target 

· £159k overspend in Finance due to increased contract costs as a result 

of the delay in the implementation of new finance system. 

Offset by: 

· £111k reduction in spending in Commercial Services primarily due to 

vacant posts and a reduction in spending on supplies and services. 

Financial Results 

 

Commentary 

18. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the 

previous month. As this is the first monitoring report of this financial year 

there are no changes to report. 

 
 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

BUSINESS CHANGE & INFORMATION SOLUTIONS 950 1,034 (84)

COMMERCIAL SERVICES           604 715 (111)

COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (2,107) (2,068) -39

0

CUSTOMER SERVICES             2,729 2,524 205

FINANCE                       4,560 4,401 159

HUMAN RESOURCES               3,477 3,410 67

LEGAL SERVICES                3,515 3,530 (15)

RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNING   209 174 35

TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT  16,340 16,290 50

TOTAL 30,277 30,010 267

CENTRAL COSTS                 21,966 22,019 (53)

HOUSING BENEFIT 406 406 -

GRAND TOTAL 52,649 52,435 214

Page 53



                 Appendix 1 

Policy, Performance and Communications Portfolio 

Summary 

19. As at month 2 the Portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of a 

reduction in spending of £19k. The key reasons for the forecast outturn 

position are: 

· Small under spends across the PPC service. 

Financial Results 

 

 

Commentary 

20. The following commentary concentrates on the changes from the 

previous month. As this is the first monitoring report of this financial year 

there are no changes to report. 

 

Corporate  

Summary 

21. As at month 2, the Corporate portfolio is forecasting a full year outturn of 

a £5.8m overspend. 

· Corporate Expenditure:  Corporate wide budgets that are not 

allocated to individual services / portfolios, including capital financing 

costs and the provision for redundancy / severance costs.  

· Corporate income: Revenue Support Grant, locally retained 

business rates and Council tax income, some specific grant income 

and contributions to/from reserves. 

Financial Results 

22. The table below shows the items which are classified as Corporate and 

which include: 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

ACCOUNTABLE BODY ORGANISATIONS 0 0 0 

POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 2,123 2,142 -19 

PUBLIC HEALTH (135) (135) 0 

GRAND TOTAL 1,988 2,007 (19)

Page 54



                 Appendix 1 

 

Commentary 

23. Corporate are showing a forecast overspend of £5.8m, which is due to 

the anticipated shortfall in the Better Care Fund (BCF). We have a 

significant concern that after 18 months the BCF has not realised any 

savings on a joint budget of £280m. 

Service Forecast FY FY

Outturn Budget Variance

£000s £000s £000s

CAPITAL FINANCING       34,176 34,205 (29)

CORPORATE ITEMS (430,944) (436,746) 5,802

GRAND TOTAL (396,768) (402,541) 5,773

Page 55



  Appendix 2 

PUBLIC HEALTH BUDGET MONITORING 

AS AT 31st MAY 2016  

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. To report on the 2016/17 Public Health grant spend across the Council for 

the month ending 31st May 2016 

2. The report provides details of the forecast full year spend of Public Health 

grant compared to budget.  

3. The net reported position for each portfolio/service area would normally be 

zero as public health spend is matched by a draw down of public health 

grant. For the purposes of this report, and in order to identify where 

corrective action may be necessary, we have shown actual expenditure 

compared to budget where there is an underspend position.   
 

Summary 

4. At month 2 the overall position was a forecast overspend of £87k which is 

summarised in the table below. 

 

Portfolio Forecast 

Full Year 

Expenditure 

Full Year 

Expenditure 

Budget 

Full Year 

Variance 

at m2 

FY 

Variance 

Forecast 

at m1 

Movement 

from Prior 

Month 

CYPF 17,405 17,408 (3) 0 (3) 

Communities 12,417 12,427 (10) 0 (10) 

Place 2,659 2,714 (55) 0 (55) 

Director of PH 2,068 1,913 155 0 155 

Total 

Expenditure 

34,549 34,462 87 0 87 

 

5. Key reasons for the forecast under spend are: 

· (£3k) underspend in CYP virtually forecast to budget 

· (£10k) underspend in Communities virtually forcast to budget 

· (£55k) underspend in Place mainly due to a vacant post.  

Page 56



  Appendix 2 

· £155k over spend in Director of Public Health budget which is a 

forecast under spend of £95k on salaries and supplies and services 

offset by an over spend of £250k on the contingency budget. This 

requires to be reprofiled as the net grant required will only be £135k 

as per the previous year. 
 

Page 57



  Appendix 3 
 
 

HRA Revenue Budget Monitoring 2016/17– 

As at 31
st

 May 2016 

Purpose of this Report 

1. To provide a summary report on the HRA 2016/17 revenue budget for 

the month ending 31 May 2016, and agree any actions necessary. 

2. The content of this report will be used as the basis of the content of the 

budget monitoring report to the Executive Management Team and to 

Members. 

Summary 

3. The HRA Business Plan is based on the principle of ensuring that 

investment and services required for council housing is met by income 

raised in the HRA. 

4. The 2016/17 budget is based on an assumed in year position of £13m 

which is to be used to fund the ongoing HRA Capital Investment 

Programme. In accordance with the HRA’s financial strategy any further 

in- year funds generated by the account will be used to provide further 

funding for the future HRA Capital Investment programme. 

5. As at month 2 early indications suggest a £1.3m improvement in the full 

year outturn position of £1.3m. As such, the funding contribution to the 

capital investment programme will be revised from £13m to £14.3m 

(shown in the table). This is in line with the HRA Business Plan which 

sets out the Council’s plans and priorities for council housing over the 

next five years. Capital investment is to be made on improving council 

housing with a focus on works such as replacement heating systems, 

insulation and energy efficiency, new roofs, improvements to communal 

areas as well as building or buying new/replacement council housing. 

Main areas contributing to the outturn include a net increase in income of 

£132k primarily as a result of a reduced level of bad debt provision offset 

by a higher turnover of vacant properties; an increase in other income of 

£74k mainly due to an increase in service charge income; a reduction in 

overall running costs of £936k and a reduction of £161k due to revised 

borrowing assumptions.   

 

 

 

 

Page 58



  Appendix 3 
 
 

6. Financial Results 

Housing  Revenue Account (excluding 

Community Heating)

FY Outturn 

£000's

FY Budget 

£000's

FY Variance 

£000's

1.NET INCOME DWELLINGS (146,882) (146,750) (132)

2.OTHER INCOME (6,598) (6,524) (74)

3.HOMES-REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 32,867 32,870 (3)

4.DEPRECIATION-CAP FUND PROG 39,436 39,436 -

5.TENANT SERVICES 51,919 52,855 (936)

6.INTEREST ON BORROWING 14,969 15,130 (161)

Total (14,291) (12,983) (1,306)

7.CONTRIBUTION TO CAP PROG 14,291 12,983 1,306  
 
Community Heating 
 

The budgeted position for Community Heating is a draw down from 
Community Heating reserves of £293k.  As at month 2 the forecast 
position is a draw down from reserves of £200k, an improvement of £93k 
This is mainly due to a delay in the metering project together with lower 
than expected usage due to the mild weather. 

 

Community Heating

FY Outturn 

£000's

FY Budget 

£000's

FY Variance 

£000's

Income (2,851) (2,723) (128)

Expenditure 3,051 3,016 35

200 293 (93)  

Housing Revenue Account Risks 

        There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on 

the 30 year HRA business plan.  As well as the introduction of Universal 

Credit, the Government has announced a number of further changes in 

the Housing and Planning bill and Welfare Reform and Work bill. These 

include a revision to social housing rent policy, which will reduce rents for 

the next three years. This will have a considerable impact on the 

resources available to the HRA. In addition, the Government’s “Pay to 

Stay” proposals and other changes in the Housing and Planning bill will 

impact on both tenants and the HRA business plan. Work is continually 

ongoing to assess the financial impact of these. Other identified risks to 

the HRA are: 

· Interest rates:  fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have 

always been recognised as a risk to the HRA. 

· Repairs and Maintenance:  existing and emerging risks within the 
revenue repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for 
example due to adverse weather conditions) and future changes to 
contractual arrangements. 

Page 59



Appendix 4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is left intentionally blank. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

s page is left intentionally blank. 

 

Page 60



  Appendix 5 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING  

AS AT 31
st

 MAY 2016 
 

Summary 

 

1. The forecast for 2016/17 is £234.4m compared to an Approved 

programme of £217m, a difference of £17.4m. Two major adjustments 

to the budget are awaiting approval and will reduce the variance to be 

£8.1m below the budget. 

2. Firstly, project managers have requested that £35.1m of unspent capital 

approvals be slipped forward into 2016/17 which would raise the budget 

to £252.1m. This would create a shortfall of £27.7m by the year end. 

3. Secondly, and part recognising the potential underspend in 2016/17, 

Housing Services are seeking to re-profile £9.6m of spend on the 

Roofing, Communal areas window and door replacement projects into 

future years.  This recognises the lower levels of work arising at each 

property.  

4. So, at Month 2, the table below shows that the underlying variance 

against the expected revised budget will be £8.1m.  

5. The chart below shows that the capital programme spend rates are 

almost identical to 2015/16 where the Outturn was £232m, very close to 

the current forecast of £234m. 

 

Financials 2016/17 

Portfolio Spend to 

date

Budget 

to Date

Variance 

to date

Full Year 

forecast

Full Year 

Budget as 

Q-TIER

Slippage 

adjustments 

awaiting 

approval

Major 

reprofile 

awaiting 

approval

Revised 

Budget

Full Year 

Variance 

on 

Revised 

Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

CYPF 2,501 4,351 (1,850) 31,924 29,943 2,825 32,768 (844)

Place 10,389 6,917 3,472 57,677 36,126 23,917 60,044 (2,367)

Housing 8,300 8,122 178 95,847 104,732 5,276 (9,597) 100,411 (4,564)

Highways 901 1,638 (738) 8,627 6,863 1,828 8,691 (64)

Communities (8) 35 (43) 307 315 10 325 (18)

Resources 465 470 (5) 13,203 12,191 896 13,087 117 

Corporate 4,467 4,467 0 26,803 26,803 379 27,182 (379)

Grand Total 27,016 26,001 1,015 234,388 216,972 35,131 (9,597) 242,506 (8,118)

Page 61



  Appendix 5 

Forecast trends 

 

Capital Programme  

 

6. The revised programme shows a net increase of £36m. The main 

additions to the programme include £5.9m for the further development 

of the Olympic Legacy Park, £5.8m to procure vehicles in preparation 

for the in-sourcing of the Housing Repairs activity and £2.9m for 

improving bus services in North Sheffield, £1.4m for School places 

expansion across the city. 

2016-17 2017-18 Future Total

£m £m £m £m

Council Approved Budget 195.2 147.1 207.5 549.8

Additions 21.3 0.3 0.0 21.6

Variations 0.0 3.6 10.2 13.9

Slippage & Acceleration 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5

Month 2 Approved Budget 217.0 151.0 217.7 585.8

Page 62



  Appendix 5 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

7. From the start of this year the Council has introduced an improved 

system of reporting and monitoring project delivery. This will collect in 

one place, all project highlight reports which will be accessible to all 

users and, from August, provide the basis for workflow driven meeting 

agendas for each stage of the Gateway Approval process.  The 

progress of a project will be readily evident. 

8. This should give better visibility of performance and lead to improved 

project controls because: 

· Project Managers will create their monthly highlight reports - 

showing key issues, risks and items for the Sponsor to decide on 

- in SharePoint and these will be visible to all as well as providing 

a central repository which can be used in future external funding 

audit work; 

· Project sponsors can review and approve the reports within 

SharePoint; and 

· Programme Boards will receive a “dashboard” report showing the 

status of projects.  This should lead to improved supervision, 

better control and thus improved delivery performance of 

projects. 

 

Commentary   

9. The Top 20 projects in the Capital Programme accounts for 70% of the 

current 2016/17 budget.  The key forecast variances from Budget at 

Month 2, after adjustments for slippage and Housing re-profiles include: 

· Housing programme is £4.6m below budget of which £4.4m is 

slippage on the New Build Council Housing programme.  The 

contractor who was initially appointed went into administration. The 

new contractor is yet to submit its programme of works at which 

point a more realistic budget profile will be put in place; 

· Place is forecasting to be £2.4m below budget of which The 

Sheffield Retail Quarter project is £1m below budget and will be re-

profiled following submission of the new development plans to 

Cabinet in July; 

Page 63



  Appendix 5 

· £0.6m of slippage on the Olympic Legacy Park infrastructure; 

· £0.4m slippage on the Green Spaces programme. 

· £0.2m of slippage on the M1 gateway Public Art project; 

· The CYPF programme is forecast to be £0.8m below Budget due 

with two major variances on Pipworth Plant Room (£476k) and 

Rainbow Forge Heating replacement (£210k), both due to tenders 

being below budget. 

Risks 

10. Two projects, Housing Acquisitions and OLP Infrastructure  currently 

have Amber Financial RAG ratings due to the likelihood they will not 

achieve their forecast budget this year. 

Approvals 

11. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with the 

Council’s agreed capital approval process.  

12. Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 

approval category: 

· 7 additions to the capital programme with a value of over £90m. 

·  5 variations to the capital programme amounting to a net increase of 

£1m. 

13. Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 

5.1. 

 
 

 

Page 64



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

S
c

h
e

m
e
 D

e
s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 

A
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
T

y
p

e
 

V
a

lu
e
 

£
0

0
0
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

 
 

 
 

S
T

R
O

N
G

 E
C

O
N

O
M

Y
 :

- 
 

 
 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 R
e

ta
il
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
P

h
a
s

e
 1

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 f
ir
s
t 
p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 R
e
ta

il 
Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 

a
n

d
 a

h
e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
n

s
is

ts
 o

f 
a

 b
u

ild
in

g
 k

n
o
w

n
 a

s
 b

lo
c
k
 J

 o
f 

th
e

 
S

R
Q

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 u

p
 o

f 
O

ff
ic

e
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o
n

 a
b

o
v
e

 R
e
ta

il 
a

n
d

 F
o

o
d

 &
 

B
e

v
e

ra
g
e

 u
n

it
s
. 
T

h
e

 o
ff

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
-l
e

t 
to

 H
S

B
C

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 r
e

ta
in

 a
 k

e
y
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

r 
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

te
n

a
n

ts
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
. 

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

id
e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 H

S
B

C
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 a

n
c
h
o

r 
te

n
a

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 R
e

ta
il
 Q

u
a

rt
e

r 
a

s
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
o
n

ly
 h

e
lp

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

n
 e

a
rl
y
 p

h
a

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f

o
o

tf
a

ll 
a

n
d

 
s
p

e
n
d

in
g
 p

o
w

e
r 

to
 h

e
lp

 u
n
d

e
rp

in
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

c
t 
a

s
 a

 c
a

ta
ly

s
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 w

id
e

r 
s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

C
o

s
t 

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 C
o

s
ts

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 -
 £

7
0

.3
m

  
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
m

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 -
 £

1
.4

m
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 F

e
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

 -
 £

4
.3

m
 

O
th

e
r 

F
e
e

s
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
- 

£
1

.3
m

 
C

a
p

it
a

lis
e

d
 I
n

te
re

s
t 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

- 
£

4
.3

m
 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
it
h

 f
u

ll 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 c
a
b

in
e

t 
in

 J
u

ly
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

8
1

,9
6

3
 

F
e

e
s
 v

ia
 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 
o

n
 m

a
in

 S
R

Q
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t.
 

Y
o

rc
iv

ils
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

. 
 

 

 
 

 
 

T
H

R
IV

IN
G

 N
E

IG
H

B
O

U
R

H
O

O
D

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
 

 
 

 

G
R

E
A

T
 P

L
A

C
E

 T
O

 L
IV

E
 :

- 
 

 
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s

 
 

 
 

S
tr

e
e

ts
 A

h
e

a
d

 E
n

h
a

n
c

e
m

e
n

ts
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 e
n

h
a
n

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 m
a

x
im

u
m

 b
e
n

e
fi
t 

a
n

d
 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 a
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 w
o

rk
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 A
h

e
a

d
 

c
o

re
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

. 
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

7
0

9
 

  

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 A
m

e
y
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 
A

h
e

a
d

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

 

Page 65



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t’
s
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

 O
v
e

r 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 t
h

e
 

c
o

re
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 u

p
g
ra

d
e

 f
o

o
tw

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
s
. 

 T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
i n

c
lu

d
e

s
 £

9
k
 f
o

r 
S

ta
g
e

 F
o

u
r 

R
o
a

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

u
d

it
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 p

e
r 

s
c
h
e

m
e

 f
ro

m
 

D
a

n
g
e

r 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 £

1
,5

0
0
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 1
6
/1

7
 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 (

L
T

P
) 

 
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
6
/1

7
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

·
 

G
le

a
d

le
s
s
 R

o
a

d
 z

e
b

ra
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
 (

in
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 K
e

y
 B

u
s
 R

o
u

te
) 

·
 

W
ilk

in
s
o

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 
a

n
d

 G
lo

s
s
o

p
 R

o
a

d
, 
2

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

·
 

H
a

rc
o

u
rt

 R
o

a
d

/C
ro

o
k
e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 b

u
ild

 o
u

t 

·
 

O
w

le
r 

L
a

n
e

 c
ro

s
s
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

  

·
 

F
u

rn
is

s
 A

v
e

n
u

e
 z

e
b

ra
 

·
 

M
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r 
R

o
a
d

 z
e

b
ra

 t
a

c
ti
le

s
 

·
 

J
e

p
s
o
n

 R
o

a
d

 a
n

d
 N

e
w

m
a

n
 D

ri
v
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
  

 2
0

1
7

/1
8
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 6
 m

o
n
th

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 A
m

e
y
 

z
o

n
e

 w
o

rk
 

A
c

c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 -
  

T
h
e

 A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 a
c
tu

a
l 
(a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
e

a
r 

o
f)

 
ro

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
o

lli
s
io

n
s
, 
p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 f

o
c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 k

ill
e

d
 a

n
d
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 (

K
S

Is
) 

c
a

s
u

a
lt
ie

s
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 r

o
a

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 e

n
g
in

e
e

ri
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

t 
s
it
e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

in
ju

ry
 

c
o

lli
s
io

n
 r

a
te

s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 s
c
h
e

m
e

s
 a

re
 f

u
n
d

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 P

la
n
 F

u
n
d

in
g
 

(L
T

P
) 

T
w

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
:  

L
a

n
g

s
e

tt
 &

 F
o

rb
e

s
 R

o
a

d
 (

H
il

ls
b

o
ro

u
g

h
) 

T
h

is
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 i
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 j
o
u

rn
e

y
 t

im
e

 r
e

lia
b

ili
ty

 (
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

 
s
a
fe

ty
 o

u
ts

id
e

 S
a

c
re

d
 H

e
a

rt
 s

c
h

o
o

l)
 b

y
 a

llo
w

in
g
 b

u
s
e

s
 t
o

 t
u

rn
 l
e
ft

 o
u
t 

o
f 

F
o

rb
e

s
 R

o
a

d
 t
o

 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
h

e
ir
 r

o
u

te
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 t
u

rn
 w

it
h

in
 H

ill
s
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 I
n

te
rc

h
a

n
g
e

 
 

     
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

     
2

0
0
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 v
ia

 
A

m
e

y
 S

tr
e
e

ts
 

A
h

e
a
d

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t.
 

C
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
T

e
n

d
e

r 
fo

r 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

. 

A
c

c
id

e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 -
 F

ir
th

 P
a

rk
 -

B
o

ls
o

v
e

r 
R

o
a

d
 

A
 s

m
a

lle
r 

a
c
c
id

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 (

th
a

t 
h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
0

1
 

 
T

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 A
m

e
y
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 

Page 66



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

in
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 a

t 
F

ir
th

 P
a

rk
. 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 F

ir
th

 P
a

rk
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 t

ie
 i
n

 w
it
h

 
S

tr
e

e
ts

 A
h

e
a

d
 c

o
re

 w
o

rk
s
. 

 
 

A
h

e
a
d

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

D
a

n
g

e
r 

R
e

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

im
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
o

a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

t 
s
it
e

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 h

ig
h

 
c
o

lli
s
io

n
 h

is
to

ry
 b

u
t 
a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 ‘
d

a
n

g
e

ro
u

s
’.
 T

h
e

 D
a
n

g
e

r 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 a

 c
it
y
w

id
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

n
c
e

n
tr

a
te

s
 l
e

s
s
 o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
c
a

s
u

a
lt
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
, 
a

n
d

 
m

o
re

 o
n

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 d
a

n
g
e

r 
o
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
C

it
y
.  

 It
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 ‘
w

a
lk

 a
n
d

 b
u

ild
’ 
ty

p
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
P

h
a

s
e

 6
, 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
re

lim
in

a
ry

 
in

-h
o

u
s
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
s
 b

u
t 
a
v
o

id
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
s
tl
y
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 d
e

s
ig

n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

e
rh

a
p

s
 e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 

fo
r 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 s

im
p

le
 s

c
h
e

m
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 m
e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 g

o
 s

tr
a

ig
h

t 
to

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 f

a
s
te

r.
 T

h
e

 c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£

8
k
 i
n

 2
0

1
6

/1
7
 o

n
 p

h
a

s
e

 6
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 f

e
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

le
ra

te
 a

n
y
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
p

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
h
o

o
l 
K

e
e

p
 C

le
a

r 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

 F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 (

L
T

P
)  

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
3

2
 

  

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 A
m

e
y
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 
A

h
e

a
d

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

N
o

rt
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 B
e

tt
e

r 
B

u
s

e
s

 B
lo

c
k

 A
 

B
lo

c
k
 A

 o
f 

th
is

 £
2
.9

m
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
a

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 f

o
u

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
b

u
s
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

n
 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 B
u

s
 C

o
rr

id
o

r 
n

a
m

e
ly

: 
1
. 

S
t 

M
ic

h
a

e
l’s

 R
o
a

d
, 
E

c
c
le

s
fi
e

ld
  

2
. 

S
p

it
a

ll 
H

ill
/H

a
llc

a
r 

S
tr

e
e

t 
 

3
. 

S
p

it
a

l 
H

ill
/S

a
v
ile

 S
t 

 
4
. 

H
u

c
k
lo

w
 R

o
a

d
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 1

 -
3

 h
a

v
e
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 i
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 c
lo

s
e

 t
h

is
 p

h
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

th
e

 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

“B
lo

c
k
 B

”.
  

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
1

4
 

N
/A

 

N
o

rt
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 B
e

tt
e

r 
B

u
s

e
s

 G
ro

u
p

 B
 -

 B
lo

c
k

 B
 

B
lo

c
k
 B

 o
f 

th
is

 £
2
.9

m
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 w

a
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 4

 x
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 b
u

s
 r

e
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

n
 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 B
u
s
 C

o
rr

id
o

r 
n

a
m

e
ly

: 
1

. 
1

 R
u

tl
a
n

d
 R

o
a

d
/C

o
o

k
s
w

o
o

d
 R

o
a

d
/M

in
n

a
 R

o
a
d

 
2

. 
2

 F
ir
th

 P
a

rk
 C

e
n

tr
e
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
2

3
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

v
ia

 A
m

e
y
 S

tr
e

e
ts

 
A

h
e

a
d

 C
o
n

tr
a

c
t 

Page 67



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

3
. 

3
 B

a
rn

s
le

y
 R

o
a

d
/O

rp
h
a

n
a

g
e

 R
o
a

d
 b

u
s
 l
a

y
-b

y
  

4
. 

4
 B

a
rn

s
le

y
 R

o
a

d
/H

a
rt

le
y
 B

ro
o

k
 R

o
a

d
, 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 L
a

n
e

 T
o

p
 

 H
u

c
k
lo

w
 R

o
a

d
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 s
lip

p
e

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

is
 p

h
a
s
e

.  
 A

 f
in

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

, 
n

o
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 r
e
a
lis

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

o
 f

a
r,

 w
ill

 b
e

 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 o

n
c
e

 c
o

s
ts

 a
re

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 f
o

r 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 3

 a
n
d

 4
. 

N
o

rt
h

 S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 B
e

tt
e

r 
B

u
s

e
s

 G
ro

u
p

 B
lo

c
k

 A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 
A

 d
ra

w
 d

o
w

n
 o

f 
£
9

k
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 S

h
e
ff

ie
ld

 B
e

tt
e

r 
B

u
s
e

s
 S

c
h
e

m
e

 t
o

 
a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 
H

u
c
k
lo

w
 r

o
a

d
 i
n

 B
lo

c
k
 B

  

 
-9

 
 

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
y
c

li
n

g
 S

c
h

e
m

e
s

 
T

h
is

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 n

e
w

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 r

o
u

te
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
fo

rm
in

g
 p

a
rt

 o
f,

 a
n
d

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ti
n

g
 i
n

to
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 f

ro
m

 r
e

s
id

e
n
ti
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 t
o

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

, 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

tr
ip

 g
e

n
e

ra
ti
n

g
 s

it
e

s
/ 

lo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

C
o

s
t 

a
re

 n
o

w
: 

 £
1

7
K

 f
o

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
ro

u
te

 -
 6

k
 t
o

p
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
7

k
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

u
rv

e
y
 4

k
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fe

e
s
 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 L

o
c
a

l 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
 F

u
n

d
in

g
 (

L
T

P
) 

£
5

K
 f
o

r 
H

a
lla

m
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
(p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 k
n

o
w

n
 a

s
 S

h
e

a
f 

V
a

lle
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l)
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fe

e
s
 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 E
x
e

m
p

la
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 (

S
T

E
P

) 
 P

a
rk

in
g
 S

u
rv

e
y
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
7

K
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 C

e
n

tr
a

l 
R

o
u
te

, 
m

o
re

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
w

ill
 h

e
lp

 u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 m

in
im

is
e

, 
a

n
d

 m
it
ig

a
te

 f
o
r,

 a
n

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

lo
s
s
 o

n
 o

n
-s

tr
e
e

t 
p

a
rk

in
g
 

a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

, 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 i
f 

d
e
m

a
n

d
 i
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fo

r 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

ff
ic

 c
a

lm
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 e

.g
. 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 c
le

a
r 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e

w
a

y
 w

id
th

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
v
e

h
ic

le
 s

p
e

e
d

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 a

llo
w

 u
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 
2

2
 

 
N

/A
 

P
a

rk
s

 
 

 
 

G
ra

v
e

s
 P

a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

1
3

5
 

T
h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

Page 68



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

M
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 p

a
rk

’s
 p

o
p
u

la
ri
ty

 s
te

m
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 l
e

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
 

c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 i
t 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 G

ra
v
e

s
 P

a
rk

 A
n

im
a

l 
F

a
rm

 i
s
 h

o
m

e
 t
o

 r
a

re
 b

re
e

d
 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
. 

G
ra

v
e

s
 P

a
rk

 c
o

n
ta

in
s
 t
w

o
 p

la
y
g
ro

u
n

d
s
; 

w
ild

lif
e

 a
n
d

 f
is

h
in

g
 p

o
n
d

s
; 

s
p

o
rt

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 (

3
 s

p
o
rt

s
 

p
a

v
ili

o
n

s
, 

b
o

w
lin

g
 g

re
e

n
s
, 
fo

o
tb

a
ll,

 t
e
n

n
is

, 
c
ri
c
k
e

t 
a
n

d
 p

it
c
h

 a
n

d
 p

u
tt
);

 w
o

o
d

la
n

d
 a

n
d
 n

a
tu

re
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

rm
a

l 
la

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
- 

a
ll 

o
v
e

r 
lo

o
k
in

g
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ill
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
a

k
 D

is
tr

ic
t.

 
 T

h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
ri
g
in

a
te

s
 f

ro
m

 i
n
c
o

m
e
 r

a
is

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
a

le
 o

f 
C

o
b

n
a

r 
C

o
tt
a

g
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

, 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
a

 p
a

c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
a
ll 

u
s
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rk

. 
 Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
: 

re
lo

c
a
t i
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
o

ile
ts

, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 s

u
p

p
ly

, 
2

 n
e

w
 

s
ta

b
le

s
, 
im

p
ro

v
e

 r
o

s
e

 g
a

rd
e

n
, 

re
fu

rb
is

h
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

 g
a

te
s
, 

im
p

ro
v
e

 p
la

n
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 f

o
o

tp
a

th
s
 

p
ro

c
u

re
d
 a

s
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 W
o
rk

s
 

w
ill

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
ly

 b
e

 
p

ro
c
u

re
d
 v

ia
 3

 
q
u

o
te

s
; 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 C

S
S

R
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t;
 

a
n

d
 u

s
in

g
 i
n

 
h

o
u

s
e

 s
u

p
p

lie
rs

. 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 A

n
d

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 
 

 
 

W
a

s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 W
a
s
te

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

R
e

v
ie

w
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 t
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
r 

if
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

t 
In

te
g
ra

te
d

 W
a
s
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

 
T

h
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 L
e
a

d
e

r 
R

e
p

o
rt

 s
ig

n
e

d
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

n
d

 2
0

1
6
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
b
u

d
g
e

t 
o
f 

£
1

m
 t
o

 
a

llo
w

 t
h

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
to

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

o
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 J
u

n
e

 
T

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 s
lip

p
e

d
 t

o
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

6
 a

n
d

 a
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

2
0
7

,2
3
5

 i
s
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l:
 

 I
n

te
rn

a
l 
R

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
 -

 £
4

6
k
 

 L
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 C

o
s
ts

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
- 

£
1

8
6

k
 

 T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
- 

£
3

3
k
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
c
o

s
t 
S

a
v
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 (

£
6
0

k
) 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
0

7
 

T
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
A

d
v
is

o
r 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

 
a

n
d

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 
b

e
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

G
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 

C
u

lt
u

re
 

 
 

 

A
c

ti
v
e

 N
o

rt
h

  

T
h

is
 P

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 n
e

w
 2

5
m

 p
o

o
l,
 l
e
a

rn
e

r 
p
o

o
l,
 4

0
 s

ta
ti
o

n
 g

y
m

, 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 s

tu
d

io
 a

n
d

 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

  
T

h
is

 C
A

F
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 
b

y
 £

2
8

5
,9

7
8
. 
T

h
is

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

 s
c
o
p

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 
a

n
d

 r
e

q
u
e

s
t 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
in

c
o

m
e

. 
  

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
8

6
 

 

Page 69



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

T
h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 i
s
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
ro

a
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 r
o

a
d

 w
id

e
n

in
g
, 

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
la

n
d

 a
t 

P
a

c
k
 H

o
rs

e
 l
a

n
e

 a
t 
a

 c
o

s
t 

o
f£

2
3
7

k
. 

 O
th

e
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 £

2
2

k
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
G

y
m

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t,
 £

2
7

k
 f

o
r 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

rn
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 G

P
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
a

re
a

s
. 

  
  

 
T

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
s
 i
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 £

9
4

k
 o

f 
th

ir
d

 p
a

rt
y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 

o
p

e
ra

to
r,

 L
a

w
n

 T
e
n

n
is

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

e
n

tr
e
 f

o
r 

S
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 E
x
e

rc
is

e
  

M
e

d
ic

in
e

. 
T

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 £

2
4
1

k
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
s
 o

r 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

. 
 

  
 

T
h
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

v
a

lu
e

 i
s
 £

7
.5

0
0

m
, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 t
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 £

7
.7

8
6

m
  

  
  

 G
ra

v
e

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 N
C

S
E

M
 P

ro
je

c
t 

T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

re
d

e
v
e

lo
p
s
 t

h
e

 G
ra

v
e

s
 T

e
n

n
is

 a
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

 e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 N
C

S
E

M
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h
e

 h
u

b
 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

e
n

tr
e

 f
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 
E

x
e

rc
is

e
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
 (

N
C

S
E

M
).

 T
h

e
 N

C
S

E
M

 i
s
 a

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e

g
a

c
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

th
a

t 
a

im
s
 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

 
T

h
is

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 i
s
 f
o

r 
a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 m

a
k
e

-u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
c
t 
a

n
d
 a

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

£
1

4
k
. 

T
h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
s
 f
o

r 
a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
G

y
m

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

, 
fo

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 e

x
tr

a
 f

u
n
d

in
g
. 

 
T

h
e

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 
N

C
S

E
M

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
9

8
,6

4
8

  
S

C
C

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

2
5

2
,8

1
3

  
P

la
c
e

s
 f
o

r 
P

e
o

p
le

  
(T

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 O

p
e

ra
to

r)
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
7
7

,5
4

6
  

B
ri
ti
s
h

 A
th

le
ti
c
s
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

9
0

,0
0

0
  

T
o

ta
l 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
1

3
,3

8
1

  
  T

h
e

 A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 
v
a

lu
e

 i
s
 £

1
6

.3
3
9

m
, 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

h
is

 t
o

 £
1
6

.3
8
1
m

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
3
 

 

Page 70



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

 T
h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 t
h

e
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

t 
b

y
  

£
1

2
5

k
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 f
u

n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 c
o

s
t 

a
t 
th

e
 A

c
ti
v
e

 N
o

rt
h

 p
ro

je
c
t.
 T

h
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

s
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a

s
 g

o
n
e

 u
p

 b
y
 £

2
9

9
k
. 

F
A

 P
it

c
h

e
s

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 g
ra

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

it
c
h

e
s
 a

t 
G

ra
v
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

tr
a

n
s
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
a
m

a
te

u
r 

fo
o

tb
a

ll 
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

 I
t 

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 d
ri
v
e

n
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
tb

a
ll 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
. 
 T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

tw
o

 s
it
e

s
 a

re
 a

t 
G

ra
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 T
h

o
rn

c
lif

fe
 a

n
d

 a
re

 
a

d
ja

c
e
n

t 
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 l
e

is
u

re
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
. 

 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

. 
 G

ra
v
e

s
  

 T
h

e
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 f
o

r 
a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
£

1
4

5
k
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 r
e

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

g
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

s
, 

p
e

ri
m

e
te

r 
fe

n
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
d

u
g

-o
u

ts
. 

. 
 T

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e

 
fu

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
A

. 
T

h
e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 a

n
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

ip
t 

to
 b

e
 r

e
a

lis
e
d

 f
ro

m
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 l
a

n
d

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  
     

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
T

h
e

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 £

3
.3

3
6
m

 t
h

is
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 w

ill
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 £

3
.4

8
1
m

. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
4

4
 

 

F
A

 P
it

c
h

e
s

 T
h

o
rn

c
li

ff
e

 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 p

a
v
ili

o
n

s
, 

g
ra

s
s
 p

it
c
h

 r
e

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
s
, 
a

n
 a

rt
if
ic

ia
l 

c
ri
c
k
e

t 
w

ic
k
e

t,
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

r 
p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 2
 a

rt
if
ic

ia
l 
fo

o
tb

a
ll 

p
it
c
h
e

s
 a

t 
T

h
o

rn
c
lif

fe
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

 
G

ro
u

n
d
. 

£
7

7
k
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f
o

r 
fe

n
c
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
it
c
h

 l
e

v
e

lli
n

g
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 
b

y
 S

p
o

rt
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 (
£

5
3
k
) 

a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g
 b

y
 S

C
C

. 
 

 T
h
e

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
  
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 £

3
.7

6
3
 t

h
is

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 w

ill
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 £

3
.8

4
0
m

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

7
7
 

 

Page 71



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
 

 
 

P
ip

w
o

rt
h

 R
e

c
 S

u
D

S
 

D
u

e
 t

o
 l
o

w
 l
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 t

o
p

o
g
ra

p
h

y
, 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

S
C

C
 o

w
n

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
s
it
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 M

a
n

o
r 

n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

 h
a

v
e

 s
to

o
d

 v
a

c
a

n
t 
fo

r 
m

a
n

y
 y

e
a

rs
. 

T
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 t
h

e
s
e
 s

it
e

s
, 
a

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

ra
in

a
g
e

 S
c
h

e
m

e
 

(S
u

D
S

) 
a

n
d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 l
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
in

a
g
e

 s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
fi
v
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 s
it
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e

 
s
it
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

ip
w

o
rt

h
 R

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

 G
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 4

2
1

 n
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
 t

h
e

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
. 

 T
h
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e

c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 c

o
s
ts

 
in

 f
u

ll 
v
ia

 S
1

0
6

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 l
a

n
d

 d
is

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

. 
 T

o
ta

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

s
t:

 £
5

2
5
,0

0
0
 N

e
w

 H
o

m
e

s
 B

o
n

u
s

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 

It
e
m

 
C

o
s
t 

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

 

P
ro

je
c

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
£
4

7
5

,0
0

0
 

£
4
7

5
,0

0
0

 N
e

w
 H

o
m

e
s
 B

o
n

u
s
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
c
u

re
d
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h

e
 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

 o
f 

th
is

 S
U

D
S

, 
£

4
7

5
,0

0
0
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p
a

id
 v

ia
 S

1
0

6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
tt
a

c
h

e
d

 a
s
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p
p

ro
v
a

l 
fo

r 
S

h
e

ff
ie

ld
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a
n

y
 a

n
d

 G
le

e
s
o

n
 H

o
m

e
s
, 

o
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 l
a

n
d

 s
a

le
  

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 

c
o

s
ts

 

£
3
5

9
,2

6
6

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
 o

r 
a

 p
ri
c
e

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

 

F
e

e
s
 

£
4
5

,1
8
0

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
fe

e
s
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
e

e
s
 

£
4
,0

0
0

 
 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 

£
2
7

,0
0
0

 
D

e
s
k
to

p
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

S
ta

g
e

 2
 S

it
e

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 

T
o

p
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

E
n

g
in

e
e
ri
n

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 w

o
rk

 b
y
 Q

u
e

e
n
s
b

e
rr

y
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 
M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
n

in
g

 b
y
 S

C
C

 L
a

n
d
s
c
a

p
e

 A
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

 
R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 f

ro
m

 F
lo

o
d
 a

n
d

 W
a
s
te

 W
a

te
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a

m
, 

 
P

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 

C
lie

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

 
£

1
0

,0
0
0

 
£

1
0

k
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 f

e
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

s
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
  

 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

 
4

7
5
 

 
M

in
i 
c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
o

n
 

v
ia

 Y
O

R
c
iv

ils
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

Page 72



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 

£
2
9

,5
5
4

 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

T
o

ta
l 

£
4
7

5
,0

0
0

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

G
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
£

5
0

,0
0
0

 
(e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

R
e

q
u

e
s
t 

fo
r 

a
llo

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
n

o
n
-r

e
p
a

y
a

b
le

 N
H

B
 f

o
r 

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
 (

to
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

) 

T
h
e

 o
n

-g
o

in
g
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u

D
S

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 c

o
m

m
u

te
d

 s
u
m

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 b
a

s
e
d

 o
n

 a
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£

2
5
0

,0
0
0

 f
o

r 
a

 2
5

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 n

e
t 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 t
o
 S

C
C

 f
o

r 
th

e
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
te

d
 s

u
m

 w
ill

 b
e

n
e
fi
t 

th
e

 w
id

e
r 

o
p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
it
te

r 
p

ic
k
in

g
 e

tc
. 
W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

M
a

n
o

r 
8

 s
it
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 b
y
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
te

d
 s

u
m

, 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 f

o
r 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 b
e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 2

5
 y

e
a

r 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t.
  

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
F

U
L

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 :

 -
 

 
 

 

C
Y

P
F

 C
a

p
it

a
l 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c

e
 G

ra
n

t 
B

lo
c

k
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e

 n
e

t 
m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

£
1

0
.9

m
 o

n
 t

h
is

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
p

lit
 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 s
u
b

s
e

c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

·
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g
ra

n
t 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

D
F

E
) 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
 G

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
8

-1
9

 o
f 

£
1

0
.6

m
; 

a
n
d

 

·
 

A
 n

e
t 
a

d
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1
5

-1
6

 y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 C

Y
P

F
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

s
 l
is

te
d

 b
e

lo
w

, 
o
f 

£
3

4
8

k
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

 
1

0
,9

0
0
 

N
/A

 
  

S
il

v
e

rd
a

le
 P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

T
h
e

 c
it
y
 i
s
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

is
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

 o
n

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

p
la

c
e

s
, 
a

ro
u
n

d
 4

,5
0

0
 n

e
w

 p
la

c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
in

 r
e

c
e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

. 
 A

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
b

y
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
9

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
1

5
 t
o
 

1
9

 f
o

rm
s
 o

f 
e
n

tr
y
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 a
d

d
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 j
u

s
t 
to

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 f

ro
m

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

to
 Y

e
a

r 
7
. 
  

T
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 p
e
rm

a
n
e

n
t 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

t 
S

ilv
e

rd
a

le
 i
n

 Y
e

a
r 

7
 i
n

 
2

0
1
8

. 
 T

h
e

 O
u

tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
re

q
u

e
s
t 

th
e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 
p

ro
je

c
t.

 T
h

e
 w

o
rk

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
to

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

te
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
IT

 
ro

o
m

s
. 
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

6
,7

1
8
 

W
o
rk

s
 p

ro
c
u

re
d

 
v
ia

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 P

F
I 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
it
h

 
V

in
c
i 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

 

Page 73



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

 T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 i
s
 £

6
.7

1
8

m
, 

w
it
h

 c
o

s
t 
b

u
ild

 u
p

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

  
  
  

 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 2

 F
o

rm
 E

n
tr

y
 (

F
E

) 
p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 e

.g
. 

M
U

G
A

 a
n
d

 r
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 e

.g
. 

fu
rn

it
u

re
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 

s
c
h

o
o

l:
 £

5
.8

m
 

·
 

T
o
ta

l 
C

D
S

 f
e

e
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
o

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t,

 C
o

s
t 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

A
d

v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

£
2

7
.5

k
 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
le

g
a
l 
fe

e
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 P
ri
v
a

te
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
: 

£
2

6
0

k
 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
S

C
C

 l
e

g
a

l 
fe

e
s
: 
£

6
6
.5

k
 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
IC

T
: 
£

2
8
5

k
 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
S

u
rv

e
y
s
: 

£
1

4
k
 

·
 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
s
t 
fo

r 
d
e

c
a

n
t:

 £
1
0

k
 

·
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 a

t 
4

.4
%

 o
f 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
t:

 £
2

5
4

k
 

·
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

ix
e

d
 f

e
e

: 
 £

1
k
 

 T
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 f
u
n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 B
a
s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 

re
q
u

e
s
t 

to
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 W

o
rk

s
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
u
n
fo

re
s
e

e
n

 a
n

d
 u

n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 n

o
t 
a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

n
 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 r

e
a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

. 
 I

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 w
it
h

 
re

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 i
f 

s
u
d

d
e

n
 a

n
d

 u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 f
a

ilu
re

s
 o

f 
p

la
n

t 
o

r 
b

u
ild

in
g
 f

a
b

ri
c
 o

c
c
u

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 n
o

 
d

ir
e

c
t 
fa

u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o

l.
 I

t 
a

ls
o

 c
o

v
e

rs
 u

n
in

s
u

re
d

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

in
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 c
la

im
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 d

u
e

 
to

 e
x
c
e

p
ti
o
n

a
l 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
. 
T

h
is

 a
d
d

it
io

n
 i
s
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 1

6
/1

7
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

£
5

0
0

k
 f

u
n

d
e
d

 f
ro

m
 D

fE
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 G

ra
n

t.
 

 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

5
0

0
 

M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 

R
o

u
te

 v
ia

 C
S

S
R

 
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
e

rv
ic

in
g
 a

n
d

 
R

e
p

a
ir
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t)

 
o

r 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 
q
u

o
te

s
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 

A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h

in
 C

Y
P

F
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 c
e
n

tr
e

s
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
 

1
0

0
 

M
in

o
r 

W
o
rk

s
 

R
o

u
te

 v
ia

 C
S

S
R

 
(C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

Page 74



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 D
D

A
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
i.
e
. 

c
h

a
ir
lif

ts
 a

n
d

 h
o

is
ts

 a
n
d

 m
in

o
r 

a
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 t
h
e

s
e

.  
 T

h
is

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 i
s
 t
o

 r
e

q
u
e

s
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
 a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

s
ta

ll 
/ 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
, 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

is
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

. 
It
 i
s
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 a
c
t 
a

s
 a

n
 

o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

o
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
s
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
1
0

0
k
 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
2

0
1
6

 /
 2

0
1

7
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
o

 c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

a
d

a
p
ta

ti
o

n
s
 w

o
rk

s
 /

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t.
 

 A
s
 i
t 

is
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 p

re
d

ic
t 

w
h

e
n

 s
u

c
h
 a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o
n

s
 o

r 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
s
 

w
ill

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y
 b

e
 r

e
a

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

 n
a
tu

re
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 t

h
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 n
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 w
ill

 v
a

ry
 b

o
th

 i
n

 t
y
p

e
 a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e
 

a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 a
d
o

p
t 
a

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

ro
u
te

s
 m

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t.
  

 
 T

 &
 F

M
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

in
 C

Y
P

F
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
n

y
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

d
a

p
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
. 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 D

fE
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 

S
e

rv
ic

in
g
 a

n
d

 
R

e
p

a
ir
s
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t)

, 
c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
q
u

o
te

s
 o

r 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 

S
p

ri
n

g
fi

e
ld

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 B

u
lg

e
 Y

e
a

r 
T

h
is

 r
e

q
u
e

s
t 

is
 f
o

r 
a

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

£
8

7
k
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 £

6
0

k
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 

it
s
e

lf
 s

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l,
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 t
e

n
d

e
r 

re
tu

rn
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

y
 f

u
tu

re
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n
t 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
a
n

d
 i
s
 t

o
 

b
e

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

F
 D

fE
 B

a
s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

8
7
 

 
K

ie
r 

v
ia

 t
h

e
 

S
C

A
P

E
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

G
le

a
d

le
s

s
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 (
J

n
r)

 P
la

n
t 

R
o

o
m

 
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

f 
£

8
5

k
 (

9
8

%
),

 a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 w

o
rk

 n
o

w
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 m
a

in
 C

Y
P

 
G

le
a

d
le

s
s
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
je

c
t.

 O
ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 D

fE
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 B
lo

c
k
 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-8
5

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

P
M

C
P

 -
 W

a
lk

le
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

  
H

M
&

E
 

U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

7
3
.4

k
 (

1
0

%
),

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 d
ili

g
e

n
t 

o
n

 s
it
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

n
o

t 
e

x
h

a
u

s
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 D
fE

 C
a

p
it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-7
3

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

D
o

re
 &

 T
o

tl
e

y
 P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 

D
o

re
 a

n
d

 T
o

tl
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
 h

ig
h

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 m

o
v
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
: 

fe
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 
5

9
.6

 
T

h
e

 f
e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 
w

o
rk

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

Page 75



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

tr
e

n
d

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 1

0
%

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d
 f

o
r 

re
c
e

p
ti
o
n

 p
la

c
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 3

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 D
o

re
 P

ri
m

a
ry

, 
T

o
tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 T

o
tl
e

y
 A

ll 
S

a
in

ts
. 
T

o
tl
e

y
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
. 
 T

h
is

 o
p

ti
o

n
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
.  

 A
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

t 
T

o
tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 s

e
p
a

ra
te

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
6
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
3

0
 p

la
c
e

s
 

a
s
 a

 ‘
b
u

lg
e

’ 
y
e

a
r 

w
h

ils
t 

th
e

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 
s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 £
5

9
.5

k
 f

e
a

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 r

e
q
u

e
s
te

d
 h

e
re

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

e
s
ig

n
 t

o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 c

o
s
t 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h
e

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 

o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
fr

o
m

 a
 1

F
E

 t
o

 2
F

E
, 

i.
e

. 
b

y
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
2

1
0
 p

la
c
e

s
 a

t 
T

o
tl
e

y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
o

n
 

a
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
b

a
s
is

 f
ro

m
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
7
 –

 t
h

is
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
n

e
x
t 

m
o
n

th
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
n
 b

e
 s

u
b

j e
c
t 

to
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

. 
 

 F
u

n
d

in
g
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 B
a

s
ic

 N
e

e
d

 B
lo

c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
.  

  

 
p

ro
c
u

re
d
 i
n

 
h

o
u

s
e
 

 

B
a

ll
if

ie
ld

 P
la

n
t 

R
o

o
m

 
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
  
o
f 

£
3
2

k
 (

3
8

%
),

 d
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 K

ie
r 

c
o

s
ti
n

g
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 i
n

it
ia

l 
in

 h
o

u
s
e

 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
: 
to

 c
lo

s
e

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
. 
O

ri
g
in

a
lly

 f
u

n
d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 D

fE
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 B
lo

c
k
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-3
2

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 H

e
a

ti
n

g
 -

 P
h

il
li
m

o
re

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u
e

s
ti
n

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
o
f 

£
2

5
.3

k
 (

5
%

) 
to

 c
o
v
e

r 
a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t
h
e

 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
 T

h
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 r
e

la
te

s
 t
o

 a
s
b

e
s
to

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
p

ip
e

w
o

rk
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 c
a
p

it
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 b
lo

c
k
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
5
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

 
 

 
 

E
S

S
E

N
T

IA
L

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 W
O

R
K

S
:-

 
 

 
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
a

fe
ty

 B
lo

c
k

 A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 
T

o
 a

d
d

 b
a

c
k
 £

4
1

9
.0

k
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o

s
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 S

ta
n

if
o

rt
h

 W
o

rk
s
; 

a
n
d

  
T

o
 a

p
p

ly
 £

2
5

.9
k
 t

o
 f
u

n
d

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 A
b
b

e
y
d

a
le

 I
n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
H

a
m

le
t 

–
 S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 
D

e
fe

c
ts

 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

+
3

9
3

.1
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

Page 76



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

S
ta

n
if

o
rt

h
 W

o
rk

s
 F

R
A

 
In

-y
e

a
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 
£

5
0

k
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
5
/1

6
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e

r 
C

A
F

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
f 

£
4

1
9
k
 

(5
4

%
) 

a
s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o
s
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

e
n

d
e

r 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
, 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 f
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
. 

 O
ri
g
in

a
l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 m
2

 r
a

te
; 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 t
o

 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 T

+
F

M
 g

o
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

.  

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-4
1

9
.0

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

A
b

b
e

y
d

a
le

 I
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
H

a
m

le
t 
–

 S
tr

u
c

tu
ra

l 
D

e
fe

c
ts

 
T

h
is

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n
ts

 a
n

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£

2
5
.9

k
 (

1
0
0

%
) 

a
t 
2

0
1

5
-1

6
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t's

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 c
o

s
ts

: 
th

is
 a

ro
s
e
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
h

a
v
in

g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
d

u
c
e
d

 t
o
 

£
N

il 
p

re
m

a
tu

re
ly

. 
 T

h
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n
 

th
a

t 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

im
b

u
rs

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
5

.9
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

IT
 W

o
rk

s
tr

e
a

m
s
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

£
1

2
2

.5
k
 (

5
1

%
) 

w
a

s
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 t
o

 £
N

il 
a

s
 t

h
e

 I
T

 e
le

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
ra

w
s
 t

o
 a

 c
lo

s
e
 a

n
d

 i
n
s
te

a
d
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 t
re

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

n
 u

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 W
o
rk

p
la

c
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 s
h
o

u
ld

 
th

is
 p

ro
v
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
2

2
.5

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

P
ro

je
c

t 
D

e
li

v
e

ry
 C

o
s

ts
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
lip

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

£
1

4
6

.9
k
 a

t 
2
0

1
5

/1
6

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 w

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d

 b
y
 £

1
1

3
.3

k
 (

2
1

%
),

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
b

e
in

g
 t

re
a

te
d

 a
s
 a

n
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 n
o

t 
a

ll 
th

e
 s

lip
p

a
g
e

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 f
u

tu
re

 W
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 e

x
it
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 f

ro
m

 
M

e
e

rs
b

ro
o

k
 O

ff
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
a

th
e

d
ra

l 
C

o
u

rt
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 m
o

v
e

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

6
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

1
6

/1
7

. 
 A

 f
u
tu

re
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n

 1
6

/1
7

 f
o

r 
p
a

rt
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o
f 
W

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 f
u

n
d

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

to
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 o
th

e
r 

re
la

te
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
u

c
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

v
e

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

-1
1

3
.3

 
N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

M
o

o
rf

o
o

t 
P

h
a

s
e

 3
 

A
 £

9
6

k
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 w
a

s
 l
im

it
e

d
 t
o

 £
6
8

.6
k
 b

y
 f

ir
s
t 

a
p

p
ly

in
g
 a

n
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

£
2

7
.4

k
 a

s
 

a
c
c
e

le
ra

ti
o
n

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
6

-1
7

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
in

to
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
. 

A
 f
u

tu
re

 C
A

F
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

-
p

h
a

s
e

 f
u
tu

re
 s

p
e

n
d

 a
n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 S
a

lix
 g

ra
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 i
n

 1
6

/1
7

, 
o

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
p
p

ro
v
e

d
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

6
8

.6
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

M
o

o
rf

o
o

t 
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

f 
£
2

9
.6

k
 (

4
8

%
) 

o
n

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 a

 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

2
9

.6
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

Page 77



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 t
o
 c

a
p

it
a

l.
  

A
d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

a
n

 a
m

o
u
n

t 
o
f 

£
1

1
.9

6
k
 w

a
s
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 

1
5

/1
6

 f
ro

m
 1

6
/1

7
 t
o

 c
o
v
e

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 a

n
d

 a
 f

u
tu

re
 r

e
q
u

e
s
t 

to
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

fr
o
m

 s
u

rp
lu

s
e

s
 o

n
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 i
n

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 i
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p

ro
v
e

s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

C
lo

s
e

d
 P

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
: 

 t
o

 e
n

c
o

m
p

a
s

s
 S

te
e

l 
C

it
y
 S

p
o

rt
s

 C
lu

b
 D

e
m

o
li

ti
o

n
 

W
o

rk
s
 

T
h

is
 r

e
q
u
e

s
t 

is
 f
o

r 
a

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
c
o

p
e

, 
in

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
re

q
u

e
s
te

d
 s

lip
p

a
g
e

 o
f 

£
1

0
0

k
 

fr
o
m

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

, 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 w

id
e

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
's

 r
e

m
it
 o

f 
c
lo

s
e

d
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 r
e

la
te

d
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 w
o

rk
s
 a

n
d

 v
a

ry
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n
t 

ro
u

te
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 P

o
o

l 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d

s
. 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 

(o
f 

s
c
o

p
e

) 
- 

V
ia

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 C

S
S

R
, 

c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e

r 
o

r 
o
th

e
r 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
: 
m

in
i 

c
o

m
p
e

ti
ti
o
n

 v
ia

 
M

in
o

r 
W

o
rk

s
 

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 
d

e
p

lo
y
e

d
 f
o

r 
S

te
e

l 
C

it
y
 

D
e

m
o

lit
io

n
 w

o
rk

s
.

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
L

IP
P

A
G

E
 /

 A
C

C
E

L
E

R
A

T
E

D
 S

P
E

N
D

:-
 

 

  
 

 

G
R

E
A

T
 P

L
A

C
E

 T
O

 L
IV

E
  

 
 

 

H
o

u
s

in
g

 
 

 
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
s

 (
C

H
S

) 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 b

lo
c
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
e

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
. 
T

h
is

 r
e

q
u

e
s
t 
is

 
to

 s
lip

 £
1

m
 f

ro
m

 1
6

/1
7

 t
o

 1
7

/1
8

. 
T

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

b
lo

c
k
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

p
ro

fi
le

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

w
h

e
n
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 r

e
a

d
y
 f

o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

 

s
lip

p
a

g
e

 
1

,0
0
0
 

N
/A

 

 
 

 
 

Page 78



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
: -

 (
N

o
te

 o
n

ly
) 

 

 
 

 

S
U

C
C

E
S

S
F

U
L

 Y
O

U
N

G
 P

E
O

P
L

E
 

 
 

 

F
ir

s
 H

il
l 

B
u

lg
e

 Y
e

a
r 

T
h

is
 r

e
q
u
e

s
t 

is
 f
o

r 
a

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

£
1

3
.8

k
 i
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 £

3
9

k
 b

u
d

g
e

t,
 

a
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
o
 r

e
c
o
g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
t 
fr

o
m

 i
n

it
ia

l 
fe

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 s

ta
g
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 
e

n
c
o
m

p
a

s
s
 t

h
e

 a
w

a
rd

 o
f 

a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
fo

r 
£

2
4

.9
k
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

b
u

d
g
e

t.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
Y

P
F

 D
fE

 B
a

s
ic

 N
e
e

d
 B

lo
c
k
 A

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
. 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 

1
3

.8
 

3
 Q

u
o

te
s
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 h

a
v
e

 c
lo

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
m

a
ll

 o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
th

re
s

h
o

ld
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
e

ff
e

c
t 

b
e

in
g

 a
 £

1
7
.9

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

 S
c

h
o

o
ls

 A
c

c
e

s
s

 I
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 -
 O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

1
0
.7

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
. 

C
o

rr
e

s
p
o

n
d

in
g
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

a
d
e

 o
n

 S
c
h
o

o
ls

 A
d

a
p
ta

ti
o
n

s
 b

u
d

g
e

t.
  

 S
h

o
rt

 B
re

a
k

s
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 -
£

1
4

.4
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
 

 H
,M

 &
 E

 D
e

s
ig

n
 -

 O
v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

 £
2

.5
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
u

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

, 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 r

e
 P

ip
w

o
rt

h
  

 P
P

G
2

 -
 A

c
re

s
 H

il
l 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

6
.6

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

ig
h

w
a

y
 w

o
rk

s
 

 N
o

rf
o

lk
 P

a
rk

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

la
c

e
m

e
n

t 
- 

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 £
1
2

.7
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 

(0
.3

%
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

):
 £

4
6

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n

 c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 b
u
d

g
e

t.
 £

3
3

k
 s

a
v
in

g
 

o
n

 f
e

e
s
.  

 F
R

A
 W

o
rk

s
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 -
 U

n
d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 -
£

8
.7

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
u

n
d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
r 

u
s
e

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 

 

Y
/E

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 

S
e

e
 

s
u

m
m

a
ry

 i
n

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
: 

to
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e

  
1

7
.9

  
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

Page 79



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

W
y
b

o
u

rn
 E

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 -

£
1

3
.0

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 m
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l/
h

e
a

ti
n

g
 c

o
s
ts

 
 S

to
c

k
s

b
ri

d
g

e
 -

 M
o

b
ile

 R
e

p
la

c
e
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

1
0

.5
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

s
  

 N
e

th
e

r 
G

re
e

n
 -

 M
o

b
ile

 R
e

p
la

c
e
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 -
£

1
.2

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 

w
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 

  L
y
d

g
a

te
 I

n
fa

n
ts

 -
 M

e
c

h
a

n
ic

a
l 

- 
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 £
8

.2
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 a

s
b

e
s
to

s
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
a

b
o

v
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

  
 M

a
n

o
r 

L
o

d
g

e
 S

tr
u

c
tu

ra
l 

- 
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 £
1

.1
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
, 

 A
ld

in
e

 H
o

u
s

e
-S

e
c

u
ri

ty
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

2
.6

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 f
u

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t
o

 C
a
p

it
a

l 
(R

C
C

) 
in

 1
5

/1
6

 
 B

ro
o

k
 H

o
u

s
e

 J
n

r -
 P

la
n

t 
R

o
o

m
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

0
.1

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
  

R
o

y
d

 N
u

rs
e

ry
 I

n
fa

n
ts

- 
P

la
n

t 
R

m
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 -

£
0
.8

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
  

  W
o

o
d

s
e
a

ts
 P

ri
m

a
ry

- 
P

la
n

t 
R

o
o

m
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

5
.7

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 u
n
fo

re
s
e

e
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

ip
e

w
o

rk
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 b

o
ile

r 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 

  R
iv

e
li

n
 P

m
y
- 

P
la

n
t 

R
o

o
m

 -
 O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

2
.0

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 u
n
fo

re
s
e

e
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 s
it
e

 
 F

ir
s

h
il

l 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 -
 B

o
il

e
r 

R
e

p
la

c
e

 -
 U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 -
£
3

.9
k
 

Page 80



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
u

n
d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 u
n

s
p

e
n

t 
c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 

 W
is

e
w

o
o

d
 S

p
o

rt
s

 C
e
n

tr
e

- 
W

a
te

r 
H

e
a

te
r 

- 
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

2
.0

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 u
n
fo

re
s
e

e
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 s
it
e

 
 H

u
c

k
lo

w
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 4
-1

1
 -

 W
a
rm

 A
ir

  
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 -
£
4

.8
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 

in
te

rn
a

l 
o

v
e

r-
e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
c
o

s
t 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 s
c

h
e

m
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

n
n

u
a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 t
h

e
 n

e
t 

e
ff

e
c

t 
b

e
in

g
 a

 £
4

4
.6

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

8
.1

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

  
 P

ri
n

c
e

 E
d

w
a

rd
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 -
 O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

5
.6

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 
p

lu
s
 £

1
5

k
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
t 
1

6
/1

7
 f
o

r 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 b
a

rr
ie

r 
in

 f
ro

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

 e
x
it
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

c
h

o
o

l.
 

 A
ld

in
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 -

 E
x

te
n

s
io

n
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

2
0

.2
k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
m

a
y
 b

e
 s

e
tt

le
d

 a
t 

a
 l
o

w
e

r 
fi
g
u

re
. 

A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

s
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 -
£

1
0

.7
k
 

Y
/E

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

: 
S

a
v
in

g
 o

ff
s
e

t 
a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
v
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 o
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 A

c
c
e

s
s
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e

 P
ro

je
c
t 

 A
ld

in
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 -

 2
 B

e
d

 E
x

te
n

s
io

n
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

1
.2

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 
fe

e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
d

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t 

s
c
o
p

e
. 

 A
ld

in
e

 H
o

u
s

e
-I

n
te

rn
a

l 
R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

ts
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

2
2

.2
k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

 
 P

ip
w

o
rt

h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

- 
P

la
n

t 
R

o
o

m
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 -

£
2
.5

k
 

Y
/E

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n
d

: 
a

m
o

u
n

t 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 o
n
 t

h
e

 H
M

&
E

 D
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 
 

Y
/E

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 

S
e

e
 

s
u

m
m

a
ry

 i
n

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 

to
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e

  
4

4
.6

  
  

 N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

Page 81



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

A
ld

in
e

 H
o

u
s

e
 B

e
d

ro
o

m
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
- 

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

0
.5

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

d
u
e

 t
o
 s

h
e

lv
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 f
o

r 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
.  

·
 

IN
 T

O
U

C
H

 O
R

G
A

N
IS

A
T

IO
N

 
 

 
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
ro

je
c

ts
 h

a
v
e

 c
lo

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
m

a
ll

 o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 A

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
th

re
s

h
o

ld
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
e

ff
e

c
t 

b
e

in
g

 a
 £

4
.9

k
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

: 
  V

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 -
 O

n
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
F

in
a

l 
C

lo
s
u

re
  

 A
ll

o
tm

e
n

t 
In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
  

- 
O

n
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
F

in
a

l 
C

lo
s
u

re
  

 S
o

rb
y
 H

o
u

s
e

 R
e

c
o

n
fi

g
u

ra
ti

o
n

 -
 O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

1
.1

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
n

o
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 

 L
o

v
e

 S
tr

e
e

t 
D

D
A

 -
 O

v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 £
0

.5
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
fi
n

a
l 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
p

a
id

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

 V
e

h
ic

le
 &

 P
la

n
t 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c

y
 -

 U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 -

£
3

.3
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
1

.5
%

 u
n
d

e
rs

p
e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

s
t 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

. 
 In

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 R
a

ti
o

n
a

li
s
a

ti
o

n
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

1
.9

k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
o
n

 m
a

in
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
w

o
rk

s
 

 H
ig

h
fi

e
ld

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
e

fu
rb

is
h

m
e

n
t 

- 
U

n
d
e

rs
p
e

n
d

 -
£
5

.1
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
: 
 

 A
s

b
e

s
to

s
 R

e
m

o
v
e

d
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

0
.2

5
k
 

F
in

a
l 
C

lo
s
u

re
  

Y
/E

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
V

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 

S
e

e
 

s
u

m
m

a
ry

 i
n

 
S

c
h

e
m

e
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 

to
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e
 

-4
.9

  
 

N
/A

: 
Y

/E
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 s
c

h
e

m
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

t 
a

g
a

in
s

t 
a

n
n

u
a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
re

s
h

o
ld

 t
h

e
 n

e
t 

e
ff

e
c

t 
b

e
in

g
 a

 £
2

2
.1

k
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

Y
/E

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
S

e
e

 
s
u

m
m

a
ry

 i
n

 
 N

/A
: 

Y
/E

 f
u

n
d

in
g
 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

t 
o
n

ly
 

Page 82



C
a

p
it

a
l 

S
c

h
e

m
e
s

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

.1
 

 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

 

 

 F
R

A
 W

o
rk

s
 1

5
-1

6
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 £

4
.4

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 

 
 C

B
T

 W
in

c
o

b
a

n
k
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 -

 O
v
e

rs
p

e
n
d

 £
1

7
.7

k
 

Y
/E

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
: 
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 f
u

n
d

e
d
 b

y
 e

x
tr

a
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 t
o
 C

a
p

it
a

l 

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 

D
e

s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 

to
ta

l 
v
a

lu
e

  
2

2
.1

  
  
 

 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



8 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Eugene Walker 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    20th July 2016 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Corporate Statutory Servicing & Repairs Service - Delivery Options Post- 

March 2017  
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Rob Markham 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure/savings over £500,000 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  

Local authorities over the past twenty years have moved from a uniform direct delivery model for all 
services, to one where services are undertaken on behalf of the authority by a range of external 
partners.  These can include voluntary sector groups, charitable trusts, private sector organisations, 
other local authorities, as well as joint ventures and wholly owned companies (such as arms-length 
management organisations). 

Sheffield is no different in this regard.  A range of services are delivered directly by the Council, 
including Parking, Customer Services, Housing, Adoptions etc. and a range of services are 
delivered by external organisations.  A sample of these is given in the table below: 
  

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 
 

Cabinet Report 
 

FORM 2 

Agenda Item 11

Page 85



External Provider 
Type 

Service Provider 

Charitable Trust Museums and 
Galleries 

Sheffield Museums 
and Galleries Trust 

Theatres Sheffield Theatres 

Sports, Events and 
Leisure Facilities 

Sheffield 
International Venues 

Voluntary Sector Adult Social Care Various 

Adult Skills Various 

Other Local Authority Emergency Planning Rotherham MBC 

Private Sector Highways 
Maintenance etc. 

Amey 

 

Sheffield City Council always consider a range of options for delivery to determine which  
arrangement is most appropriate – each situation is considered on its own merits that provides 
quality services for customers and represents value for money for the Council. We therefore tend to 
adopt a pragmatic approach which may include in-house provision, or out-sourcing of services.  We 
believe that there are a range of advantages and disadvantages to each of these types of 
arrangement, and it makes sense to consider the specific situation in hand.   

The current contract with Kier Services Ltd (‘Kier FM’) for the delivery of the Statutory Servicing & 
Repairs Service to Sheffield City Council’s Corporate Estate was contracted to Kier Ltd in April 
2014. The contract was for 2 years with a possibility of extending for another 3 years by yearly 
increments, an extension for year 1 has been taken up to extend the contract to March 2017. The 
future delivery requirements for the services have been considered and a decision now needs to be 
made on how service will be delivered following the ending of the contracts. 

The options for future delivery of the service are identified as: 

• Bring the service in-house to be directly delivered by the Council (“insourcing”)  

• Extend the current contract with Kier for one year until March 2018 and then in-source 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for two years until March 2019 and then in-source 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for one year until March 2018 and then re-tender 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for two years until March 2019 and then re-tender 

• Retender the CSSR contract to seek a new external contractor to deliver the service 

A further option to do nothing at the end of the contact has been dismissed as the Council would be 
in breach of a number of statutory property duties and health and safety management requirements 
if the above service was no longer provided. 

There were a number of drivers that led us towards outsourcing at the point the current contract was 
let – these included providing long term certainty over costs and service levels, and that working 
with a partner such as Kier would allow us to access economies of scale that would be more difficult 
for the Council to realise on its own.   

However, with the changes in the external environment, particularly in terms of funding, it is 
recommended to follow an insourced option for Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs.  This will 
bring a number of advantages including making it easier to integrate and modernise the service, 
cost-effectiveness, and providing more control in a less stable financial environment.  Insourcing 
would also give the Council much greater flexibility and accountability in managing the Service and 
therefore best enable the Council to deliver its vision. 

Page 86



Insourcing the Service at this time would make it coincide with the in-sourcing of the Housing 
Repairs and Maintenance Service from Kier. Although the two functions differ significantly in respect 
of work and repair types, this would present the Council with an opportunity for increased synergy 
and joint delivery efficiencies between the two repair teams. However, there are also risks of in-
sourcing the two services to the same timescale, in particular the increase in demand for internal 
resources, as well as IT systems integration and data migration. 

There would be initial one-off implementation costs involved in insourcing the Service and designing 
a future operating model. However, in the long-term insourcing is the most cost-effective option.  
Therefore, this report recommends insourcing as the best option for future delivery of the CSSR 
Service as this offers the greatest benefits to customers and to the Council. 

Insourcing the service will likely involve transferring the current Kier workforce delivering the CSSR 
Service, and the work they currently undertake, into the Council.  There are a number of elements 
of the Service which may be more effectively delivered by an external contractor, and more work will 
be done to assess these. 

As with any change, there are risks associated with insourcing the Service.  In particular, there are 
risks relating to; a decrease in productivity; greater health-and-safety responsibilities; fluctuating 
costs of materials; equality of pay; continued ICT provision and having the necessary resources and 
infrastructure to implement the transfer.  Strong management of the transfer and robust 
implementation plans will ensure that these risks are effectively mitigated.  

A Project Team led by the Director of Transport and Facilities Management has been established 
and involved in developing the proposals in this report. Feedback has been sought from Elected 
Members, and information has also been sought from other organisations delivering a similar in-
house service to help inform the work. 

Following Cabinet approval work will commence to prepare for the insourcing of the Service working 
closely with Kier and their employees and, customers.  This work will include formal Trade Union 
consultation, procurement of the necessary goods and services, an effective communications 
strategy for all key stakeholders and the development of a detailed implementation plan.    

Alongside this, work will also be done to design what that service should look like.  This design work 
will lead to the development of a ‘Target Operating Model’ for the service, and customers and 
service users will be closely involved in this work. 

If Cabinet approve the proposals in this report, work will then begin to insource the Service.  This 
work will include formal Trade Union consultation, procurement of the necessary goods and 
services, an effective communications strategy for all key stakeholders and the development of a 
detailed implementation plan. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations:   

o Insourcing the Statutory Servicing and Repair Service will give the Council more control, 
flexibility and accountability in managing the Service, enabling the service to be fully integrated 
into the Council and to work in close partnership with other relevant key Council services.  This 
will help to ensure that the Service is delivered in a way which fully supports the Council’s 
corporate objectives and enables the Council to more easily make further changes in future. 

o Bringing the CSSR Service in-house for direct delivery by the Council will also help to bring 
about an alignment of culture in the Service to that of the Council, as well as its approach to 
customers. 

o Based on all information known to date, and after the initial upfront costs of transferring the 
service, the insourced option is expected to generate sustainable year-on-year revenue savings.  Page 87



In addition, once fully integrated into the Council there will be further opportunities to reduce 
duplication and increase efficiency within the Service and by exploring the degree of joint-
working possible with the HR&M Service potentially enabling it to improve outcomes within 
available budgets. 

o Insourcing also brings with it the potential to expand the service’s external-trading function, 
which already generates £700,000 - £800,000 revenue from work for schools. This could include 
undertaking statutory servicing and repairs work on behalf of other organisations, as well as 
increasing the amount of work done for schools.   

o Directly delivering the service in-house, with some elements of it being outsourced to locally-
based contractors wherever possible, would help support the concept of the ‘Sheffield Brand’.  
Materials would be purchased from local suppliers wherever possible (subject of course to the 
usual procurement rules and Council policies), and the workforce would be predominantly local. 
The supply chain would also, where possible, be tailored to the bespoke needs of SCC 
Corporate Buildings to reduce material lead in times and improve service delivery. 

o Independent research by APSE (the Association for Public Service Excellence) has also 
identified a number of potential benefits of insourcing services, based on actual case-studies 
and local authority experiences: 

o Improved performance 

o Stronger links to corporate strategic objectives 

o Greater flexibility, and more responsive to local and national policy changes 

o Efficiency savings 

o Improved customer satisfaction 

o Enhanced local supply chains 

o Better integration and joining-up with other relevant key services 

o New development and employment opportunities for the workforce transferred in 

 
o There are of course risks associated with the option to insource the service (as indeed there are 

with the other alternative delivery options discussed in this report), and some of these risks are 
significant.  However, measures are and will continue to be in place to mitigate these risks, and if 
any of these risks significantly escalate, or any significant new risks (including financial ones) 
emerge, a further report would be brought back to Cabinet before progressing the transfer any 
further. 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations:   
 
That Cabinet: 

• Approves the proposal in this paper to insource the Corporate Buildings Statutory Servicing & 
Repairs Service from 1st April 2017. 

• Gives its approval for the in-sourcing to be done based on the principles and assumptions 
described in section 9 of this report, and taking into account the risks and mitigations as set out 
in section 10, including the potential sub-contracting-out of a proportion of the service. 

• Gives its approval for the budget required to cover the one-off implementation and set-up costs, 
as described in section 8.9 of this report. 

Page 88



 

• Notes that the Executive Director of Resources shall ensure that all necessary steps to progress 
and implement the insourcing of the service are taken in accordance with his current delegations 
under the Leader’s Scheme of Delegations.  These steps may include:  

 
o At the appropriate time, commencing formal consultation with staff and Trade Unions 

regarding the transfer of staff from Kier into the Council (in consultation with the Director 
of Human Resources as necessary). 

o Developing the structure and agreeing the timescales needed to deliver an in-house 
corporate repairs service (in consultation with the Director of Human Resources as 
necessary). 

o Undertaking a more detailed assessment of which elements of the service are more 
appropriate to be contracted out, rather than directly delivered by the Council, and what 
the impact of this will be and how that will need to be managed (in consultation with the 
Director of Commercial Services and the Director of Human Resources as necessary). 

o Approving the procurement strategy and contract award, agreeing contract terms, 
entering into the contracts with appropriate contract management arrangements in line 
with the Council’s Intelligent Client model, for all necessary goods and services.  This will 
apply to both the development / implementation work required prior to the insourcing, and 
for in-house delivery of the service itself (including any elements of the service which it is 
agreed will be contracted out by the Council) once it is brought back into the Council (in 
consultation with the Director of Commercial Services and the Director of Legal and 
Governance as necessary). 

o Any other work required for the effective preparation for and implementation of the 
insourcing of the CSSR Service. 

• To the extent that the Executive Director of Resources does not already have authority under the 
Leader’s Scheme of Delegations, delegates authority to the Executive Director of Resources to 
approve the procurement strategy and contract award, and agree contract terms and enter into 
the contracts, for necessary goods and services (in consultation with the Director of Commercial 
Services and the Director of Legal and Governance as necessary). 

• Notes that the Executive Director of Resources will work with the Executive Director of 
Communities, who is responsible for insourcing the Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service, 
to explore potential efficiencies. 

• Requests that a further report is presented to Cabinet if the underlying strategy for the future of 
the Service cannot be achieved, or if any unforeseen significant risks emerge which may prompt 
Cabinet to re-consider its decision. 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  

• Cabinet Report 10th April 2013: “Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Contract  

• Association for Public Sector Excellence (APSE) Report January 2009: “Insourcing: A guide to 
bringing local authority services back in-house” 

• Cabinet Report 18th March 2015: Future Options for the Housing Repairs and Maintenance 
Service 

 

Page 89



Category of Report: OPEN (with closed Appendices Two and Four which contain 
commercially sensitive financial and HR information) 
 
Appendices Two and Four are not for publication by virtue of Regulation 20(2) Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 because, in the opinion of the proper officer, it contains exempt 
information under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest 
in disclosing the information. 

Page 90



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Jayne Clarke 

Legal Implications 

YES Cleared by: Sarah Bennett 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

YES Cleared by: Michelle Hawley 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

NO 

Human Rights Implications 

NO 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

NO 

Economic Impact 

NO 

Community Safety Implications 

NO 

Human Resources Implications 

YES Cleared by: Scott Minshull 

Property Implications 

NO 

Area(s) Affected 

Citywide 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 

Cllr Ben Curran 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 

Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 

Press Release 

YES 

 
 
 
 
  

Page 91



1. Summary 

1.1 Local authorities over the past twenty years have moved from a uniform direct delivery model 
for all services, to one where services are undertaken on behalf of the authority by a range of 
external partners.  These can include voluntary sector groups, charitable trusts, private sector 
organisations, other local authorities, as well as joint ventures and wholly owned companies 
(such as arms-length management organisations). 

1.2 Sheffield is no different in this regard.  A range of services are delivered directly by the 
Council, including Parking, Customer Services, Housing, Adoptions etc. and a range of 
services are delivered by external organisations.  A sample of these is given in the table 
below: 

 

External Provider Type Service Provider 

Charitable Trust Museums and Galleries Sheffield Museums and 
Galleries Trust 

Theatres Sheffield Theatres 

Sports, Events and 
Leisure Facilities 

Sheffield International 
Venues 

Voluntary Sector Adult Social Care Various 

Adult Skills Various 

Other Local Authority Emergency Planning Rotherham MBC 

Private Sector Highways Maintenance 
etc. 

Amey 

 

1.3 Sheffield City Council always consider a range of options for delivery to determine which  
arrangement is most appropriate – each situation is considered on its own merits that provides 
quality services for customers and represents value for money for the Council. We therefore 
tend to adopt a pragmatic approach which may include in-house provision, or out-sourcing of 
services.  We believe that there are a range of advantages and disadvantages to each of 
these types of arrangement, and it makes sense to consider the specific situation in hand.   

1.4 The current contract with Kier Services Ltd (‘Kier FM’) for the delivery of the Statutory 
Servicing & Repairs Service to Sheffield City Council’s Corporate Estate was contracted to 
Kier Ltd in April 2014. The contract was for 2 years with a possibility of extending for another 3 
years by yearly increments, an extension for year 1 has been taken up to extend the contract 
to March 2017. The future delivery requirements for the services have been considered and a 
decision now needs to be made on how service will be delivered following the ending of the 
contracts. 

1.5 The options for future delivery of the service are identified as: 

• Bring the service in-house to be directly delivered by the Council (“insourcing”)  

• Extend the current contract with Kier for one year until March 2018 and then  in-source 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for two years until March 2019 and then  in-source 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for one year until March 2018 and then re-tender 

• Extend the current contract with Kier for two years until March 2019 and then re-tender Page 92



• Retender the CSSR contract to seek a new external contractor to deliver the service 

 

1.6 A further option to do nothing at the end of the contact has been dismissed as the Council 
would be in breach of a number of statutory property duties and health and safety 
management requirements if the above service was no longer provided. 

1.7 There were a number of drivers that led us towards outsourcing at the point the current 
contract was let – these included providing long term certainty over costs and service levels, 
and that working with a partner such as Kier would allow us to access funding and economies 
of scale that would be more difficult for the Council to realise on its own.   

1.8 However, with the changes in the external environment, particularly in terms of funding, it is 
recommended to follow an insourced option for corporate statutory servicing and repairs.  This 
will bring a number of advantages including making it easier to integrate and modernise the 
service, cost-effectiveness, and providing more control in a less stable financial environment.  
Insourcing would also give the Council much greater flexibility and accountability in managing 
the Service and therefore best enable the Council to deliver its vision. 

1.9 Insourcing the Service at this time would make it coincide with the in-sourcing of the Housing 
Repairs and Maintenance Service from Kier. Although the two functions differ significantly in 
respect of work and repair types, this would present the Council with an opportunity for 
increased synergy and joint delivery efficiencies between the two repair. However, there are 
also risks of in-sourcing the two services to the same timescale, in particular the increase on 
demand for internal resources and IT systems integration and data migration. 

1.10 There would be initial one-off implementation costs involved in insourcing the Service and 
designing a future operating model. However, in the long-term insourcing is the most cost-
effective option.  Therefore, this report recommends insourcing as the best option for future 
delivery of the CSSR Service as this offers the greatest benefits to customers and to the 
Council. 

1.11 Insourcing the service will likely involve transferring the current Kier workforce delivering the 
CSSR Service, and the work they currently undertake, into the Council.  There are a number of 
elements of the Service which may be more effectively delivered by an external contractor, 
and more work will be done to assess these. 

1.12 As with any change, there are risks associated with insourcing the Service.  In particular, there 
are risks relating to; a decrease in productivity; greater health-and-safety responsibilities; 
fluctuating costs of materials; equality of pay; and having the necessary resources and 
infrastructure to implement the transfer.  Strong management of the transfer and robust 
implementation plans will ensure that these risks are effectively mitigated.  

1.13 A Project Team led by the Director of Transport and Facilities Management has been 
established and involved in developing the proposals in this report. Feedback has been sought 
from Elected Members, and information has also been sought from other organisations 
delivering a similar in-house service to help inform the work. 

1.14 Following Cabinet approval work will commence to prepare for the insourcing of the Service 
working closely with Kier and their employees and, customers.  This work will include formal 
Trade Union consultation, procurement of the necessary goods and services, an effective 
communications strategy for all key stakeholders and the development of a detailed 
implementation plan.   A dedicated implementation team will be established to lead on this 
work. 

Page 93



1.15 Alongside this, work will also be done to design what that service should look like.  This design 
work will lead to the development of a ‘Target Operating Model’ for the service, and customers 
and service users will be closely involved in this work. 

1.16 If Cabinet approve the proposals in this report, work will then begin to prepare for the 
insourcing of the Service.  This work will include formal Trade Union consultation, procurement 
of the necessary goods and services, an effective communications strategy for all key 
stakeholders and the development of a detailed implementation plan.   

2 What does this mean for Sheffield People? 

2.1 The Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service does not directly deliver services to the 
public, but supports the maintenance of SCC’s corporate estate. This estate consists of over 
600 buildings /properties of varying sizes and use along with a wide range of other structures 
from dams and water courses to scheduled Ancient Monuments. Effective management and 
delivery of the repairs and maintenance service to these properties and structures is a key 
enabler of service delivery and supports the Council’s main strategic aims and objectives as 
highlighted in section 3.  

2.2 The Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service also delivers servicing and repairs 
services to one hundred and three schools as part of a traded service package. This enables 
schools to maximise the use of their buildings and hence supports educational outcomes for 
children and young people in Sheffield. 

2.3 There is a commitment in the Corporate Plan to “M make the best possible use of our 
resources to meet the needs of Sheffield and its peopleM” The proposal in this report to 
insource the CSSR Service would give the Council greater control over this service area, 
thereby helping to ensure that the resources delivering this service are used in the most 
effective way and achieving the best possible outcomes for customers. 

3 Outcome and sustainability 

Supporting the Council’s Strategic Outcomes 

3.1 A well-managed and efficient Corporate Buildings Statutory Servicing & Repairs Service 
provides a cross cutting support and regeneration function that provides the physical 
infrastructure for the Council’s required outcomes, particularly; 

3.1.1 An In-Touch Organisation: There is a commitment in the Council’s Corporate Plan to “value 
our employees who are vital to delivering high quality services for Sheffield.” The effective 
delivery of the CSSR Service will ensure that Council employees continue to work in safe 
environments and so support high quality service delivery. 

3.1.2 Thriving neighbourhoods and communities: Offering safe well-maintained community 
facilities and infrastructure significantly contributes to making our neighbourhoods more 
attractive, and to giving local communities an environment to be proud of. 

3.1.3 A Strong Economy: The option to bring the CSSR service in-house, with certain elements 
contracted out to local businesses where possible, should have a positive impact in terms of 
economic growth and encouraging jobs – delivering the service through the ‘Sheffield Brand’. 

3.2 Bringing the CSSR Service in-house for direct delivery by the Council will also help to bring 
about an alignment of culture in the Service to that of the Council, and in its approach to 
customers.  As an integrated function within the Council, the Service will be much better 

Page 94



placed to adopt the Council’s key principles of ‘right first time’ and holistic service delivery - 
and to be more adaptable to varying circumstances and to any changes in corporate priorities.  

Sustaining the value of Council properties 

3.3 Over the course of the CSSR contract the Council has invested approximately £18m in the 
corporate estate, although there is still a significant maintenance backlog. It is important that 
the Council protects this investment through ongoing effective maintenance and repair of its 
estate. 

Achieving efficiencies for the wider Council 

3.4 Although the performance of the CSSR contract has been good, as with any contractual 
arrangement for the delivery of services, it involves a degree of inflexibility in how that service 
is delivered.  Bringing the Service in-house for direct delivery will enable the Council to use 
these resources collectively - exploring opportunities for joint benefits and better integration, 
thereby achieving savings for other Council services. 

4 Background 

Current Corporate Buildings Statutory Servicing & Repairs Service contract with Kier 
Services Ltd  

4.1 In 2014 The Council decided to tender the repairs and maintenance work associated with the 
Corporate Estate on the open market in line with European Procurement rules and the 
Councils own standing orders. The contract was for a fixed term of 2 years with an option of a 
3 year extension in increments of 1 year. 

4.2 The contact was won by Kier who set up Kier FM to procure the work which they do via a 
combination of their own work force and small number sub-contractors (circa 20). The CSSR 
contract was first and foremost established as a statutory servicing contract and was set up in 
this way to address the Corporate Estates “non-compliance” issues with a target date for the 
estate to be fully compliant by March 2016. 

4.3 The current contract covers a wide range of repairs and maintenance functions, including: 

• Responsive repairs 

• Planned Repairs 

• Repairs after servicing (all servicing elements) 

• Gas servicing  

• Lift / Hoist servicing 

• Hard Wire Testing 

• Fire Alarm & Emergency Lighting servicing 

• Air Conditioning/AHU servicing 

• Earthing / Lightning Protection testing 

• Fire Fighting Equipment Servicing 

• Portable Appliance Testing 

• Latchwire / Safe man systems testing 

• School kitchen repair and maintenance 
Page 95



• Asbestos Management Plans and Surveys. 

• Fire Risk Assessments (FRA) 

• L8/Legionella Risk Assessment 

4.4 A full list of the elements covered by the current contract is given in Appendix One.  

4.5 Whilst Kier’s general operation of the contract has been very good, there have been some 
issues with Asbestos management. These have been overcome by joint working of Kier and 
SCC.  

4.6 The CSSR contract operates under a separate delivery model to other services delivered by 
Kier to SCC. This is due to the standards expected on the buildings and infrastructure the 
contract covers; many of which are listed / unique and so require specialist repairs and 
servicing.  In practise this results in around 20% of the contract being subcontracted due to the 
amount of specialist delivery required. 

4.7 Whilst the standards and output from Kier have been high, it is clear that Kier have made lower 
profits than expected, with some service areas running at a loss. Currently the apparent loss of 
income may be “subsidised” by profit on any Minor Works projects that SCC negotiate with 
Kier (which are not core contract work and therefore not covered by the exclusivity clause 
within the contract). See Section 10.4 below. 

4.8 The contract also contains a traded element with schools worth £700,000-£800,000 p.a. that 
has different requirements, particularly on staffing flexibility to meet peak demand during 
holiday periods. Any future provision will have to provide this flexibility to schools, if this service 
is to continue. 

Capital and Minor works through the CSSR service 

4.9 The CSSR service has been used as a procurement route for minor works, much of which is 
small capital projects, which do not form part of the core service contract. In 2015/16 there 
were £3,159,846 worth of works outside of the core contract done through the CSSR service, 
almost the annual cost of the core contract works. £1,169,013 of the cost of these works was 
capitalised, with £2,075,130 revenue funded. 

4.10 To ensure best value on such minor works a number of measured term framework agreements 
for mechanical, electrical and roofing works are already being set as an alternative 
procurement route. As a result of this the volume of these works done through the CSSR 
service on such projects is expected to significantly reduce whichever option is chosen for 
future delivery. 

4.11 Around £850,000 of these minor works are expected to still be carried out by the CSSR 
service. This activity covers a range of different work types, with around half directly delivered 
by Kier and half by subcontractors. 

4.12 Staff that work for Kier or their subcontractors on these non-‘core contract’ works may be 
eligible for TUPE to any future provider of the work. This would be determined through the 
analysis carried out as part of any TUPE process.  

School Meals Subscription Service and the Sheffield School Catering 
Contract 

4.13 Schools have a duty to provide school meals to their pupils on all days that schools are in 
session. CYPF maintains a client approach in order to support Head teachers to discharge 
their statutory duty for school meals while school leadership is focussed on teaching and Page 96



learning.  CYPF supports schools by offering a fully managed service that includes the 
management and maintenance of kitchen premises and commercial catering equipment. 

4.14 The School Food Team independently managed the service and maintenance, responsive 
repairs and planned works elements under contract from the early 1990’s until April 2014 when 
the Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repair contract was introduced.  

4.15 An analysis of the service as part of the CSSR contract since April 2014 has shown that 84% 
of all school kitchen works is carried out by commercial catering companies as subcontractors, 
with only 16% provided directly by Kier.  

4.16 A measured term contract for school kitchen maintenance and repair has been proposed to 
move to a direct contractual relationship between suppliers and the School Food Service client 
team. This more direct relationship is expected to provide a more responsive service without 
the need to go through a third party, supporting a business critical environment. 

4.17 An immediate saving of £29,821 is expected from directly going to the market for servicing, 
responsive repairs and works which stem from servicing for school kitchens. This does not 
include the 15% uplift on Minor Works in school kitchens which would potentially generate 
further savings. No cost increase is expected for administration, as the process and 
management of the contracts is shifted to the existing School Food Service client team who 
already have a high degree of operational involvement.  

The wider context 

4.18 In considering the best option for delivering the CSSR service going forward, it is important to 
take into account the wider context and environment in which the service will operate. This is 
significantly different to the environment when the CSSR Service was first outsourced through 
the Kier LLP arrangement, particularly the funding environment. 

4.19 The Council has faced significant budget cuts in recent years, under Government austerity 
measures – and this is likely to continue for the foreseeable future.  In light of this it is more 
important than ever that all Council services are efficient and represent value-for-money, 
achieving better outcomes for customers with limited resources. 

4.20 The CSSR service is and will continue to be funded by the Council’s Revenue Budget, which is 
directly impacted on by the cuts in central funding.  Consequently, it is crucial that the CSSR 
service is seen to be efficient, well-managed and achieving excellent value for Council tax-
payers. It will also need to be more flexible in its operations to adapt to other organisational 
and funding changes, while remaining aligned with the Councils objectives and customer 
focused. 

4.21 The potential in-sourcing of the CSSR Service would occur at the same time as the in-sourcing 
of the Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service. Both of these initiatives are aimed at 
increasing efficiency, reducing duplication and improving joined-up working between council 
teams and services, as well as with external service partners. Links between the two changes 
will need to be carefully managed to coordinate the activities of both projects. 

5 Vision for the Service 

5.1 The vision for the corporate estate is to have an estate that both the Council and people of 
Sheffield can be proud and puts the customer/end user first. This can be achieved through: 

���� Providing an excellent quality Corporate Estate repairs service. 

���� Maintaining a fully compliant estate that is fit for purpose. Page 97



���� Integrating the client and contractor functions of the service to benefit the customer by 
continuously striving to provide a “right first time” repairs service.  

���� Adopting a “one stop shop” approach giving easy access to all the Corporate Estates 
customers and end users. 

���� Ensuring efficient management ensuring value-for-money services that allow further 
investment to address the identified back log maintenance. 

5.2 An insourced CSSR service, under the direct control of the Council and with all the 
opportunities for joint working and better integration which that would support the achievement 
of these ambitions.  

The Council 

5.3 The Council as a whole has a vision for how it wants all of its services to be shaped and 
developed, and these are set down in the Council’s Organisational Design Principles.  These 
need to be factored into any decision on the future delivery and development of the CSSR 
Service.  The principles particularly relevant to the CSSR Service are: 

���� Demonstrate improvement of outcomes:  Delivering more and achieving better outcomes 
for customers within the existing budget will be a key focus for the Service going forward.  
Insourcing the Statutory Servicing and Repairs service for direct delivery by the Council will 
enable much stronger links to be forged between the service and other key Council services, 
support a more holistic approach to service delivery and so ultimately achieve better 
outcomes for our customers. 
 

���� Affordable, cost effective services:  The Service will need to drive efficiency, minimising 
costs and ensuring a good return on its spending.  By bringing the service into the Council, 
opportunities for streamlining and reducing duplication can be maximised. 

 

���� The right people, skills and behaviours:  Bringing the repairs and maintenance workforce 
into the Council will help create a cultural alignment to the Council, moving it towards a more 
modern and flexible way of working.  
 

���� Flexible and responsive services:  Bringing the service into the Council will enable the 
service to be more flexible and responsive to future changes, listening to customers and 
engaging them in development of the service.   

Council and Kier Employees 

5.4 Council Officers from relevant teams have been involved in the initial service design work.  
Key Council Officers will also be involved in the work to develop an operating model for the 
service.  

5.5 A new Communications Plan will be agreed with Kier management and Trade Unions so that 
employees are as involved as possible to inform the new service design.  

5.6 Staff in both the Council and Kier who are likely to be impacted on by the outcomes of this 
report, along with their Trade Unions, will be provided with regular updates through a number 
of arrangements including team briefings, staff newsletters and intranet updates. There is also 
a requirement to consult with affected staff to ensure that TUPE legislation is complied with. 

Council and Kier Page 98



5.7 The Council will liaise with Kier to take all necessary actions to effect the termination of the 
contract and the transfer of staff and assets.   

6 How the proposals in this report have been developed 

6.1 A wide range of key people have been involved in the work which underpins this report.  A 
Project Team has been established - led by the Director of Transport and Facilities 
Management and consisting of lead officers from across the Council representing all key 
service areas involved in this project.  These include: 

• Transport and Facilities Management 

• Business Change and Information Solutions (BCIS) 

• Commercial Services 

• Finance 

• Legal Services 

• Human Resources (HR) 

6.2 Representatives from the above Teams have taken responsibility for providing relevant cost 
information for their service area, and to inform financial modelling work described in section 
6.5 below. 

6.3 A comprehensive options appraisal was carried out to determine the most appropriate way of 
delivering the CSSR service after March 2017.  This review considered the options described 
in section 1.5 above and involved detailed work to evaluate each option, including: 

• Financial modelling for each option, based on agreed assumptions and future service 
requirements 

• Identifying the risks associated with each option, for example in relation to Human 
resources / staffing and commercial issues. 

• Assessing the potential benefits associated with each option. 

6.4 Robust governance arrangements have been setup to manage this work.  A Project Board has 
been setup to oversee the work of the Project Team, chaired by the Executive Director of 
Resources (the Project Sponsor).  

Financial Modelling 

6.5 For each option, financial information was collated by the relevant professionals, taking into 
account how the service will need to operate from day one (i.e. 1st April 2017).  The costs 
included in this financial modelling are: 

6.6 For the insourcing option: 

• Staffing and Learning and Development costs for the workforce which it is assumed would 
be transferred into the Council from Kier and the additional costs the Council would incur 
as a result of bringing staff in house e.g. Pensions costs. 

• A small management team to run the insourced service 

• Appropriate accommodation and vehicles 

• The cost of the small plant and materials  

Page 99



• The Information Technology costs of integrating the service, and of the ongoing running of 
the systems required  

• The insurance costs and costs for uninsured claims. 

• The impact on the Council’s corporate services (e.g. HR, Finance, etc.) 

• Customer Services / Contact-Centre costs  

• The cost of transferring the service from Kier and of the work needed in preparation for 
the service being insourced (e.g. the cost of a project team and any necessary 
procurement work) 

• ‘Dual’ operating costs, to cover any ‘handover’ period between Kier and the Council 

• Estimated costs for the elements of the service which the Council would contract out, 
rather than deliver directly itself. 

6.7 Some of the above costs may be incurred via a shared delivery model i.e. accommodation, IT, 
joint-working and other operational synergies with the Housing Repairs and Maintenance in-
sourced Service. At this stage these efficiency opportunities have not been fully identified, so 
cost assumptions are based on CSSR having separate direct delivery costs, but if further 
efficiencies are found post transfer this may not be the case. 

6.8 For the full external procurement option: 

• Expected costs of an externally procured (outsourced) service, using information held 
within the Council;  

• The cost of undertaking the procurement for such a contract; 

• Customer Services / Call-Centre costs 

• Any further costs associated with working with a new supplier e.g. mobilisation cost 

• Contract management costs 

6.9 For the options that include extending the Kier contract, current cost of the service was 
agreed in 2014 for a two year period until March 2016 with an option to extend the contract in 
annual increments for a further three years until March 2019. This option was exercised from 
April 2016 and Kier have provided an estimate of costs for a further annual extension from 1st 
April 2017.  The costs of insourcing or retendering after the extension period have been based 
on uprated versions of the insourcing and retender options. The costs for this option also 
include: 

• Customer Services / Call-Centre costs 

• SCC staff costs - for contract monitoring, performance management, etc. 

• Subcontractor costs for the elements which Kier don’t directly deliver 

  

Page 100



Target Operating Model 

6.10 The Project Team, along with other Council officers from key service areas, are also currently 
working on developing an operating model for the new service.  This model will describe the 
vision, what the Service needs to do and how it needs to do it. To achieve this, work first 
needs to be done to capture the way the service currently works and identify the drivers and 
opportunities for change.  

6.11 The requirements of the service going forward will be the same regardless of who delivers the 
service, whether that is the Council, an external contractor or Kier initially.  Customers, end 
users and staff have been and will continue to be involved in the development of the operating 
model, and some basic principles have already been agreed by those involved to date: 

� The way the service works will need to focus on what matters most to our customers 
and end users 

� Processes need to be as simple as possible, with minimal duplication of work 

� Front-line staff need to be involved in decisions about what will work best for our 
customers 

� Decisions need to be based on reliable evidence 

� Staff need to be trusted and equipped to achieve the best outcomes for our customers 

� Clients and staff must be at the heart of any service development or key changes to the 
service 

� There must be positive and constructive relationships with suppliers 

� There needs to be effective performance management of the service 

6.12 Delivering the CSSR Service requires a number of support functions to be in place. Some of 
these functions are currently performed by Kier as part of the current contract, and therefore 
will need to be performed by the Council if the Service is insourced. These services include 
ICT support, HR and Payroll, Customer Services, Finance and Procurement. As mentioned at 
6.6 above it is currently envisaged that a number of these functions may be delivered to both 
the Corporate Repairs Service and the Housing Repairs and Maintenance insourced Service 
in order to optimise operational efficiencies. 

6.13 The outcomes of the initial work on developing an operating model support the option to 
insource the service.  This work is based on three key assumptions: 

• The support functions required to deliver the CSSR Service are also insourced  (or if they 
already exist within the Council, are adapted as required); 

• The support functions may be shared with the Housing Repairs and Maintenance  in-
sourced Service if this provides operational efficiencies for the Council as a whole; 

• Not all aspects of the Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service will be directly delivered by 
the Council – some elements will be contracted out to specialist contractors. 

6.14 Work to develop an operating model is still ongoing, and involves design work to develop an 
outline model to test the operational feasibility of delivering the CSSR Service in-house. The 
model is expected to involve minimal change to operational processes to preserve service 
delivery. This delivery will be reviewed once the insourced service has successfully been 
embedded into the Council.  

Page 101



7 Evaluating the options for future service delivery  

7.1 As explained in Section 1.5 above, there are six main options for future delivery of the 
Statutory Servicing and Repair Service, which are: 

• “Insourcing”: the service delivered in-house by the Council (possibly with an element of 
the service contracted out to be delivered by specialist contractors) 

• “Extension of the current Kier Contract, followed by insourcing for 2018”: Extend 
the current contract with Kier for a further year until March 2018 and then either insource 
the service. 

• “Extension of the current Kier Contract, followed by insourcing for 2019”: Extend 
the current contract with Kier for a further two years until March 2019 and then either 
insource the service. 

• “Extension of the current Kier Contract, followed by full external procurement for 
2018”: Extend the current contract with Kier for a further year until March 2018 and then 
either retender the service for delivery by a third party. 

• “Extension of the current Kier Contract, followed by full external procurement for 
2019”: Extend the current contract with Kier for a further two years until March 2019 and 
then either retender the service for delivery by a third party. 

• “Full external procurement”: Seek a new external contractor to deliver the whole of the 
Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service on the Council’s behalf. 

Option 1: Insource the Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service  

7.2 Under this option, the Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service would transfer into 
the Council, as would the Kier workforce currently undertaking this work, and the Council 
would directly deliver the vast majority of servicing and repairs work to Council properties.   

7.3 The main potential benefits of this option are: 

7.3.1 More control, flexibility and accountability for the Council in managing the Service, enabling the 
service to be fully integrated into the Council and to work in close partnership with other 
relevant key Council Services, specifically the Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service.  
This control would also allow the Council to more easily make further changes to how the 
service is delivered in future.  

7.3.2 This option is expected to generate sustainable year-on-year revenue savings, and longer-
term there will be further opportunities to reduce duplication, join-up procurement with other 
Council services and increase efficiency within the Service. 

7.3.3 Insourcing also brings with it the potential to expand the service’s external-trading function. For 
example, the Council could carry out statutory servicing and repairs work on behalf of other 
Councils and public sector organisations, as well as increasing the number of schools that 
already purchase this support.   

7.3.4 Directly delivering the service in-house, with minor elements of it being delivered by locally-
based contractors wherever possible, would help support the concept of the ‘Sheffield Brand’.  
The Council could directly encourage the use of local supply chains, where this was compliant 
with Public Contract Regulations and value for money. 

7.4 The main potential disadvantages of this option are: 

7.4.1 Moving the current Kier workforce into the Council may impact on staff motivation and so lead 
to reduced productivity and reduced customer satisfaction. Page 102



7.4.2 If at the point of transfer staff resource levels do not match service demand there could be 
significant budget implications for the Council in terms of managing the associated staff costs. 
If demand is higher than available resource then recruitment could be needed and service 
delivery could be detrimentally affected. This is covered in more detail in Section 10.4 below. 

7.4.3 The timescale of approximately 9 months following a formal Council decision to insource looks 
challenging in respect of undertaking the necessary implementation and mobilisation tasks; 

7.4.4 If the time and resources allocated to managing the transfer are not sufficient there would be 
delays and/or increased costs. This risk is made more acute by the simultaneous running of 
the Housing Repairs & Maintenance project with an overlap of staffing resource. 

7.4.5 Supply chain risks for subcontractors and supplies would reside with the Council.  

7.4.6 A greater exposure for the Council to potential health and safety issues once insourced. 

7.4.7 More vulnerability to the impact of market forces e.g. the Council’s exposure to changes in the 
price of materials. This would increase uncertainty regarding the cost of materials, fuel, etc. 
and potentially change the costs of elements of the Service which are contracted out. 

7.4.8 A range of potential additional pension cost liabilities including; 

• (i)The opening of entry to Local Government Pension Scheme for Kier staff, resulting in 
higher employer contributions than Kier currently pay. 

• (ii) Potential exit deficit of the Kier pension scheme. The position on the Kier pension 
scheme will become evident later in the year and could be one of the factors that change 
the status of the preferred option if a large deficit has developed since the last valuation. 
However there is no definite indication that this will be the outcome at this stage and 
conversely there is of course the possibility of a surplus being achieved. 

7.4.9 ICT related risks of implementing the necessary interfaces and integration with Council 
systems especially when a new Council Finance system is being implemented. 

7.5 The risks associated with insourcing– and how they would be mitigated – are explained in 
more detail in Section 10 below. 

Options 2 & 3: Extension of the current contract with Kier for one or two years, followed 
by insourcing  

7.6 Under the terms of the current contract with Kier, there is an option to extend the contract by 
up to two years in annual increments to April 2019, if both the Council and Kier are agreeable 
to this.  An extension for one or two years would enable the CSSR service to be delivered in 
much the same way as it is now, and would give the Council more time to plan the longer-term 
future of the service through insourcing from Kier to SCC 

7.7 The main potential benefits of this option are: 

7.7.1 The extension costs of this option are known already (subject to any re-negotiated price 
increase by Kier for the additional period of the contract). 

7.7.2 The service being received is high performing against all KPI’s and the relationship with the 
supplier is healthy. 

7.7.3 Additional cost for procurement or implementation would be deferred. 

7.7.4 There would be complete service continuity, and the experience which Kier have of working 
with the Council customers would be retained.  This would mitigate the risks involved in major 
operational change. Page 103



7.7.5 The Council would carry less risk in terms of health and safety issues until the point of 
insourcing the service. 

7.7.6 The increased time it would afford the Council to plan and prepare for any future insourcing of 
the Service. 

7.7.7 Would allow any lessons learned from the insourcing of the Housing Repairs & Maintenance  
service to be applied to this transfer 

7.7.8 Once insourced, the Council would have more control, while the service would be more flexible 
and accountable.  This control would also allow the Council to more easily make further 
changes to how the service is delivered in future. 

7.7.9 These options are expected to generate sustainable year-on-year revenue savings, and 
longer-term there will be further opportunities to reduce duplication, join-up procurement with 
other Council services and increase efficiency within the Service. 

7.7.10 Insourcing also brings with it the potential to expand the service’s external-trading function.   

7.7.11 Once insourced, minor elements of the service would be delivered by locally-based contractors 
wherever possible, helping to support Sheffield employment and businesses.   

7.8 The main potential disadvantages of this option are: 

7.8.1 These options include insourcing the Service, so includes extension costs as well as all costs 
involved in the insourcing options. The insourcing would also be planned and carried out over 
a longer timescale and so would incur greater costs than insourcing for delivery from April 
2017.  

7.8.2 Under these options it would be more difficult to generate any revenue savings. 

7.8.3 Kier have requested an increase in costs for the re-negotiated contract price for an extension 
beyond March 2017.  Any extension would need to be agreed by both parties, so this cost 
increase could potentially reduce through negotiation on an extension.  

7.8.4 Less control over the Service until insourcing, with reduced opportunities for integration with 
other Council services in this period. 

7.8.5 Improvements in transparency would be delayed until 2018/19. 

7.8.6 Moving the current Kier workforce into the Council may impact on staff motivation and so lead 
to reduced productivity and reduced customer satisfaction. 

7.8.7 If at the point of transfer staff resource levels do not match service demand there could be 
significant budget implications for the Council in terms of managing the associated staff costs. 

7.8.8 A greater exposure for the Council to potential health and safety issues. 

7.8.9 More vulnerability to the impact of market forces after insourcing e.g. the Council’s exposure to 
changes in the price of materials. This would increase uncertainty regarding the cost of 
materials, fuel, etc. and potentially change the costs of elements of the Service which are 
contracted out. 

7.8.10 There is a chance that the Council and Kier may be unable to reach a negotiated agreement 
on the continued delivery of the service. 

7.8.11 A range of potential additional pension cost liabilities including; 

• i) The opening of entry to Local Government Pension Scheme for Kier staff, resulting in 
higher employer contributions than Kier currently pay. Page 104



• (ii) Potential exit deficit of the Kier pension scheme. The position on the Kier pension 
scheme will become evident later in the year and could be in deficit or surplus. 

Options 4 & 5: Extension of the current contract with Kier, followed by full external 
procurement  

7.9 As described in 7.8, there is an option in the CSSR contract for two further annual extensions, 
which would give the Council more time to run a full re-tender exercise for external delivery of 
the service by a third party. 

7.10 The main potential benefits of this option are: 

7.10.1 The costs of extension are known already (subject to any re-negotiated price increase by Kier 
for the additional period of the contract). 

7.10.2 The service being received is high performing against all KPI’s and the relationship with the 
supplier is healthy 

7.10.3 There would be little additional cost in terms of procurement until retendering.  

7.10.4 There would be complete service continuity up to the point of transfer to a new supplier, and 
the experience which Kier have of working with the Council and with our customers would be 
retained.  This would mitigate the risks involved in major operational change. 

7.10.5 The Council would carry less risk in terms of health and safety issues (as compared to 
insourcing the service). The majority of the health-and-safety risks associated with the delivery 
of a large scale repairs and maintenance service would be the responsibility of the contractor, 
not the Council. 

7.10.6 The increased time it would afford the Council to prepare for any future retendering of the 
Service. 

7.10.7 It would enable the Council to test the market not just for price but also for innovation, 
potentially resulting in a more creative and / or technologically advanced service. 

7.10.8 A competitive procurement exercise could potentially achieve savings - this would depend on 
the market conditions at the time. 

7.10.9 There is a chance that the Council and Kier may be unable to reach a negotiated agreement 
on the continued delivery of the service. 

7.10.10 Costs would be fixed for the period of the contract, making medium-term budget planning 
easier. 

7.11 The main potential disadvantages of this option are: 

7.11.1 These options include the costs of both extension and external procurement and so 
implementation costs are higher than retendering for April 2017. The retendering would also 
be planned and carried out over a longer timescale and so would incur greater costs than 
procurement for delivery from April 2017. 

7.11.2 The deferral of retendering the contract for transfer in 2018/19 or 2019/20 could potentially 
lead to a further market price changes by that date. 

7.11.3 Under these options it would be more difficult to generate any revenue savings. 

7.11.4 Kier have requested an increase in costs for the re-negotiated contract price for an extension 
beyond March 2017.  Any extension would need to be agreed by both parties, so this cost 
increase could potentially reduce through negotiation on an extension.  Page 105



7.11.5 This option carries a risk regarding productivity linked to the change in employer arrangements 

7.11.6 Being tied into the contract gives limited opportunity to improve the service, and less flexibility 

7.11.7 Less control over the Service, and much more distant links to corporate objectives. 

7.11.8 Opportunities for integration with other Council services and for a more joined-up approach 
would be reduced. 

7.11.9 Reduced transparency for the service 

Option 6: Full external procurement 

7.12 Under this option, the whole of those elements of the Statutory Servicing and Repair Service 
would be put out to competitive tender to procure a new external contractor with the other 
elements of the Service delivered by contracts with sub-contractors. This would involve a full 
procurement exercise undertaken in compliance with public contract regulations and the 
Council’s Standing Orders. 

7.13 The main potential benefits of this option are: 

7.13.1 It would enable the Council to test the market not just for price but also for innovation, 
potentially resulting in a more creative and / or technologically advanced service. 

7.13.2 A competitive procurement exercise could potentially achieve savings - this would depend on 
the market conditions at the time. 

7.13.3 The majority of the health-and-safety risks associated with the delivery of a large scale repairs 
and maintenance service would be the responsibility of the contractor, not the Council. 

7.13.4 Costs would be fixed for the period of the contract, making medium-term budget planning 
easier. 

7.13.5 No Equal Pay risk to the Council 

7.14 The main potential disadvantages of this option are: 

7.14.1 A service that is culturally disconnected from the client Council services and its outcomes.  

7.14.2 Reduced flexibility, as changes would be more difficult to implement than with the insourced 
option and costs more difficult to control. 

7.14.3 Procurement of a new contractor could potentially lead to a service which is less productive 
and more costly than the current one. 

7.14.4 Less control over the Service, and more distant links to corporate objectives. 

7.14.5 Fewer / reduced opportunities for integration with other Council services (specifically the 
potential to work closer with the Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service), and for a more 
joined-up approach. 

7.14.6 Reduced opportunity for transparency and a less direct route for customers to engage with the 
Service. 

7.14.7 There would be a significant cost associated with procuring and setting up a new contractor, 
and with putting robust contract monitoring / performance management frameworks in place. 
Based on previous experience this could take up to 6 months. 

Page 106



7.14.8 The time taken for the new contractor to become familiar with the Council and the Corporate 
Estate could mean a reduction in performance in the interim period while effective working 
relationships are built. 

7.14.9 The price of this option could be higher than expected due to changes in the construction 
market. 

8 Financial implications 

8.1 There are six options open to the Council for delivery of the CSSR Service post-March 2017, 
and all contain financial risks and rewards: 

• Insourcing  

• Extension of the current Kier Contract for a further year until April 2018 and then 
insourcing the service 

• Extension of the current Kier Contract for a further year until April 2019 and then 
insourcing the service 

• Extension of the current Kier Contract for a further year until April 2018 and then full 
external procurement 

• Extension of the current Kier Contract for a further year until April 2019 and then full 
external procurement 

• Full external procurement 

 

8.2 The following table shows the three year forecast cost from 17/18 to 19/20 of providing the 
CSSR Service under each option and the variance to the assumed SCC budget for that period 
(which has been based on the actual SCC spend on CSSR in 15/16). The cost impact of 
managing the change in the delivery model is also shown as an additional cost item. This is 
looked at in more detail at Section 8.7 below. 

  

Page 107



Table One: Three year CSSR Delivery Option Costs 2017/18-2019/20 

Item Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 

 Insourcing 

Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

insource 

Extend to 

1.4.19, then 

insource 

*Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

retender 

*Extend to 

1.4.19, then 

retender 

Full external 

procurement 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Total CSSR 

option cost 

10,649 11,193 11,778 12,611 12,461 12,725 

2017/18 SCC 

Revenue 

Budget1 

11,059 11,059 11,059 11,059 11,059 11,059 

Variance to 

Budget (Surplus 

/ Shortfall (-) 

410 -134 -719 -1,454 -1,277 -1,757 

Implementation/

Change cost 

-787 -920 -9209 -265 -265 -250 

Revised Surplus 

/ Shortfall (-) 

-377 -1,054 -1,639 -1,817 -1,667 -1,916 

*Reflecting agreed extension pricing from Kier 
 1Based on estimated 2016/17 actual SCC CSSR spend as proxy for budget. 

 

8.3 The above table shows that based on purely financial considerations the immediate insourcing 
option appears to be the most attractive, delivering a per annum revenue saving of £410k, 
which is £544k higher than the next best Option of extending the contract by one year and 
then insourcing. However, the costs detailed above should also be viewed within the context of 
the inherent risk associated with a change to the current business model:  

 

• Extending the Kier contract may lead to a contract cost increase, but it does offer 
continuity and mitigates against risk around operational change and still allows for a 
decision to be taken on eventual insourcing or retendering from April 2018 when the 
Housing Repairs and Maintenance Service (HR&MS) will be established in SCC and any 
similar operational issues resolved ;  

• Full external procurement offers the potential to engage the market and drive out savings 
and efficiencies, but could also mean entering a new relationship that may be  more costly 
than the current one; 

• Insourcing the CSSR Service may offer the reward of delivering additional revenue 
savings into the future, but it does represent a transfer of risk from the private sector back 
into the Council and our capacity to manage and mitigate that risk should be considered. 
These risk factors are magnified if we insource CSSR at the same time as the Housing 
Repairs & Maintenance Service. 

• A large part of the rationale for insourcing the Service is based around the expectation of 
operational efficiencies being achieved through delivery of a repairs, maintenance and 

                                            
 

Page 108



statutory testing function that shares its support infrastructure with the Housing Repairs 
and Maintenance service. If this proves to be unrealistic and unachievable there is a risk 
the anticipated savings are not realised. 

8.4 Table Two below shows the additional quantifiable on-going service delivery risks and 
efficiencies identified by the Council that are not priced into the base forecasts above as it is 
assumed the necessary mitigating actions will be taken to minimise the risk of realisation. 
These risks are explained more fully at Appendix Two. 

Table Two:  Quantifiable Risks and Efficiency Savings of the CSSR Delivery Options 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 

 
Insourcing 

Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

insource 

Extend to 

1.4.19, then 

insource 

*Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

retender 

*Extend to 

1.4.19, then 

retender 

Full external 

procurement 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Quantifiable 

Risks 

70 140 210 60 90 0 

Efficiency 

Savings 

Estimate 

-50 -50 -50 0 0 0 

Total Risk 

impact 

20 90 160 60 90 0 

 

8.5 Table Two highlights that insourcing the CSSR Service presents both material risk and 
opportunity. Of the six options extension by 2 years and then insource has the highest level of 
additional cost risk at £210k, partially off-set by the possibility of efficiencies of £50k. The 
immediate insource option has the same level of efficiency savings forecast, but a lower level 
of risk at £70k. These revised forecasts contain costs and benefit not in the base forecasts 
because they are contingent on the Council either failing to avoid risks, or successfully 
exploiting opportunities to deliver additional efficiencies, neither of which are certain.  

8.6 The final principal financial considerations are the costs associated with delivering any of the 
options that move the Council away from the Kier contract. These costs are one-off change 
management costs, and should be viewed within the context of both the on-going service 
delivery they facilitate, and the shorter term requirement to resource those costs.  

8.7 Table Three below shows that the ‘Extend then Insource’ options incur the greatest costs as 
they involve the most change activity associated with both extending the contract and then 
delivering the necessary actions to achieve insourcing. The latter inevitably being significant 
for such a major change. The re-tender option change cost relates to undertaking the 
necessary level of procurement and commercial activity required. 

 

 

 
Page 109



Table Three:  Change management / implementation costs of CSSR Delivery Options 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 Option 5 Option 6 

 

Insourcing 

Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

insource 

Extend 

to 

1.4.19, 

then 

insource 

*Extend to 

1.4.18, then 

retender 

*Extend 

to 1.4.19, 

then 

retender 

Full external 

procurement 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

One-off/ change 

management cost 

787 920 920 265 265 250 

8.8 Some elements of the implementation costs could be eligible to be treated as capital, for 
example where the council is purchasing assets from Kier or other suppliers. It is proposed 
that Capital funding is used where possible and appropriate, with the rest of the funding 
provided through revenue funds on an ‘invest to save’ basis. The costs will be recovered 
against the future service budget but will be spread on a longer term basis as appropriate and 
thus lessen the impact on the first year service costs.  

8.9 However, it is equally important to recognise the on-going benefit that this investment could 
deliver. As Table One shows the one-off investment of £787k under the insourcing option 
delivers savings of £410k from 2017/18 to 2019/20. This lower cost base can also reasonably 
be expected to reducing influence on future costs beyond this period.  

8.10 Appendix 2 details the relative cost base of each option. Comparing cost bases is somewhat 
difficult given the lack of transparency around the current contract, and potential re-tendered 
contracts. However, general themes are evident such as relative costs around staffing, and the 
requirement for contractor profit in the out-sourced options. 

9 Proposal to Insource the Repairs and Maintenance Service 

9.1 Taking into account all the information given in this report so far – the vision for the future 
Service, the benefits and potential risks of each option, the financial implications, etc. - the 
proposal in this report is to insource the service for direct delivery by the Council (with a small 
element of the service possibly contracted out by the Council to external providers). This is 
considered to be a pragmatic approach given the particular circumstances in which the CSSR 
Service operates.  Inevitably there are benefits and disadvantages to all six options 
considered.  However, on balance, the insourcing option provided a higher level of benefit to 
the Council than the other options.  

9.2 This proposal is made on the basis that the insourcing option overall offers the most potential 
benefits for customers and for the Council.  Whilst there are significant risks associated with 
this option, with effective management and a robust implementation plan these risks would be 
mitigated (see Section 10 below for more information on this). 

9.3 This option will deliver the Service within the current budget limit.  There are implementation 
costs associated with this option, but these would be paid back by the efficiency savings which 
this option would generate 

9.4 It is also recommended that the School Food Service client team manage the procurement of 
a commercial catering premises contract, working with Commercial Services.  This is expected Page 110



to ensure that the service needs are met by seeking an industry specific solution for the 
schools that are part of the group School Catering Contract. 

Key principles and assumptions for the insourcing of the Service 

9.5 Under these proposals, the Statutory Servicing and Repair Service would transfer into the 
Council, and the Council would directly deliver the majority of statutory testing and repairs 
work to the Council’s civic estate.  This work would include: 

• Gas servicing and remedial repairs 

• FAEL Servicing and  remedial repairs 

• Electrical testing remedial repairs 

• Responsive and Planned repairs – in respect of: 

o Heating repairs 

o Gas repairs 

o Joinery Repairs 

o Plumbing repairs 

o Electrical repairs 

o Glazing repairs 

o Roofing repairs 

o Plastering repairs 

9.6 Under this option, the service currently delivered by Kier, and the Kier workforce currently 
undertaking this work, would be transferred into the Council from 1st April 2017.  Kier’s 
workforce are experienced in delivering the CSSR  service to the Council’s Estate and so 
transferring the existing workforce into the Council will ensure retention of this experience, 
knowledge and expertise and provide continuity. 

9.7 The client team within SCC would move to work alongside the CSSR service staff. The line 
management of the team will be through the Transport & Facilities Management Directorate to 
ensure an appropriate level of experience and expertise at a senior level to successfully lead 
the insourced Service and ensure that performance is maintained.  

9.8 There are a number of elements of the service which the Council needs to consider further in 
terms of whether they would be best delivered directly by the Council, or if being contracted 
out by the Council to an external contractor would be more beneficial.  For example, if: 

• It is more economically viable to do so over the longer-term 

• The service requires little or no interaction with customers 

• Where the demand for the service is ‘ad hoc’, rather than continuous and consistent 

• The risk carried by the Council in directly delivering a specific element is considered too 
great 

9.9 The elements of the service to which one or more of the above is likely to apply and therefore 
which may be contracted out include those listed below (the full list of such elements is given 

Page 111



in Appendix One).  It is important to note that these equate to 22% of the current contract 
value: 

• Legionella Risk Assessments 

• Lift/Hoist servicing and repairs 

• FAEL Servicing and repair ( “where the system is closed protocol”) 

• Lightning protection tests and repairs 

• Auto door/roller shutter servicing and repair 

• Fire Fighting Equipment servicing and repair 

• Hard wire testing/PAT 

9.10 Facilities Management also directly subcontract some specialist provision. If the CSSR service 
is insourced and integrated with the client team, then this service will manage these 
subcontracts alongside any new contracts that are established. These subcontracts include: 

• Monumental clock servicing 

• Water feature servicing and repairs 

• Close controlled Air Con servicing 

9.11 If Cabinet approve the recommendation in this report to insource the Statutory Servicing and 
Repair Service, more detailed work will be done to further assess these elements of the 
service to determine if contracting out is the most appropriate way of delivering them.  

9.12 The Council could directly encourage the use of local supply chains, where this was compliant 
with Public Contract Regulations and value for money 

9.13 For any contracting out of certain elements of the service, opportunities would be explored for 
joint-procurement with other Council services, specifically the Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance Service.  This could potentially achieve efficiencies for general-funded services. 

9.14 For any elements that are contracted out, further work will need to be done to assess the best 
way to do this, including any staffing implications.   

Transformation of the Service after the transfer 

9.15 The transfer of the Service from Kier into the Council would initially involve as little change and 
disruption to services and staff and possible.  It would initially become a discreet service within 
the Transport and Facilities Management Directorate (Resources), and a period of stabilisation 
would follow, to enable the Service to become fully integrated into the Council. However over 
the medium term opportunities would be actively explored in terms of further joint-working and 
operational synergies with the Housing Repairs and Maintenance in-sourced Service. 

9.16 Once transfer of the service is complete, a full service review would then be undertaken and 
transformation work begun to re-shape the future service.  

10 Potential risks and disadvantages of insourcing the service 

10.1 As with any large-scale change, there are risks associated with the insourcing of the CSSR 
Service.  The key risks are described below, along with the appropriate mitigating actions to be 
taken to effectively address and manage those risks. 

Page 112



Risks associated with the work needed in preparation for insourcing the service 

10.2 Moving the current Kier workforce into the Council may impact on staff motivation and so lead 
to reduced productivity - both prior to and after the transfer into the Council.  The potential 
financial impact of a reduction in productivity is illustrated in Appendix Two. To help mitigate 
this risk, the current performance management arrangement linked to a series of KPI’s would 
be continued and closely monitored. The impact of any reduction would mean that a 1% 
decrease in productivity could lead to an increase in costs of just over £20k.   

10.3 Timescales are tight and challenging for this project.  The current Kier contract extension ends 
on March 2017 and work would be needed between now and then to prepare both the Service 
and the Council for the transfer.  There is a risk that the time and resources allocated to this 
work are not sufficient (on both the Council’s side and Kier’s). This is a particular risk for the 
Council as in some instances the same staff resource are engaged on this project and the 
Housing Repairs and Maintenance  in-sourcing project which is running to a concurrent 
timescale. This could potentially lead to delays and increased costs, increasing the risk to 
project delivery.  This will be monitored and managed as part of the implementation work.   

10.4 If any staffing resource TUPE transferring into SCC does not align with service demand levels 
then the service could have problems with excess demand or supply. Excessive staffing levels 
would present a financial risk for the Council, while insufficient labour would present a 
productivity risk. This may result in the Service either carrying an unfunded labour cost that it 
cannot recover or a failure to generate sufficient income due to a lack of capacity to undertake 
the required level of work. These risks will be mitigated through the course of the TUPE 
process with scrutiny of TUPE employer liability information and ongoing monitoring of service 
performance and demand levels.  

10.5 If the development and delivery of ICT for corporate repairs requires more resource than 
originally planned or creates significant issues, it could negatively impact on the overall 
delivery of ICT for Housing Repairs. This would disrupt and limit the ability of the Housing 
Repairs service to deliver effectively, as the ICT underpins and enables their business 
processes. To avoid this situation, work on the Housing Repairs elements of ICT will be given 
greater priority, due to the greater number of people affected. Additional work to enable the 
Corporate Repairs Service would only take place if the Council and suppliers are confident that 
it would not introduce significant risks to the overall delivery. 

Risks associated with delivery of an insourced repairs and maintenance service 

10.6 Due to the nature of the work involved in the CSSR service, there is a greater exposure to 
potential health and safety issues (e.g. exposure to asbestos leading to long-term health 
conditions) and serious accidents.  There would therefore be a potentially higher reputational 
and financial risk should the Council not successfully manage the risks resulting from 
compensation claims, corporate manslaughter charges and higher Employer and Public 
Liability Insurance payments.   

10.7 To mitigate this, thorough and robust health and safety practices will need to be in place, 
ensuring compliance with all relevant legislation and guidelines.  Senior Health and Safety 
officials from within the Council would be closely involved in implementing the new service to 
ensure that this happens. 

10.8 Insourcing the CSSR service also increases the level of uncertainty regarding the cost of 
delivering the service (in comparison with externally procuring the same service).  Unlike with 
an external contract, for which the costs would largely be fixed for the period of the contract, 
insourcing the service means that changes in the cost of materials, pay awards, fuel price Page 113



increases etc. would have a direct impact on service costs. As is the case for all other Council 
services, this would need to be managed through effective budget management, robust 
procurement processes and high levels of flexibility. 

10.9 The timescales for setting up subcontracting arrangements are also very tight. Delays in the 
setup of this provision would disrupt service delivery for certain types of work. To mitigate 
against this risk procurement for subcontractors will be carried out concurrently. The sourcing 
of supplies and subcontractors for the service would also utilise flexibility in existing contracts 
and those being established for Housing repairs and maintenance to reduce the amount of 
procurement activity necessary. 

10.10 To be a responsive service, flexible to the demands of changing volumes of work and the mix 
of work between trades, the Service will need a Workforce Strategy which is flexible and can 
adapt to these fluctuations in demand whilst maintaining the standards set for the Service. 

10.11 It is estimated that contracting out the elements of the Service identified in section 9.9 above 
could increase the supplier costs for these elements. This cost is in relation to potential 
increases in the price of materials if we do not have access to the same purchasing economies 
of scale as Kier.  This would be offset by not having to pay Kier management fees on such 
materials and would be further mitigated by robust procurement and effective contract 
management. 

10.12 There is a risk that the performance of the Service when assessed against contractual 
requirements is shown to be failing - which would in turn mean that the Council inherits a 
failing Service.  Any such shift in performance would also affect customer satisfaction and 
expose SCC to risk in terms of the building stock not meeting the required standards. To 
mitigate this, the current contract framework allows for performance management, early 
warning of failure, escalation as necessary and requirements for performance improvement 
plans to be implemented. Additionally, the Council is experienced in delivering service 
improvement and working with Kier and others to mitigate the risk of service failure.        

10.13 An insourced CSSR service would be expected to share infrastructure with the Housing 
Repairs and Maintenance Service, including using the same IT systems that the HR&M 
service use (as they currently do in Kier). If there is any delay in the delivery of this system this 
could negatively impact on service delivery for Corporate Repairs and involve further costs to 
remedy. To reduce the likelihood of any delay requirements for the Corporate Repairs service 
would be fed into the design and development of the system at the earliest stage possible. 
This also represents an opportunity to reduce the insourced CSSR service’s IT overhead costs 
due to the synergy with Housing Repairs.  However this risk is compounded as the new IT 
system is to be implemented at the same as the new Finance system with which it must 
integrate.  

10.14 There is an opportunity to reduce the overhead costs of the CSSR service as corporate 
support services needed to support an insourced CSSR Service - such as Human Resources, 
Customer Services, Payroll, Finance, Procurement and ICT Support - already exist within the 
Council. It is not anticipated that the size of the CSSR service would require changes to cope 
with the additional demand or specialist requirements of an in-house Service.  However more 
work will need to be undertaken to establish whether any changes are required as part of the 
next phase. 

11 Next steps 
Page 114



11.1 It is critical that the preparatory and implementation period begins immediately after any 
Cabinet agreement.  The work to be carried out during this period will be crucial in ensuring a 
smooth transfer to the Council and consistency of service.  It is expected that this work will 
take 9 months, from July 2016 to March 2017. The right level of resources must be in place 
and allocated to the project to ensure the tight timescales are met. 

11.2 If Cabinet approve the recommendation in this report to insource the CSSR Service, an 
internal Project Team and Project Board with an appropriate governance structure will be 
established to implement this decision. The project will be led by the Executive Director of 
Resources and will include representatives from all relevant services across the Council. 

11.3 The key objective of this Project Team and Project Board will be to ensure that all the 
necessary preparatory work is completed in readiness for the transfer of the Service into the 
Council.  This work will include: 

• Formal consultation with both Kier and Council staff and their Trade Union 
representatives regarding the TUPE transfer of the Kier workforce into the Council – as 
well as additional communications and briefings. 

• An assessment of how existing Council staff – will be impacted on by the move, and plans 
for how this will be managed (including a clear and robust communications strategy). 

• Allocation of sufficient and suitable resources for project delivery.  

• Procurement and contract management of all necessary goods, services, materials (e.g. 
transport, equipment, accommodation, IT systems and software, etc.) and sub-
contractors 

• Effective communication, engagement and consultation with, Members, staff and other 
key stakeholders. 

• Completion of a detailed Target Operating Model for the Service. 

• Development and agreement of an organisational structure for the Service, including 
where and how it will link with Housing Repairs and Maintenance and other Council 
services. 

• Development of a detailed implementation plan for the transfer. 

• The management of the risks identified in this report and identification and management 
of emerging risks.   

11.4 Robust governance arrangements will be put in place to ensure that the timeframe, cost and 
outputs of the transfer are tightly controlled.  Risks, issues and dependencies will be effectively 
managed through good project management, and the links with wider organisational change 
will be incorporated into the implementation plan.  Business Change best practice will be 
followed throughout. 

12 Legal Implications 

12.1 Having access to safe, secure and properly maintained buildings supports Council officers who 
provide statutory and other essential services to the citizens of Sheffield.  Consequently, the 
need for a CSSR service is incidental to the Council’s statutory functions.  Under Section 111 
of the Local Government Act 1972 local authorities have the power to do anything (whether or 
not involving the expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of 
any property or rights) which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the 
discharge of any of their functions. 

Page 115



12.2 Any procurement required in order to deliver both the development / implementation work 
required prior to the insourcing, and for in-house delivery of the service itself, including any 
elements of the service which it is agreed will be contracted out by the Council, must be 
procured following the Council’s standing orders and all relevant EU procurement directives. 
The procurement process will therefore have to be open, transparent, fair and non-
discriminatory. The contract awarded to the successful tenderer/s must ensure compliance 
with all applicable legislative requirements and provide for effective service delivery, value for 
money and ensure the delivery of the project outcomes. 

12.3 The same considerations will apply should Cabinet decide upon the full external procurement 
route.  

13 Human Resources (HR) Implications 

13.1 At this stage, it is not possible to provide a complete assessment on all HR implications that 
could result from the proposals in this paper.  However, the immediate apparent implications 
include TUPE and possibly Equal Pay. 

13.2 TUPE could possibly apply if staff that currently work on the CSSR contract for the Council 
were transferred to the Council’s employment.  The majority of the staff to be transferred would 
be operatives, with a smaller number of support staff and operational managers.  These staff 
may include ex-Council employees who transferred to Kier in 2014. 

13.3 Although TUPE could apply, the proper assessment of whether TUPE will apply and if so to 
who requires employee information that the Council does not have access to at this stage.  If 
TUPE does apply, the Council will need to have sufficient time in the implementation period to 
undertake proper consultations on the transfer with affected staff and their representatives. 

13.4 Operatives within Kier working on Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs Contract are 
understood to no longer be remunerated on a scheme that pays bonus. This reduces the 
future risk of equal pay challenge. 

14 Equal Opportunities Implications 

14.1 A full Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken to assess the potential impact 
of the recommendations in this report in terms of equal opportunities.  The following is a 
summary of the findings. 

14.2 There will be staffing implications as a result of the TUPE transfer of Kier Services Ltd. staff 
into the Council.  However, there is not expected to be any disproportionate impact on staff 
with a particular protected characteristic.  

14.3 The Council has a wide range of policies and procedures already in place to support 
employees reduce potential inequalities in the workplace.  Access to these policies and 
procedures will be available to all transferred staff to support their integration into the Council.   

14.4 There is a small risk that some transferring staff may not be fully included in the consultation 
process due to their characteristics - in particular those staff on pregnancy / maternity / 
paternity leave, or those absent from work due to illness or disability.  Managers will be 
expected to ensure that these staff are involved wherever possible in consultation 
arrangements in a manner appropriate to their needs.   

Page 116



14.5 It will also be important to ensure that staff transferring into the Council are given an 
appropriate induction to the Council so that they are aware of the support offered to staff with 
protected characteristics.     

14.6 There is not expected to be any negative impact on customers as a result of these proposals, 
and the intention is that the Service will deliver positive changes and improvements in the 
longer-term. The service will initially carry on delivering the same service to customers as it 
does at the moment, and any proposals to change this service will be developed in partnership 
with customers and will take account their diverse needs. 

14.7 The EIA has assessed the overall impact of the project as ‘low’, and a copy of the full EIA 
document is attached in Appendix 3. 

15 Reasons for recommendations 

15.1 Insourcing the Statutory Servicing and Repair Service will give the Council more control, 
flexibility and accountability in managing the Service, enabling the service to be fully integrated 
into the Council and to work in close partnership with other relevant key Council services.  This 
will help to ensure that the Service is delivered in a way which fully supports the Council’s 
corporate objectives and enables the Council to more easily make further changes in future. 

15.2 Bringing the CSSR Service in-house for direct delivery by the Council will also help to bring 
about an alignment of culture in the Service to that of the Council, as well as its approach to 
customers. 

15.3 Based on all information known to date, and after the initial upfront costs of transferring the 
service, the insourced option is expected to generate sustainable year-on-year revenue 
savings.  In addition, once fully integrated into the Council there will be further opportunities to 
reduce duplication and increase efficiency within the Service and by exploring the degree of 
joint-working possible with the HR&M Service potentially enabling it to improve outcomes 
within available budgets. 

15.4 Insourcing also brings with it the potential to expand the service’s external-trading function, 
which already generates £700,000 - £800,000 revenue from work for schools. This could 
include undertaking statutory servicing and repairs work on behalf of other organisations, as 
well as increasing the amount of work done for schools.   

15.5 Directly delivering the service in-house, with some elements of it being outsourced to locally-
based contractors wherever possible, would help support the concept of the ‘Sheffield Brand’.  
Materials would be purchased from local suppliers wherever possible (subject of course to the 
usual procurement rules and Council policies), and the workforce would be predominantly 
local. The supply chain would also, where possible, be tailored to the bespoke needs of SCC 
Corporate Buildings to reduce material lead in times improve service delivery. 

15.6 Independent research by APSE (the Association for Public Service Excellence) has also 
identified a number of potential benefits of insourcing services, based on actual case-studies 
and local authority experiences: 

• Improved performance 

• Stronger links to corporate strategic objectives 

• Greater flexibility, and more responsive to local and national policy changes 

• Efficiency savings 
Page 117



• Improved customer satisfaction 

• Enhanced local supply chains 

• Better integration and joining-up with other relevant key services 

• New development and employment opportunities for the workforce transferred in 

15.7 There are of course risks associated with the option to insource the service (as indeed there 
are with the other two alternative delivery options discussed in this report), and some of these 
risks are significant.  However, measures are and will continue to be in place to mitigate these 
risks, and if any of these risks significantly escalate, or any significant new risks (including 
financial ones) emerge, a further report would be brought back to Cabinet before progressing 
the transfer any further. 

16 Reasons for Exemption 

16.1 Appendices Two and Four are not for publication by virtue of Regulation 20(2) Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 because, in the opinion of the proper officer, it contains exempt information 
under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 

17 Recommendations 

That Cabinet: 

17.1 Approves the proposal in this paper to insource the Corporate Statutory Servicing & 
Repairs Service (CSSR) from 1st April 2017. 

17.2 Gives its approval for the insourcing to be done based on the principles and assumptions 
described in section 8 of this report, and taking into account the risks and mitigations as set 
out in section 9, including the potential contracting-out of a proportion of the service. 

17.3 Gives its approval for the budget required to cover the one-off implementation and set-up 
costs, as described in section 8.9 of this report. 

17.4 Notes that the Executive Director of Resources shall ensure that all necessary steps to 
progress and implement the insourcing of the service are taken in accordance with his current 
delegations under the Leader’s Scheme of Delegations.  These steps may include:  

o At the appropriate time, commencing formal consultation with staff and Trade Unions 
regarding the transfer of staff from Kier into the Council (in consultation with the Director 
of Human Resources as necessary). 

o Developing the structure and agreeing the timescales needed to deliver an in-house 
corporate repairs service (in consultation with the Director of Human Resources as 
necessary). 

o Undertaking a more detailed assessment of which elements of the service are more 
appropriate to be contracted out, rather than directly delivered by the Council, and what 
the impact of this will be and how that will need to be managed (in consultation with the 
Director of Commercial Services and the Director of Human Resources as necessary). 

o Approving the procurement strategy and contract award, and agreeing contract terms and 
entering into the contracts, for all necessary goods and services.  This will apply to both 
the development / implementation work required prior to the insourcing, and for in-house Page 118



delivery of the service itself (including any elements of the service which it is agreed will 
be contracted out by the Council) once it is brought back into the Council (in consultation 
with the Director of Commercial Services and the Director of Legal and Governance as 
necessary). 

o Any other work required for the effective preparation for and implementation of the 
insourcing of the Statutory Servicing and Repairs Service. 

17.5 To the extent that the Executive Director of Resources does not already have authority under 
the Leader’s Scheme of Delegations, delegates authority to the Executive Director of 
Resources to approve the procurement strategy and contract award, and agree contract terms 
and enter into the contracts, for necessary goods and services (in consultation with the 
Director of Commercial Services and the Director of Legal and Governance as necessary). 

17.6 Notes that the Executive Director of Resources will work with the Executive Director of 
Communities, who is responsible for insourcing the Housing Repairs and Maintenance 
Service, to explore potential efficiencies. 

17.7 Requests that a further report is presented to Cabinet if the underlying strategy for the future of 
the Service cannot be achieved, or if any unforeseen significant risks emerge which may 
prompt Cabinet to re-consider its decision. 

 

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix One: List of functions / elements covered by the current 
Corporate Servicing and Repairs contact with Kier Services Ltd 

The current Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs contract covers the following: 

Servicing 

• Gas Servicing 

• Fire Alarm & Emergency Lighting Servicing  

• Earthing / Lightning Protection 

• Air Conditioning / AHU (Air Handling Unit) Servicing 

• Fire Fighting Equipment Servicing 

• Latchwire / Safe Man Systems Testing 

• Lifts/Hoist Servicing 

• Auto Door / Roller Shutter Servicing 

• Kitchen Filtration Servicing 

• Hard Wire Electrical Testing 

• Oil Fired Appliance Servicing 

• Air/Ground Source Heat Pump Servicing 

• CHP (Combined Heat & Power) Servicing 

• PAT (Portable Appliance Testing) 

• FRA (Fire Risk Assessments) 

• Asbestos Management & Surveys 

• L8 Legionella RA (Risk Assessment) 

Remedial Repairs from Servicing 

• Repair from Gas Servicing 

• Repairs from Fire Alarm & Emergency Lighting Servicing 

• Repairs from Earthing / Lightning Protection 

• Repairs from Air Con / AHU Servicing 

• Repairs from Fire Fighting Equipment Servicing 

• Repairs from Latchwire / Safe Man system Testing 

• Repairs from Lift/Hoist Servicing 

• Repairs from Auto Door / Roller Shutter Servicing 

• Repairs from Kitchen Filtration Servicing 

• Repairs from Hard Wire Testing 

Page 121



• Repairs from Oil Fired Servicing 

• Repairs from Heat Pump Servicing 

• Asbestos Removal / Surveys 

 
Responsive & Planned Repairs 
 

• Gas Repairs 

• Fire Alarm & Emergency Lighting Repairs 

• Earthing / Lightning Protection Repairs 

• Air Conditioning / AHU Repairs 

• Kitchen filtration repairs 

• Lift / Hoist Repairs 

• Plumbing Repairs 

• Electrical Repairs 

• Glazing Repairs 

• Joinery Repairs 

• Heating Repairs 

• Roofing Repairs 

• Plastering Repairs 

• Auto Door / Roller Shutter Repairs 

 

Page 122



Page 123

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Three: Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
Name of policy/project/decision: Corporate Statutory Servicing & Repairs Service - Delivery 
Options Post-March 2017 - Cabinet Report 
 

Status of policy/project/decision: New 

Name of person(s) writing EIA: Rob Markham 

Date: May 2016   

Portfolio: Resources 

Budget/project proposal status: Project 

Years: 16/17, 17/18, 18/19, 19/20  

EIA date: 19/05/16 

EIA lead: Michelle.hawley@sheffield.gov.uk 

Lead corporate plan priority: An In-touch Organisation 

What are the brief aims of the policy/project/decision?   

In March 2014 SCC setup a contract for Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs with Kier for 2-
years. This contract includes an option for a contract-extension for up to three more years (i.e. to 
31st March 2019), should both the Council and Kier Services Ltd agree to this, and one of these 
extensions has been implemented. The project will assess options for how this service is delivered 
after the contract end date while ensuring the ongoing legal compliance of SCC buildings.  

 

Areas of 
possible 
impact 

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  

(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This 
should be proportionate to the impact.) 

Age Neutral None/ 
Low 

No change in the average age of the workforce if staff TUPE. 
For Kier staff transferring, they would join a workforce with a 
different age distribution and may experience difficulties 
integrating because of this. 

Supporting evidence 

Average age of Transport & Facilities Management service is 
47 years old, average age of the Kier workforce that may be 
subject to TUPE (dependent on option chosen) is 47 years old.  

Disability Neutral None/ 
Low 

Kier workforce have a slightly higher proportion of staff with 
disabilities than Transport & Facilities Management. Disabled 
staff transferring from Kier will join a service that has a slightly 
lower proportion of disabled staff and so could be concerned 
over how well they will be supported by the Council. 

Supporting evidence 

7% Transport & Facilities Management service staff report 
having a disability, for the Kier workforce on the CSSR contract 
this is 8%. 

Pregnancy / 
maternity 

Negative Medium 
/ High 

There may be employees on paternity/maternity leave who 
would not receive face to face consultation if TUPE was an 
element of any option selected.  This may have a negative Page 131



Areas of 
possible 
impact 

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  

(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This 
should be proportionate to the impact.) 

impact on their ability to engage in the transfer process.   

Supporting evidence 

Information not known at this time, will be discovered during any 
TUPE process. 

Race Neutral Medium 
/ High 

Kier workforce that may transfer to SCC (dependent on the 
option chosen) have a greater ethnic diversity in their staff. For 
any ethnic minority members of Kier staff this means they will 
transfer to be part of a less ethnically diverse workforce and this 
may cause concern around how this may impact how they are 
treated. 

Supporting evidence 

23% of Kier staff working on CSSR contract report being part of 
an ethnic minority, for Transport & Facilities Management this is 
13%. 

Religion/ 
belief 

Neutral None / 
Low 

No information available on difference in religion or belief. 

Sex Negative Medium 
/ High 

There are a greater proportion of male staff in the Kier 
workforce for CSSR than in the T&FM service. Female staff 
working in Transport & Facilities management will experience a 
shift in the makeup of their service once Kier staff transfer in. 
This may cause them concern on what possible impact this may 
have on workplace culture and how they are treated. 

Supporting evidence 

Gender ration (male to female) is 2.1:1 for Asset Management. 
For Kier this is 5.86:1, almost three times higher. 

Sexual 
orientation 

Neutral None / 
Low 

No information available  

Transgender Neutral None / 
Low 

We have no data on the number of transgender staff within 
the Kier CSSR workforce. 

Carers Neutral None / 
Low 

No information available at this time. 

Voluntary, 
community 
& faith 
sector 

None   

Financial 
inclusion, 
poverty, 
social 
justice:  

None   

Cohesion:  None   

Page 132



Areas of 
possible 
impact 

Impact Impact 
level 

Explanation and evidence  

(Details of data, reports, feedback or consultations. This 
should be proportionate to the impact.) 

Other / 
additional  

None   

Overall summary of possible impact 

There will be significant staffing implications as a result of the TUPE transfer of Kier Services Ltd. 
staff into the Council. There is not expected to be any disproportionate impact on staff with a 
particular protected characteristic however the Council has a wide range of policies and 
procedures already in place to support employees reduce potential inequalities in the workplace. 
Access to these policies and procedures will be available to all transferred staff to support their 
integration into the Council. There is a small risk that some transferring staff may not be fully 
included in the consultation process due to their characteristics - in particular those staff on 
pregnancy/maternity/paternity leave or those absent from work due to illness or disability. This risk 
is covered in the action plan and managers will be expected to ensure that these staff are involved 
wherever possible in consultation arrangements in a manner appropriate to their needs. It is 
important to ensure that staff transferring into the Council are given an appropriate induction to the 
Council so that they are aware of the support offered to staff with protected characteristics. This is 
also captured in the action plan attached to this EIA. There is not expected to be any negative 
impact on customers as a result of these proposals and the intention is that the service will deliver 
positive service changes over the longer-term. The service will initially carry on delivering the 
same service to customers as it does at the moment. Proposals to change this service will be 
developed in partnership with customers and will take account of their diverse needs. The aim of 
bringing the repairs service back into the Council is to improve the overall service to customers. 

Consultation 

Consultation required: Yes 

Consultation start date: 30/09/16 

Consultation end date: 31/03/16 

Details of consultation: As part of the TUPE transfer of staff the Council will consult on any 
changes. This will include a series of consultation meetings with Trade unions, affected Kier staff 
and potentially affected SCC staff. There will also be one to one consultations with individual staff. 

Action plan 

Area of impact Action and mitigation 

Age Any changes identified as a part of any TUPE process will be subject to full 
consultation. Some of the changes may result in a positive impact where the 
SCC 'offer' as part of the transfer provides additional benefits. Any staff 
transferring into the service will be covered by the Council's 'Dignity and 
Respect at Work' policy or a transferred Kier equivalent policy, providing 
support for the resolution of any equality issues. 

Page 133



Area of impact Action and mitigation 

Many of the Kier staff are already experienced in TUPE process from 
previous transfers. These changes may cause concerns for Kier staff, 
regarding places of work and line management. Full consultation and 
communication with staff is paramount requiring managers and supervisors 
to remain open and honest with the staff. The idea of the change to SCC 
may be seen as negative by some staff. This impact will need to be 
managed. 

The impact on employees who are away from work on sickness absence 
may be negative and again needs to be managed. 

Disability The Council will also consider any reasonable adjustments for disabled staff 
during and after the transfer.  As well as Kier, the Council is a member of 
the 'Two Ticks' scheme providing support and development opportunities for 
disabled people.  

All staff to be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

•Wide range of flexible working options.  

•Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

•Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

•Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 
wellbeing. 

Pregnancy / 
Maternity 

Any CSSR Kier staff that are eligible for TUPE transfer and on 
maternity/paternity leave will be fully consulted with on a regular basis using 
other communication methods and kept up to date with changes that will be 
made to their working environment. HR lead on TUPE consultation, 
timelines being developed and progress will be monitored through project 
plan reporting at project team meetings. 

Race There is currently lower representation of BME staff in the T&FM workforce 
and this would need to be considered further once staff transfer.  The TUPE 
process should not result in any negative impact on individual members of 
staff as a result of their equality profile.  Any changes identified as a part of 
the TUPE process will be subject to full consultation. 

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

• Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

• Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

• Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 

wellbeing. 

Religion / belief The TUPE process should not result in any negative impact on individual 
members of staff as a result of their equality profile. Any changes identified 
as a part of the TUPE process will be subject to full consultation.  

 

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

Page 134



Area of impact Action and mitigation 

• Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

• Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

• Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 

wellbeing. 

Sex There is currently an under representation of female staff in the Kier 
workforce and options to reduce this disparity would need to be considered 
further if staff transfer to ensure there is not a disproportionate impact on 
women. 

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

•Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

Sexual Orientation The TUPE process should not result in any negative impact on individual 
members of staff as a result of their equality profile. Any changes identified 
as a part of the TUPE process will be subject to full consultation.  

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

•Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

•Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

•Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 
wellbeing 

Transgender The TUPE process should not result in any negative impact on individual 
members of staff as a result of their equality profile. Any changes identified 
as a part of the TUPE process will be subject to full consultation.  

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

•Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

•Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

•Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 
wellbeing 

Carers The TUPE process should not result in any negative impact on individual 
members of staff as a result of their equality profile. Any changes identified 
as a part of the TUPE process will be subject to full consultation.  

All staff will be made aware of the key Council commitments to equality and 
dignity within the workforce including: 

•Dignity and Respect at Work policy 

•Access to Staff Equality and Inclusion Networks 

•Employment policies and support mechanisms to promote health and 
wellbeing 

 

Proposal has geographical impact across Sheffield: No 

Page 135



Proposal has a cumulative impact: No 

Review date: 01/12/16 Reference number: 899 

Risk rating: Low 

Type of Decision: Executive Decision (Cabinet) 

Lead Cabinet Member: Curran Ben (LAB-CLLR) 

Manager and Approval 

Lead Officer:  Eugene Walker    

Approved (EIA Lead Officer for Portfolio): Michelle Hawley 

 Date: 27/05/2015 

  

 

Page 136



Page 137

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Form 2 – Executive Report                                                        July 2016 

 

 
 

 
Author/Lead Officer of Report: The Director of 
Capital and Major Projects 
 
Tel:  2735539 

 
Report of: 
 

Executive Director, Place 

Report to: 
 

Cabinet 

Date of Decision: 
 

20th July 2016 

Subject: Sheffield Retail Quarter – Delivery of First Phase 
 
 

 

Is this a Key Decision? If Yes, reason Key Decision:- Yes x No   
 

- Expenditure and/or savings over £500,000  x  
  

- Affects 2 or more Wards  x  
 

 

Which Cabinet Member Portfolio does this relate to?  
Business and Economy  
 
Which Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee does this relate to?       
Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 
 
 

 

Has an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) been undertaken? Yes x No   
 

If YES, what EIA reference number has it been given?   926 

 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information? Yes x No   
 

If YES, give details as to whether the exemption applies to the full report / part of the 
report and/or appendices and complete below:- 
 

Part 2 of this report and Appendices B and C are not for publication by virtue of 
Regulation 20(2) Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 because, in the opinion of the 
proper officer, it contains exempt information under Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 139



Page 2 of 5 

Purpose of Report: 
 
This report seeks approval for the Council to commence delivery of the first phase of the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter development on the site of the former Grosvenor Hotel block as 
shown on the plan attached (hereinafter referred to as the HSBC/Retail Block), and to 
work with its Strategic Development Partner to work up a deliverable and commercially 
viable wider Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme. 

 

 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That Cabinet  
 
(1) Approves the strategy outlined in this report for the delivery of the next stage of the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter to December 2017 
 
2) Delegates authority to the Executive Director of Place in consultation with The Cabinet 
Member for Business and Economy, The Cabinet Member for Finance & Resources , 
Executive Director of Resources, the Director of Legal & Governance and the Director of 
Capital and Major Projects, to 
  

• Negotiate and agree the terms of an Agreement for Lease and Lease with HSBC 
for their new office development within the Sheffield Retail Quarter site  and all 
other necessary legal documentation consistent with the contents of this report as 
he believes are reasonable in all circumstances 
 

• Negotiate, and agree the terms of an Agreement for Lease(s) for the retail units 
within the HSBC/Retail Block and all other necessary legal documentation 

 

• Submit detailed a planning application for the development of the HSBC/Retail 
Block and adjoining public realm improvement works and to secure all necessary 
consents to enable delivery to proceed. 

 

• Continue the appointment of the full professional team to undertake detailed design 
work on the HSBC/Retail Block and the Sheffield Retail Quarter public realm 
improvement works and to progress the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter planning 
permission. 
 

• Procure construction services and enter into contracts for pre-construction services 
for the Sheffield Retail Quarter development in accordance with the Councils usual 
procurement process and any applicable laws relating to procurement with contract 
values not exceeding the project financial authority 

 

• Commission and agree terms with any other specialist consultants to advise the 
Council as necessary throughout the course of the Sheffield Retail Quarter project 
 

• Upon completion of the Agreement for Lease and Lease with HSBC to let the 
construction contract(s) for the development of the HSBC/Retail Block and the 
public realm improvement works together with any retail/food and beverage 
kiosks/units, subject to the Councils usual procurement process and any applicable 
laws relating to procurement with the total cost not exceeding the project authority 

Page 140



Page 3 of 5 

 

• Negotiate, agree and enter into conditional Agreement for Lease(s) and Lease(s) 
for the remainder of the retail units within the Sheffield Retail Quarter together with 
all other associated office residential food and beverage and leisure units 
 

• Determine the most appropriate disposal strategy for the Council and if necessary 
sell the whole or any part of the HSBC/Retail Block as an investment and if 
necessary use the Councils covenant to underwrite the financial viability  
 

• Amend the Councils VAT Partial Exemption reporting policy to maximise the 
recovery of VAT on expenditure relating to the HSBC/Retail Block and liaise with 
HMRC accordingly. 
 

• To instruct the Director of Legal & Governance to complete all necessary legal 
documentation required to document the terms of any transactions agreed in 
accordance with the approvals delegated pursuant to this report. 

 
Subject to compliance with the Councils budget processes, financial regulations and 
Capital Approval processes. 
 

(3) That in the absence of the Executive Director of Place due to annual leave or 
illness, the Director of Capital and Major Projects is authorised to exercise the 
powers given to the Executive Director of Place by Cabinet in this report 
 
(4) Approves  
 

• The budget as set out in this report to deliver the HSBC/Retail Block and all 
necessary public realm improvement works of up to a maximum of £90m.  
 

• For this budget to be funded through Prudential Borrowing and be subject to the 
phasing of the spend going through the Council Capital Approval process,  

 

• To earmark any business rates uplift to repay any balance of the Prudential 
Borrowing, and 
 

• The application for Sheffield City Region Investment Fund (SCRIF) funding to be 
applied in accordance with any obligations or restrictions that the funding is subject 
to. 
 

(5) Approves the additional £35.8m budget as set out in this report to progress the wider 
Sheffield Retail Quarter development up to December 2017, to be funded through 
Prudential Borrowing  
 
(6) Delegates authority to the Executive Director of Resources in consultation with the 
Executive Director of Place to approve the release of the budget on the satisfactory 
completion of each of the relevant milestones. 

 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Sheffield New Retail Quarter Report to Executive Leader dated 8th October 2013, New 
Retail Quarter Steps Towards Delivery Report to Cabinet on 23rd July 2014 

 

Page 141



Page 4 of 5 

 
Lead Officer to complete:- 
 

1 I have consulted the relevant departments 
in respect of any relevant implications 
indicated on the Statutory and Council 
Policy Checklist, and comments have 
been incorporated / additional forms 
completed / EIA completed, where 
required. 

Finance:  Jayne Clarke 
 

Legal:  David Sellars 
 

Equalities: Beth Storm 
 

 
Legal, financial/commercial and equalities implications must be included within the report and 
the name of the officer consulted must be included above. 

2 EMT member who approved 
submission: 

Simon Green, Executive Director Place 

3 Cabinet Member consulted: 
 

Councillor Leigh Bramall 

4 I confirm that all necessary approval has been obtained in respect of the implications indicated 
on the Statutory and Council Policy Checklist and that the report has been approved for 
submission to the Decision Maker by the EMT member indicated at 2.  In addition, any 
additional forms have been completed and signed off as required at 1. 
 

 
Lead Officer Name: 
Nalin Seneviratne 
 

Job Title:  
The Director of Capital and Major Project 
 

 
Date:  11

th
 July 2016 

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 142



Page 5 of 5 

  
  
 

Page 143



Page 144

This page is intentionally left blank



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                          January 2014 

 
 

REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PLACE 
 
SHEFFIELD RETAIL QUARTER – DELIVERY OF FIRST PHASE 
 
1.0 
 
1.1 
 
 
 

PROPOSAL 
 
This report seeks approval for the Council to commence delivery of the first phase 
of the Sheffield Retail Quarter development on the site of the former Grosvenor 
Hotel block as shown on the plan attached marked as Appendix A (hereinafter 
referred to as the HSBC/Retail Block), and to work with its Strategic Development 
Partner to work up a deliverable and commercially viable wider Sheffield Retail 
Quarter scheme. 

  
2.0 HOW DOES THIS DECISION CONTRIBUTE? 
 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 
 

 
The Sheffield Retail Quarter will provide a high class regional shopping and leisure 
addition to the current city centre retail offer which will deliver a step change and 
lift Sheffield up the national retail ranking to compete with other city centres such 
as Manchester, Leeds and Nottingham.  
 
It will deliver substantial economic and social benefits, not only providing new 
retail, but also leisure uses, offices, housing and high quality public realm, creating 
an attractive environment in which to live, work, shop and relax 
 
The scheme will stimulate wider investment in the city centre, generate business 
rates and create a high quality retail and leisure led mixed use scheme and 
consolidate the prime retail offer.  
 
The development of the Sheffield Retail Quarter also enhances the status of 
Sheffield and the city centre in itself and it will help generate much improved city 
centre visitor numbers thus adding to the overall success of the city centre. It will 
help stimulate office, commercial and leisure investment/development in the city 
centre which is part of the City’s growth strategy. 
 
It will retain both HSBC a large financial services employer in the city centre in 
new modern flexible office space, and, subject to final agreements, provide a new 
department store, together with providing modern high quality retail/leisure 
accommodation that the city centre is currently lacking. This new space will allow 
both current retailers/leisure brands to expand and for new retailers/leisure brands 
to establish a presence in the city centre. 
 

 
 
2.6 
 
 
 
 
2.7 

Outcomes:  
 
Illustrative economic estimates have been provided to the Council on the benefits 
of delivery of the Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme. These estimates were 
calculated whilst the scheme is in the design phase and will be reviewed as the 
design and final occupiers of the Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme are settled. 
 
Based on an estimated construction cost for the Sheffield Retail Quarter of £350 

 

Page 145



Page 2 of 18 

 
 
 
  
 
2.8 
 
 
 
2.9 
 
 
 
 
 
2.10 
 
 
 
 
 
2.11 
 
 
 
 
2.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.13 
 
 
2.14 
 
 
 
 
3.0 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 

million (as per the current planning application) the average annual GVA (Gross 
Value Added) contribution generated will be in the region of £28.2 million over the 
next seven years. This contribution will peak at around £65.0 million in 2019. The 
bulk of this benefit is expected to accrue to Sheffield.  
 
Each year as a result of investment in the project, Sheffield-based firms can 
expect to be paid more than £40 million for construction activities and professional 
services, generating a direct GVA contribution of £19.2 million for the City.  
 
From 2022 onwards, when it is currently anticipated that the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter development (as currently planned) will be completed and fully open to the 
public, the expected uplift in annual consumer spending on retail and catering 
activity in Sheffield city centre, will have an even more substantial impact on the 
regional economy.  
 
The GVA contribution for the City Region driven by this additional spending is put 
at £90.0 million per annum, sufficient to support around 4,470 jobs and generate 
£66.8 million in tax revenues (including the additional VAT). Most of this benefit 
will accrue to Sheffield itself, which will see £80.9 million in additional annual GVA, 
supporting around 4,210 jobs 
 
When HSBC move into the new offices to be provided as part of the HSBC/Retail 
block this is expected (as reported by the bank) to support 2,700 jobs in Sheffield, 
and it is anticipated that this will protect an annual GVA contribution of £95.8m to 
the city region with £94.1m per annum accruing to Sheffield itself. 
 
The additional business rates income the Sheffield Retail Quarter will generate 
can be retained the Council under the New Development Deal. This increased 
income allows the Council to raise finance which could be invested in the delivery 
of the development. 
 
Sustainability:  

 
Completion of the Sheffield Retail Quarter development will make the city centre a 
more cohesive and sustainable location to attract further investment. 

 
Delivery of the Sheffield Retail Quarter will help the city centre become more 
sustainable in terms of economic activity, by bringing about improvements in 
social well-being and deliver buildings designed to minimise environmental 
impact. 
 
PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
 
The Council has undertaken a comprehensive consultation process for the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter proposals with both key stakeholders with the general 
public, and throughout this consultation there has been widespread and strong 
public support to see a scheme delivered. 
 
The last pubic consultation exercise undertaken by the Council in May/June 2015 
attracted over 3,000 visitors to the marque erected at the top of Fargate and 
approximately 800 written representations were received, with the vast majority 

Page 146



Page 3 of 18 

 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
3.4 

supporting the Sheffield Retail Quarter proposals. 
 
As the Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme moves forward there will be further public 
consultation undertaken as part of the normal process, providing another 
opportunity for the general public to be engaged and to make comments 
 
The Council has carefully listened to the feedback it has received to date and this 
is helping to shape the Sheffield Retail Quarter proposals going forward 
 

4.0 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
4.4.1 
 
 
 
4.4.2 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
4.5.1 
 
 
 
4.5.2 
 
 
4.6 
 
4.6.1 
 
 
 
4.6.2 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
Following the report to the Executive Leader dated 8th October 2013, the Cabinet 
report on 24th July 2014 and through the capital approvals process the Council has 
continued to drive the Sheffield Retail Quarter project forward.  
 
Progress to Date  
 
Acquisitions 
 
The ownership of the proposed Sheffield Retail Quarter site has been secured via 
the serving of CPO notices, acquisitions of properties by agreement and the 
acquisition of both the historic Hammerson and Homes and Community Agency 
(HCA) property interests within the site. 
 
Planning application 
 
Following a comprehensive consultation exercise with both the public and key 
stakeholders the Council (acting as developer) has submitted an outline planning 
application for the Sheffield Retail Quarter development. 
 
Given the importance size and complexity of this planning application it is still 
progressing through the planning process, and it is currently anticipated that it will 
be considered later this summer. 
 
Demolition of Grosvenor Hotel block 
 
The demolition of the Grosvenor Hotel block is proceeding. The Councils selected 
demolition contractor, DSM is due to take control of the block and commence the 
demolition works in earnest in August 2016.  
 
The demolition works are currently programed to be completed by the end of the 
year 
 
Selection of Strategic Development Partner  
 
As previously reported to Cabinet the Council recognised that it required a 
Strategic Development Partner with the appropriate development expertise skills 
and resources to assist in the delivery of the Sheffield Retail Quarter. 
 
The Council has carried out a comprehensive EU compliant procurement process 
to seek this partner, and Queensbury Real Estate Ltd have been identified as 

Page 147



Page 4 of 18 

 
 
 
 
4.6.3 
 
 
4.6.4 
 
 
4.6.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.6.6 
 
 
 
5.0 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 

having the necessary experience, skills and resources to work for the Council in a 
development management capacity to assist the Council in delivering the Sheffield 
Retail Quarter to the market. 
 
Queensbury Real Estate Ltd will now take the overall lead in creating and then 
managing the delivery of the Sheffield Retail Quarter investment 
 
They will undertake a comprehensive commercial review of the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter development proposals prepared to date. 
 
This will involve  
 

• Challenging testing and reviewing the current scheme, its layout and design 
to ensure it  produces the most efficient retail/leisure space 
 

• Carrying out a review of all the cost plans and programmes for the delivery 
of the Sheffield Retail Quarter 

 

• Taking the lead on all negotiations with the retailers, including the proposed 
anchor John Lewis 

 

• Preparing the business plan to achieve and deliver a viable and successful 
development 

 

• Advising the Council on how to minimise development risk and produce a 
vibrant and successful scheme 
 

• Assisting the Council in the tendering of the construction packages 
 

• Helping the Council to secure private sector investment at the appropriate 
time to in order to help fund the delivery 

 

• Overseeing the delivery stages of the development and put in place the 
future management arrangements 

 
The Council will pay Queensbury Real Estate Ltd  a development management 
fee and will seek to recover this from the ultimate developer/investor in the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter development 
 
COUNCIL TO ACT AS DEVELOPER/INVESTOR 
 
To further reinforce the need for input from a strategic development partner it 
became apparent to the Council during both the strategic development partner 
procurement process, and following informal market testing of the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter development opportunity that in order to maintain project momentum and 
the fact that there is now a major office tenant to accommodate, the Council will 
need to continue to act as developer/investor. 
 
In order to make the Sheffield Retail Quarter development/investment opportunity 
attractive to the market the Council needs to both deliver the first phase of the 

Page 148



Page 5 of 18 

 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.8 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
5.10 
 
 
 

scheme (the HSBC/Retail block) and also at the same time undertake further work 
to advance the project with Queensbury Real Estate Ltd.  
The Council will therefore need to continue to act as the developer and investor in 
this stage of the development, and has control of the land and the ability to raise 
finance through Prudential Borrowing and any business rates uplift the Sheffield 
Retail Quarter will generate, to do this. 
 
This additional work on the Sheffield Retail Quarter (excluding the HSBC/Retail 
block) is to work up and deliver an “oven ready” scheme which can be 
demonstrated to the market is commercially viable and thus investable, with 
planning permission in place and with the key anchor pre-lets of retail space 
agreed, the required level of pre-lets of the retail space to secure an income 
stream in place, the costs of delivery fixed and a long term finance source 
identified. 
 
When this point is reached the project will be subject to a further report to Cabinet 
to approve the final delivery stage of the Sheffield Retail Quarter. 
 
The current delivery stage is made of up a number of key milestones whilst the 
planning process is ongoing, and the project will only continue in its current form if 
these milestones are satisfactorily completed. If the milestones are not complete 
then alternative proposal will be developed and may be subject to further reports 
to Cabinet. 
 
Key Milestones : 
 

Milestone Date Indicative Deliverables 

December 2016 • Anchor Tenant Agreement 

March 2017 • Anchor Tenant Agreement for Lease agreed 

December 2017 • Planning Permission in place and conditions 
discharged 

• Acceptable level of rental value pre-lets in place 

• Development Funding Agreement agreed 

• Tendered construction costs 

 
The full financial implications of the Council continuing to act as developer/investor 
are set out in detail in paragraph 9.0 of this report 
 
Governance 
 
The Sheffield Retail Quarter project is managed through the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter Programme Board which includes the Executive Director of Place, the 
Executive Director of Resources, the Director of Legal & Governance and the 
Director of Capital and Major Projects, with further authorisation on financial 
matters going through the Capital Gateway Process, and Cabinet as required 
 
The Board monitors the delivery of the Sheffield Retail Quarter, managing the 
vision, outcomes, benefits and any strategic risks to the Council. The board also 
takes overall responsibility for decision making in line with the delegations 
authorised by Cabinet. 

Page 149



Page 6 of 18 

 
 
6.0 
 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
 
6.4 
 
 
 
 
6.5 
 
 
 
6.6 
 
 
 
6.7 
 
 
 

6.8 
 
 
 
 

6.9 
 
 
 
 
 

6.10 
 
 
 
6.11 
 

 
 
DELIVERY OF FIRST PHASE – THE HSBC/RETAIL BLOCK AND RELATED 
PUBLIC REALM IMPROVEMENT WORKS 
 
In order to make a real statement of intention to the market the Council will deliver 
the first phase of the Sheffield Retail Quarter development directly (the 
HSBC/Retail Block) ahead of the rest of the scheme. This move was prompted in 
part by the HSBC Banks requirement for new office space within the city centre  
 
HSBC currently occupy office space in Griffin House and other office buildings 
within the city centre but it is dated accommodation and no longer meets their 
needs. 
 
HSBC have been looking to consolidate their offices into one modern flexible office 
space in the city centre for some time and have been in discussions with a number 
of developers on various sites. 
 
The Council identified HSBC as a key anchor tenant for the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter as it would not only help deliver an early phase of the development but 
also provide footfall and spending power to help underpin the wider development 
and act as a catalyst for the scheme. 
 
The Council therefore submitted a proposal to the bank. Heads of terms have now 
been agreed and subject to these being ratified by both parties the Council will 
then submit a detailed planning application for the HSBC/Retail Block. 
 
The HSBC/Retail Block will consist of a Net Internal Area of 228,000 square feet. 
HSBC will take a majority of the office space created above the ground floor retail 
space. 
  
The details of the commercial terms with the bank are contained in Part 2 of this 

report. 

 

The commencement of any development will be subject to the Council obtaining 

satisfactory planning consent which is anticipated to be secured by Quarter 1 

2017. The bank are seeking a completion date in Quarter 1 2019. 

 

The development of the block also creates circa 52,000 square feet of retail/leisure 
floor space at ground floor level which does not yet have any tenants secured. The 
Council will market and seek to let these units on the best terms available in the 
market. 
 

However because of the strict timeline that is required to meet the banks 
occupation target, then the rest of the building will have to be completed on a 
speculative basis leaving the Council with the occupation risk.  
 
Once the block has been built and the lease to HSBC granted the Council will be 
HSBC’s landlord and will have an asset with a value which we can hold, put into 

Page 150



Page 7 of 18 

 
 
6.12 
 
 
6.13 
 
 
6.14 
 
 
6.15 
 
 
 
6.16 
 
 
 
 
6.17 
 
 
 
 
7.0 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
7.2.1 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
7.3.1 
 
 
7.3.2 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
7.4.1 
 

the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme or sell. 
 
The retail space once let will be an asset with value for the Council which we can 
again hold, put into the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme or sell. 
 
The full financial implications of delivering the HSBC/Retail block are set out in 
detail in  paragraph 9.0 of this report 
 
As part of the development of the HSBC/Retail Block the Council will deliver high 
quality public realm around the new block 
 
As part of the public realm improvement works circa 13,000 of retail space will be 
created, and these will be targeted at food and beverage operators to compliment 
the use of the public spaces 
 
The new spaces around the HSBC/Retail Block development provide the 
opportunity for the Council to create a new series of well-designed open public 
spaces constructed with high quality materials that will connect with both The Moor 
and the Sheffield Retail Quarter development. 
 
Creating a strong link between The Moor and Sheffield Retail Quarter is seen as 
vital to both the success of the development and also to strengthen the city centre 
retail offer. The new retail space created in the HSBC/Retail block and the food 
and beverage units will benefit from the opening of the new cinema on The Moor. 
 
RISK ANALYSIS AND IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION 
 
A number of key risks have been identified and mitigation strategies have been put 
in place to manage the risk where possible. These are as follows: 
 
Obtaining all necessary planning and highways consents to build the HSBC/Retail 
block. 
 
A detailed planning application for the HSBC/Retail block will be submitted. The 
professional team acting for the Council have already in in pre-application 
discussions with Planning Officers. The deal with the bank is conditional on 
planning consent being obtained. 
 
Construction cost and programme risk 
 
The Council acting as developer of the HSBC/Retail block has the risk of 
construction costs going above budget and programme slippage. 
 
The Council has already secured pre construction services so that construction 
costs and programme can be discussed /worked up in detail before the Council 
becomes contractually committed. 
 
Letting of the HSBC/Retail block 
 
As set out in the financial implications above the Council is taking the risk on 
securing lettings of the completed HSBC/Retail block. 

Page 151



Page 8 of 18 

 
7.4.2 
 
 
 
7.5 
 
7.5.1 
 
 
7.2.4 
 
8.0 
 
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
8.3 
 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
 
 
9.0 
 
9.1 
 
 
 
9.2 
 
9.2.1 
 
 
 
 
9.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A large proportion of the office space is pre-let to HSBC and Queensbury Real 
Estate Ltd the Councils Strategic Development Partner will now be taking the lead 
on all negotiations with the retailers. 
 
Changes to the political/economic climate 
 
It is impossible to judge the impact (if any) of the current economic and political 
uncertainty on this project 
 
The Council will monitor the situation and report back to Cabinet if necessary 
 
EQUALITY OF OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The redevelopment of the Sheffield Retail Quarter site will be of universal positive 
benefit for all local people regardless of age, sex, race, faith, disability, sexuality, 
etc.  Local people will benefit from the creation of a significant number of new full 
and part time jobs. The socio economic and community cohesion impacts locally 
will be particularly positive.  
 
No negative equality impacts have been identified.   
 
As the Sheffield Retail Quarter development progresses there will be further public 
consultation providing another opportunity for stakeholders and the general public 
to be engaged and to make comments 
 
Ease of pedestrian access throughout the scheme is of paramount importance and 
will require careful design and integration of lifts, ramps, and stairs for all users. 
The provision of a Shop Mobility facility within the Sheffield Retail Quarter is also 
an aspiration of the Council. 
 
FINANCIAL AND COMMERCAIL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The delivery of the next stage of the Sheffield Retail Quarter will have significant 
financial implications for the Council across the key areas of activity as set out 
below.   
 
Continuation of Wider Sheffield Retail Quarter Development 
 
In order to carry out the next stage of the Sheffield Retail Quarter delivery, the 
Council will incur further costs, as set out below, which will consist largely of the 
external advisors required to produce a scheme that is attractive to both potential 
tenants and funders.  
 
The scheme has been treated as Assets Under Construction (AUC) and therefore 
all costs to date (including financing costs) have been capitalised. This will 
continue whilst the development remains active.    
 
 
 
 

Page 152



Page 9 of 18 

 
 
9.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.2.4 
 
 
 
9.2.5 
 
 
9.2.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2.7 
 
 
 
9.2.8 
 
 
 
9.2.9 
 
 
9.2.10 
 
9.2.11 
 
 
 
9.2.12 
 
 
 

 
 
Total Expenditure 
 

 £m Basis/ Status Of Figures 

Land Assembly and Enabling Works  61.2 Already approved by Cabinet 

Continuation of SRQ To unconditional 
Stage (Dec 2017)  

  

External Advisor Fees - includes design 
and preconstruction services 

26.9  

SCC Direct Costs 1.1  

Capitalised Interest 7.8 Based on 5% cost of capital 

Sub Total 35.8  

Total Capital Expenditure  97.0  

 
As indicated above a further £35.8m of funding is required to complete the next 
stage. The whole £97m budget will be split out and profiled through the normal 
capital approval processes. 
  
The project will be monitored through the Councils usual capital monitoring and 
reporting process. 
 
This expenditure is to complete all of the necessary stages for the project to 
secure funding. This expenditure is all at risk until the scheme is commercially 
viable and has secured the necessary funding for the scheme to be taken forward 
into the delivery stage. Once delivered it is assumed the costs will be recovered 
from either an increase in business rates or a contribution from the development 
returns.  
 
As set out above there are a number of key milestones throughout this stage and 
the project should only progress if the pre-requisites for those milestones have 
been complete as approved by the Project Board. 
 
Should those milestone conditions not be met at the required time, then alternative 
proposals will be developed and if necessary would be subject to further Cabinet 
approval. 
 
The Milestone profile of the above expenditure is set out in Part 2 of this report as 
Appendix B. 
 
Peak Revenue Budget Exposure  
 
If the project is halted or stalled for a considerable time such that it ceases to pass 
the criteria for being treated as an AUC then the financing costs (Interest and 
Minimum Revenue Provision) will have to be covered from Council budgets. 
 
The following tables show the impact on the revenue budget based on expenditure 
to date and if the scheme continues to December 2017.     
 
 

Page 153



Page 10 of 18 

 
 
9.2.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.2.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.2.15 
 
 
 
 
 
9.2.16 
 
 
 
9.2.17 
 
 
 
 
9.3 
 
9.3.1 

 
 
Do Nothing (Assumes Sheffield Retail Quarter Aborted)  
 

 
Sheffield Retail Quarter Continues to Unconditional Stage  
 

 
As can be seen from the above tables a significant proportion of the costs incurred 
are for the appointment of expert advisors which do not create a proportionate 
asset value. Therefore if the scheme does not proceed and there has been no 
appreciation in the value of the asset acquired those residual sunk costs would 
have to be charged to the revenue account. 
 
There has been no provision made for these costs in the Councils Medium Term 
Financial Strategy and so if the project cannot realise sufficient returns then this 
would cause a budget pressure for the Council. 
 
It is imperative therefore that proper governance is exercised over the progression 
of the scheme and that additional costs commitment will only be made if there is 
tangible evidence that scheme is positively addressing the viability issues it 
currently faces. 
 
HSBC/Retail Block 
 
As the Council is carrying out the development role for the HSBC/Retail block as a 

 £m Basis/ Status Of Figures 

Funding Requirement 50.5 Current costs incurred to date 

   

Annual Financing Costs from 2016/17 
(Based on Annuity w/o over 30 years) 
 

3.3 Timing of charge to Revenue 
depends on point that whole 
development ceases to be active  

Net Worst Case Annual Exposure 3.3  

Existing Properties Value 41.1 
 

Based on historic purchase cost 
(actual value could be higher or 
lower depending on current  
market conditions) 

Net Best Case Annual Exposure 0.6 Financing of residual costs if  
asset value realised 

 £m Basis/ Status Of Figures 

Funding Requirement 97.0  

   

Annual Financing Costs from 2016/17 
(Based on Annuity w/o over 30 years) 

6.3 Financing of capital costs if 
development ceases to be active  

Net Worst Case Annual Exposure 6.3  

Existing Properties Value 48.6 
 

Forecast Acquisition costs 

Net Best Case Annual Exposure 3.1 Financing of residual costs if  
asset value realised 

Page 154



Page 11 of 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.3.3 
 
 
 
9.3.4 
 
 
 
 
9.3.5 
 
 
 
 
9.3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

stand-alone investment, then it will incur significant expenditure. The table below 
sets out a summary of the expected costs for the completion of the block.  
 
A breakdown of the heads of expenditure, estimate of income and basis of the 
assumptions is contained in Part 2 of this report 
 
Base Case Appraisal  
 

 £m Basis/ Status Of Figures 

Land Assembly and Enabling Works  n/a Assumed to be funded from  
wider Sheffield Retail Quarter 
scheme 

Grosvenor Block  Build Costs, Fees & 
Interest 

73.3  

Sub Total 73.3  

Less   

Exempt VAT  Potential £8.2m if Partial 
Exemption strategy is  
successful  

Total Block Capital Expenditure  73.3  

Public Realm, Transport and Highways 8.3  

  

Total Development Capital Expenditure 81.6  

 
The costs above include an element of irrecoverable VAT on the construction 
costs of the HSBC Office. This is because the structure of the commercial deal 
could influence the treatment of the expenditure for VAT purposes.  
 
This reflects a worst case scenario but the Council is exploring an option to use its 
Section 33 Public Body Status to recover that VAT. This will require a change to 
the way we report our compliance with the Partial Exemption (PE) provisions to 
HMRC moving to a 7 year average from the current three year.     
  
Approval is therefore sought to pursue this option with HMRC when appropriate. 
It is proposed that an application for Sheffield City Region Investment Fund 
(SCRIF) funding be made towards the public and infrastructure costs of the 
scheme.   
 
The proposed exit strategy for the building is to sell the long leasehold interest of 
some or all of the elements to one or more investors. This could be a stand-alone 
disposal or could be as part of the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155



Page 12 of 18 

 
 
9.3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.3.8 
 
 
 
9.3.9 
 
 
 
9.4 
 
9.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
9.4.2 
 
 
9.4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9.3.4 
 

 
 
Post Completion Income 
 

Business Rates   

Cavendish Office 0.9  

Additional Office 0.2  

Retail and Leisure space 0.4  

Total Annual Income 1.5  

 

Period In which Residual Financing 
Costs Paid Back   

Year 9 After Practical Completion 

 
It assumed that all of the business rates uplift from the building will be retained by 
the Council and used as a first call to cover the residual financing costs of the 
public realm improvement works.   
 
If VAT on exempt expenditures can be recovered and full SCRIF grant is secured 
then the project would virtually break even at Practical Completion leaving all 
business rate uplift as income to the Council. 
 
Council Scenario Modelling 
 
Whilst securing the anchor tenant in the building for an initial term goes a long way 
to mitigate the financial risk associated with it, the fact that the rest of the building 
will have to be completed on a speculative basis leaves the Council with 
considerable risk if the assumed levels of occupation and rental cannot be 
achieved.   
 
This is illustrated by the scenario analysis below. The detailed cash flows for each 
of the base case scenarios are attached in Part 2 of this report as Appendix C.   
 
Scenario Set 1- Full Occupation, Leasehold Sold and All Rental Income Streams 
Capitalised  
 
The risk in this scenario is that the Council cannot secure the level of expected 
rent for the non-office elements of the building which results in a lower capital 
receipt 
 

Scenario  Average 
Rent psf 

Pay Back 
year 

Base Case  £26.61 9 

Sensitivity 1 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 10% 

£20.89 12 

Sensitivity 2 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 25% 

£17.41 18 

 
 
Scenario Set 2- Full Occupation, Leasehold Retained, Rental and business rates 
Received Annually 

Page 156



Page 13 of 18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3.5 
 
 
 
 

9.3.6 
 
 
 
 
9.3.7 
 
 
 
9.3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
9.3.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
If the Council cannot secure the required level of Capital value for building then it 
could hold on to it and receive an annual rental income in addition to the business 
rates   
 

Scenario Average 
Rent psf 

Pay Back 
year 

Base Case £26.61 20 

Sensitivity 1 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 10% 

£20.89 21 

Sensitivity 2 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 25% 

£17.41 23 

 

Sensitivity 3 –Mitigation Case – Rental value that non-
office element would have to be fully let at to break even 
(NPV Over 30 years) 

£8.91 psf 
(66% 
reduction) 

£1.1m  
per annum 

 
The above scenarios assume that the building is fully leased for the 30 year 
duration at a constant rental value. It is possible that rental values for individual 
units could go up or down depending on the length of lease entered into and the 
prevailing market conditions on renewal. 
 
The above scenarios indicate that taken over a 30 year period, if the office 
remains occupied throughout, then the level of rent required from the remainder of 
the building to break even is relatively low.   
 
Scenario Set 3- Initial Void Period on Non-Office then 5 yearly void periods 
throughout 
 
The biggest risk to the project is the securing of tenants for the non-office building 
from the outset of completion and for the offices, if the anchor tenant exercises the 
first break option. 
 

Scenario  Average 
Rent psf 

Pay Back 
year 

Base Case  £26.61 27 

Sensitivity 1 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 10% 

£20.89 30 

Sensitivity 2 - Non-Office element 
rental value reduced by 25% 

£17.41 31 

 
The above scenarios therefore illustrate the impact of: 
 

• the occupation of the retail and food and beverage units being delayed for 3 

years and then being subject to a 5 yearly lease cycle with a void year in 

between; 

 

• the occupation of the Offices after the initial period being subject to the 

same 5 yearly lease cycle with a void year in between; 

Page 157



Page 14 of 18 

 

9.3.10 
 
 
 
10.0 
 
10.1 
 
 
 
 
 
10.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
11.0 
 
11.1 
 
 
11.2 
 
 
 
11.3 
 
 
11.4 
 
 
 
 
12.0 
 
12.1 
 
 
 
 
12.2 
 
 
 
 
12.3 

This indicates that at the assumed rental values, the project does still pay back 
with the 30 year financing period and will do so providing the rental value achieved 
on average is reduced by less than 25%. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS. 
 
The recommendations in this report are intended to allocate and identify sources 
of funding for the Sheffield Retail Quarter development. In order to comply with the 
Council’s constitution and rules of governance a further approval will be required 
via its Capital Approval process. As mentioned in this report, this will be 
undertaken in respect of individual items of capital expenditure. 
 
The recommendations in this report also envisage the Council procuring various 
constructions works in order to implement the Sheffield Retail Quarter 
development. Although the UK has recently voted in favour of leaving the EU, the 
EU procurement regulations are enacted into UK law by the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015. As a result any procurement process will need to be conducted 
in accordance with these regulations until such time as further legislation is 
enacted. 
 
PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Council has now acquired a majority of the Sheffield Retail Quarter site and is 
managing these properties for redevelopment. 
 
Any temporary new lettings are made on the basis that the Council can obtain 
vacant possession at any time on 3 months’ notice, so as not to disrupt/delay the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter development. 
 
The rental income that these properties produce is used to help fund the holding 
and management costs of the Sheffield Retail Quarter estate. 
 
If the Council decide at a future date not to proceed with the Sheffield Retail 
Quarter development these substantial land and property holdings will be capable 
of being sold to generate capital receipts, either individually as investments, or as 
piecemeal mixed use development sites. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABLILITY 
 
The long term strategic implications of a Sheffield Retail Quarter to Sheffield have 
already been covered in this report and the detailed elements of environmental 
and sustainability matters have and will be incorporated into the planning process 
by virtue of negotiated designs, planning conditions and S106 obligations. 
 
The Sheffield Retail Quarter development will promote the use of sustainable 
materials wherever viable and the structures will be designed as efficiently as 
possible to reduce the quantity of raw construction materials. Every effort will be 
made to minimise its carbon footprint. 
 
The offices will be designed to achieve the banks criteria of a LEED (Leadership in 
Energy and Environmental Design) silver standard, and the remainder of the block 

Page 158



Page 15 of 18 

 
 
 
 
12.4 
 
 
 
12.5 
 
 
 
13.0 
 
13.1 
 
 
 
13.2 
 
 
14.0 
 
14.1 
 
 
15.0 
 
15.1 
 
 
 
 
15.2 
 
 
15.3 
 
 
 
 
 

to achieve a BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental 
Assessment Method) very good 
 
LEED is a green building certification processes that rates the design construction 
operation and maintenance of green buildings, and BREEAM assesses and rates 
the sustainability of a building. 
 
The block will be designed to be energy efficient and to reduce energy 
consumption and carbon omissions. A minimum of 10% of its energy needs will 
come from decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy. 
 
COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS. 
 
The Sheffield Retail Quarter development will incorporate a series of well-
designed pedestrianised streets and public squares within the scheme, and these 
will provide a safe environment for all.  
 
Use of CCTV and informal policing by The City Centre Ambassadors will help 
ensure that a safe and secure environment will be maintained.  
 
HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES 
 
There are not thought to be any human rights implications arising from the 
proposals set out in this report. 
 
ECONOMIC IMPACT 
 
The long-term economic benefits to Sheffield of securing delivery of the Sheffield 
Retail Quarter are both enormous and long lasting. It will generate new business 
rates and Council Tax for the Council and retain and/or create new jobs in the city 
centre. 
 
The anticipated long term economic benefits of the Sheffield Retail Quarter have 
already been set out in paragraphs 2.6 to 2.11 of this report 
 
The development of the Sheffield Retail Quarter also enhances the status of the 
city centre in itself creating an attractive environment in which to live, work, shop 
and relax and will in turn help stimulate other office, commercial and leisure 
investment/development in the city centre generating additional business rates 
and creating more jobs. 

16.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
16.1 
 
 
 
16.2 
 
 

The do nothing option i.e. cease both the delivery of the first phase (the 
HSBC/Retail block) and work on the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter scheme has 
been considered, but has many negative outcomes for the Council.  
 
The status of city centre will continue to diminish, the Councils long term economic 
aspirations for the City and the city centre will become less feasible, there will be a 
lack of confidence for other projects and the reputation of both the City and 

Page 159



Page 16 of 18 

 
 
16.3 

Council will also suffer. 
 
The Council will also make a loss if the Sheffield Retail Quarter is not delivered as 
its investment to date in working up the scheme will be lost. 
 

17.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
17.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17.2 

As outlined in this Report, there is a still a very clear strategic and economic case 
to justify the Sheffield Retail Quarter development, and in order to maintain project 
momentum given that there is now a major office tenant to accommodate the 
Council will need to continue to act as developer/investor until such time as the 
scheme will be ready for the investment market. This will be when the Council has 
completed the designs, obtained construction tenders and achieved a required 
level of pre-lets to secure an income stream. 
 
The reasons for the recommendations are to provide a way forward for the Council 
to deliver the Sheffield Retail Quarter 
 

18.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 

 
That Cabinet: 
 

18.1 
 
 

Approves the strategy outlined in this report for the delivery of the next stage of the 
Sheffield Retail Quarter to December 2017 

18.2 
 
 
 
 
18.2.1 
 
 
 
 
18.2.2 
 
 
18.2.3 
 
 
 
18.2.4 
 
 
 
 
18.2.5 
 
 
 

Delegates authority to the Executive Director of Place in consultation with The 
Cabinet Member for Business and Economy, The Cabinet Member for Finance & 
Resources , Executive Director of Resources, the Director of Legal & Governance 
and the Director of Capital and Major Projects, to 
 
Negotiate and agree the terms of an Agreement for Lease and Lease with HSBC 
for their new office development within the Sheffield Retail Quarter site  and all 
other necessary legal documentation consistent with the contents of this report as 
he believes are reasonable in all circumstances 

 
Negotiate and agree the terms of an Agreement for Lease(s) for the retail units 
within the HSBC/Retail Block and all other necessary legal documentation 
 
Submit detailed a planning application for the development of the HSBC/Retail 
Block and adjoining public realm improvement works and to secure all necessary 
consents to enable delivery to proceed. 
 
Continue the appointment of the full professional team to undertake detailed 
design work on the HSBC/Retail Block and the Sheffield Retail Quarter public 
realm improvement works and to progress the wider Sheffield Retail Quarter 
planning permission. 

 
Procure construction services and enter into contracts for pre-construction 
services for the Sheffield Retail Quarter development in accordance with the 
Councils usual procurement process and any applicable laws relating to 
procurement with contract values not exceeding the project financial authority 

Page 160



Page 17 of 18 

 
18.2.6 
 
 
18.2.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18.2.8 
 
 
 
18.2.9 
 
 
 
18.2. 
10     
 
 
18.2. 
11 
 
 
 
 
 
18.3 
 
 
 
18.4 
 
18.4.1 
 
 
18.4.2 
 
 
18.4.3 
 
 
18.4.4 
 
 
 
18.5 
 

 
Commission and agree terms with any other specialist consultants to advise the 
Council as necessary throughout the course of the Sheffield Retail Quarter project 

 
Upon completion of the Agreement for Lease and Lease with HSBC to let the 
construction contract(s) for the development of the HSBC/Retail Block and the 
public realm improvement works together with any retail/food and beverage 
kiosks/units, subject to the Councils usual procurement process and any 
applicable laws relating to procurement with the total cost not exceeding the 
project authority 
 
Negotiate and agree the terms of conditional Agreement for Lease(s) and Lease(s) 
for the remainder of the retail units within the Sheffield Retail Quarter together with 
all other associated office residential food and beverage and leisure units 

 
Determine the most appropriate disposal strategy for the Council and if necessary 
sell the whole or any part of the HSBC/Retail Block as an investment and if 
necessary use the Councils covenant to underwrite the financial viability  

 
Amend the Councils VAT Partial Exemption reporting policy to maximise the 
recovery of VAT on expenditure relating to the HSBC/Retail Block and liaise with 
HMRC accordingly 
 
To instruct the Director of Legal and Governance to complete all necessary legal 
documentation required to document the terms of any transactions agreed in 
accordance with the approvals delegated pursuant to this report 
 
Subject to compliance with the Councils budget processes, financial regulations 
and Capital Approval processes. 
 
That in the absence of the Executive Director of Place due to annual leave or 
illness, the Director of Capital and Major Projects is authorised to exercise the 
powers given to the Executive Director of Place by Cabinet in this report 
 
Approves  
 
The budget as set out in this report to deliver the HSBC/Retail Block and all 
necessary public realm improvement works of up to a maximum of £90m.  

 
For this budget to be funded through Prudential Borrowing and be subject to the 
phasing of the spend going through the Council Capital Approval process,  
 
To earmark any business rates uplift to repay any balance of the Prudential 
Borrowing, and 

 
The application for Sheffield City Region Investment Fund (SCRIF) funding to be 
applied in accordance with any obligations or restrictions that the funding is 
subject to 

 
Approves the additional £35.8m budget as set out in this report to progress the 
wider Sheffield Retail Quarter development up to December 2017, to be funded 

Page 161



Page 18 of 18 

 
 
18.6 

through Prudential Borrowing  
 
Delegates’ authority to the Executive Director of Resources in consultation with the 
Executive Director of Place to approve the release of the budget on the 
satisfactory completion of each of the relevant milestones. 

  
  
  
  

 
 
 

 Simon Green 
Executive Director Place 
20th July 2016 
 

  
  
  
  
  
 

Page 162



Page 163

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 166

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 169

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 170

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 171

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 172

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 173

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 174

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 175

B
y virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of P

art 1 of S
chedule 12A

of the Local G
overnm

ent A
ct 1972.

D
ocum

ent is R
estricted



P
age 176

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Retirement of Staff
	9 School Places Consultation: Ecclesall
	School Places in Ecclesall Appendix 1 - Statutory Guidance
	School Places in Ecclesall Appendix 2 - Consultation Analysis

	10 Revenue Budget and Capital Programme Monitoring 2016/17 Month 2 as at 20 July 2016
	Budget Monitoring (2)

	11 Corporate Statutory Servicing and Repairs (CSSR) Service - Delivery Options Post-March 2017
	CSSR Repairs (2)
	CSSR Repairs (3)
	CSSR Repairs (4)
	CSSR Repairs (5)

	12 Sheffield Retail Quarter - Delivery of First Phase
	SRQ (2)
	SRQ (3)
	SRQ (4)
	SRQ (5)
	SRQ (6)
	SRQ (7)
	SRQ (8)


